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Key Highlights and Key Takeaways

Key Highlights

REVENUE

£31.om

(2019 €221m)

PUBLIC SERVICES REVENUE

£20.Im

(2019 £12.3m)

NORMALISED ADJUSTED EBITDA?

£34m

© {2019% £2.1m)

ADJUSTED DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE®

3.6p

(2018: 0.7p)

NET DEBT®

GROSS PROFIT

£12.0m

(2019~ £9m)

CASH?

£46m

(2019: £5.7mM)

ADJUSTED PROFIT AFTER TAX?

£2.7/m

(2019 £0.2m)

CURRENT RATIO

1.7

(2019: 2.4)

[ 0 L Normalised results are prepcred on the ossumplion that the four initial companies acquired at IPO wers awned lor & full pariod and the resuits
L

o! subsaequent acquisitions from the dots of complation adjustad for nermalised solaties and Boauses and the sams cantral costs as reponad

in the current year. Nermalised numbers are usad whare the Dirsctars believe it pravides o mora appropriate madsdra whan comparing the

vect on year pertormance of the Group.

13
(20]9 : Net Cash £5.7ITI) 2 Normulisad adjusted EBITDA is 0 non-iFRS measure that tha Group Uses to measure lts parformance and is defined as earnings befora interest,
Ioxotion, dapraciotion and omonisotion ond chier odd bock of costs 1eloted to ocquisitions, restucturing ond other one off cosis made by the
Group, fair value adjustments, share-bosed payment charges and pre iFRS 18 adjustments,

Lo

Cash decreasad due 1o impact of acquisitans maodein the yeor
Adjusted profit cler tax is & non-FRS mMeasure and is, in the directars Opinion, mara reprasentativp of (Ra underlying pariolmance of the Group.

Ta arrive at adjusted profit ofter tax, adjustments maoda include the add back of coquisition, festructuring and other one off costs, amortisalion
related o acquired intangibles, shara-based payments, the impact of fair valua adjustments and IFRS 16 odjustrents and the taximpact of

these od]usuments,

5. Adjusted diluted egrnings per share is calculated based on adjusted proht after tax as dafined apave. &n adjusted diluted thare count is
calculated by taking the waighted avarage basic shares and including the maximun shares ta be issuad in respact of cantingant cansidecation
to be paid based on parfarmance measures met in the period, togéther with the moximum Shore-based payments oulstanding.

e

Key Takeaways

Acquisition of FutureGov and Ameo

Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) of £5m secured
with HSBC

Growth in customer base with 265 customers
billed in the year (2019: 191)

75% of customers billed in 2020 were also billed
in 2019 and/or 2018

Top 10 customers represented 35% of revenue
(2019: 54%)

the panoply

Net debt is colculated as cash balances less borrowings.
Current ratio calculoted bafare the impact of IFRS 16.

« Clients billed where work was performed by
two or more Group companies totalled £8.9m
representing 28% of total revenue

= Collaborations within the Group
(2020: 51 / 2019: 8)

- Average headcount in the year of 361 employees
across the UK, Bulgaria and Nerway including
220 in technology roles
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Letter to Shareholders
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Dear Shareholders,

Itis hard to believe that the results ta 31 March 2020
reprasent our first full year as a listed company,

and indeed as an entity at all given that the IPO in
December 2018 was the catalyst to create the Panoply.

The macro-economic headwinds that we have faced
in that time are surely unprecedented. The uncertainty
caused by any one of Brexit, the US-China traode war
and the current Covid-19 pandemic maokes plotting a
corpcrate path difficult, let alone the combination of
all three and, as | write, all three are still very much in
full farce.

Given this backdrop it is a source of immense pride

to reflect on quite how much we have achieved since
December 2018 and, in particular, in the twelve months
to 31 March 2020. From the outset, our goal has been to
establish the optimal model to help deliver the digital
transtormation programmes fit for the 21st century.
Fundarmentally we do this by recognising that smaill,
diverse, expert, multidisciplinary teams can ond do have
incredible impact on client outcomes. Furthermore,
forward thinking clients now want their service partner
to work alongside in-house tearns; upskilling them on
modern tools and processes along the way. (tis this
recognition, along with the fact that we are cleud and
agile native, that sets us apart trom larger monolithic
companies that are struggling to embrace this new
model of delivery.

| have nc doubt that the single most meoningtful
contributor to our success to date has been our collective
sense of purpose. We fundamentally believe thot

serving our wider community and building increasing
sharehaolder returns do not need to be mutually exclusive.
We have been able te ottract exciting companies and
highly talented, driven individuals into the Panoply

Group because together we can deliver outcaomes

thot will have a positive effect on society as well driving
financial value. This has been epitomised by the work
that we have been doing since the onset of Covid-19.

The pandemic highlighted many of the shortcomings

in digital services and we have worked tirelessly with all
levels of government to help transform them and make a
meaningful difference to the lives of citizens up ond down
the country in difficult circumstances.

1 am delighted that we have been able to support all

of our steff throughout the pandemic without calling
upon government suppart through either the furigugh or
business loans schemes. Although the rales of many of
our support staff have been impacted by the restrictions
enforced by lockdown, our enduring sense has been to
provide from within and leave the government support
to those more in need. By doing s, we can also allocate
future capital with a clear conscience ong maintain
control of our destiny.

Today, the Panoply represents approximately 400
members of staff and within that, a true reflection of

the diverse nature of our wonderful society. Qur male to
fernale ratio in senior leadership positions is now 61:38
with BAME representotion at 12% and LGBT al 7%. Rather
thon celebrating this though, we believea it shows us that
we still have a way to go. This coming year will see us
setting long term diversity and inclusion torgets across
oll groups and publishing them and our annual results
on our website. The recent Black Lives Matter movement
has shown us that to some extent, we have oll been
blindsided by the Block, Asian and Minority Ethnic {BAME)
term. The reqlity is that in the tech industry, people of
Asian descent have a very different life experience 1o
our black colleagues. After oli, the CEOs of Microsoft ond
Alphabet are of Indian corigin and as such are greatrole
models for others with the same background. However
notable black leaders in our industry are few and far
between. For that reason, moving forwards, we will split
BAME into 8 and AME and report each separately so that
we begin to do our bit to  address this issue.

Our purpose will continue to be at the forefront of
everything that we do, helping us to solve problems and
deliver cutcomes of which we can be truly proud. In turn,
this will be reflected in our financial performance. This
yvear has seen us increase revenues by 43%%, normalised
cdjusted EBITDA® by 62% with a cash conversion ratio of
91% versus normalised 2019 figures. On a statutory basis,
revenue has increased by 284%, adjusted EBITDA by 850%
and operating loss has increased by 87.5% as a result of
4 months of trading in 2019 versus a whole year's worth of
trading in 2020. That perforrmance has continued into the
current financial year with Q1 unaudited revenue of £10.1m
representing 10% organic growth and adjusted EBITDA

of £1.7m which is up 55% on o like for like basis. These are
numbers that the whole group can be proud of butl can
speak with near certainty that they wouldn't hove been
possible to achieve without o deep sense of purpose
running through our core.

Thank you for your continuing support.

Neal Gandhi
Pasvfiean xe20

Mal Gandlu
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Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

It is hard to believe thot the results to 31 March 2020
represent our first full year as a listed company,

and indeed as an entity at all given that the IPO in
December 2018 waos the catalyst to create the Panoply.

The macro-economic headwinds that we have faced
in that time are surely unprecedented. The uncertainty
caused by any one of Brexit, the US-China trade war
and the current Covid-19 pondemic makes plotting a
corpoarate path difficult, tet aione the combination of
all three and, as | write, all three are still very much in
full force.

Given this backdrop it is o source of immense pride

to reflect on quite how much we have achieved since
December 2018 and, in particular, in the tweive months
to 31 March 2020. From the outset, our goal has been to
establish the optimal mode! to help deliver the digital
‘transformation programmes fit for the 21st century.
Fundamentally we do this by recognising that small,
diverse, expert, multidisciplinary teams can and do have
incredible impact on client outcomes. Furthermore,
forward thinking clients now want their service partner
to work alongside in~house teams; upskilling thermn on
rmodern tools and processes along the way. It is this
recognition, along with the fact that we are cloud and
agile native, that sets us apart from larger monclithic
companies that are struggling to embrace this new
model of delivery.

I have no doubt that the single most meaningful
contributor to our success to date has been our collective
sense of purpose. We fundamentally believe that

serving our wider community and building increasing
shareholder returns do not need to be mutually exclusive.
We have been able to attract exciting companies and
highly talented, driven individuals into the Parnoply

Group becaouse together we can deliver outcomes

that will have a positive effect on society as well driving
financial value. This hos been epitomised by the work
that we have been daing since the onset of Covid-19.

The pandemic highlighted many of the shortcomings

in digital services and we have worked tirelessly with all
levels of government to help transform them and make a
meaningtul difference to the lives of citizens up and down
the country in difficult circumstances.

I am delighted that we have been able to support all

of our staff throughout the pandemic without calling
upon government support through either the furlough ar
business loans schemes. Although the roles of many of
our support staff have been impacted by the restrictions
enforced by lockdown, our enduring sense has been to
provide frorm within and leave the government support
to those more in need. By doing so, we can aiso aliocate
future capital with a clear conscience and maintain
control of our destiny,

Today, the Panoply represents approximately 400
members of staff and within that, a true reflection of

the diverse nature of cur wonderful society. Cur male to
female ratio in sénior leadership positions is now 6139
with BAME representation at 12% and LGBT at 7%. Rather
than celebrating this though, we believe it shows us that
we still have a way 1o go. This coming year will see us
setting long term diversity and inclusion targets across
all groups and pubilishing them and our annual results
on our website. The recent Block Lives Matter movement
has shown us that to some extent, we have all been
blindsided by the Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME)
term. The reality is that in the tech industry, people of
Asian descent have a very different life experience to
our black colleagues. After all, the CEOs of Microsoft and
Alphabet are of Indian origin and as such are greaticle
models for others with the same background. However
notable black leaders in our industry are few and far
between. For that reason, maving forwards, we will split
BAME into B and AME and report each separately so that
we begin to do our bit to address this issue.

Our purpose will continue to be at the farefront of
everything that we do, helping us to solve problems and
deliver outcomes of which we can be truly proud. In turn,
this will be reflected in our financial performance, This
year has seen us increass revenyes by 43%°, normalised
adjusted EBITDA® by 682% with a cash conversion ratio of
91% versus normalised 2019 figures. On a statutory basis,
revenue has increased by 284%, adjusted EBITDA by 850%
and operating loss has increased by 87.5% as a result of
4 months of trading in 2019 versus a whole year's worth of
trading in 2020. That performance has continued into the
current financial year with Q! unaudited revenue of £10.Im
representing 10% organic growth and adjusted EBITDA

of £1.7m which is up 55% on a like for like basis. These are
nurnbers that the whele group can be proud of but l can
speak with near certainty that they wouldn't have been
possible to achieve without a deep senseg of purpese
running through cur core,

Thank you for your continuing support.

Neal Gandhi
18 August 2020

8. Nommalisad fasults aré praporad on the assumption that the four fnitial componies atquired
at IFC wara ownad lor tull pariod ond the rasults of subsaequant gequisitions from the dota
of complation odjustad for normalised sakaries ong borwses and the sams cantrol costs
as raportad in the current yaear. Normalisad numbars are used where tha Directors balieve it
provides a mare apprapriate mecsure whan comparing the year on yaar performance of
the Graup.

€. Normalised adjusted EBITDA is a non-(FRS measure that the G1oup uses to rmaasura its
parformance and is defined as earnings before interest, taxotion, depreciation and
amortisation and after add book of costs reloted ta ocquisitions, rastrutturing and othar
one off costs made by the Group, lair valye odjustrnents, share-based payment charges
and pro 1FRS I8 adjustments.
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Market Overview

We are living in turbulent times. A world already
grappling with palitical, environmental, social and
technological change happening at a pace not
seen in our lifetime, has been turned on its head by

the Covid-19 pandemic.

Recent events have exposed just how far most
organisations have to go to make digital-first a reality.
For organisations across the private and public sector
digital transformation has been high on the agenda
for a number of years, yet not enough have taken the
bold steps needed to build organisations fit for 2020
and beyond. Digital transformation means more than
transitioning to remote working practices and video calls.
It means seizing the opportunities of technology and
data, to fundamentally reshape the way we

deliver services.

While no organisation could have accurately predicted
the many challenges we face today, those that have
adapted best are those that had already developed
digital-first strategies and ways of working. The
importance of agility and of the central role of digital
has been brought into sharp focus. In o peried of just

a few months, we've seen more purposeful discussion
around the need to build resilient, digitally-driven
business than in many months and years before. We are
seeing organisations across every sector beginning to
guestion their operating models, workspaces, culture,
responsibilities towards employees, supply choins,
management structures, and more.

In the public sector, departments which have traditionally
been slow-maoving have proven that they can deliver
impactful, innovative servicgs at speed. The Panoply are
proud to have worked on séveral initiatives to support the
government's ermnergency tesponse to Covid-19.

In partnership with Camden Council, FutureGov designed
and built Beacon — an open source service directory tool
which helps the council and local public service partners
match vulnerable residents with relevant suppaort.
Notbinary created a system with the Competition and
Markets Authority via the Department for Business, Energy
& Industrial Strategy which allows businesses to be held
to account for unfair behaviour during the crisis.

In addition, FutureGov and Nothinary both built
dashboards to help manage the provision of ventilators
and personal protective eguipment (PPE’) for health
workers in North East London NHS Trust. in an example of
how highly skilled, agile tearms can make a difference
with technology, these dashbeard tools were taken
fromn the initial concept stage to being operational in
little over a week. This is @ true testament to the power

the panoply

of techinology to deliver business solutions and make a
difference to peoples’ lives. It also heralds a new age for
service delivery, as organisations reglise the benefits of
moving away from the slow, monolithic approaches of
transformation in the past.

An uncertain future

Understandably, organisations have a range of concerns
as we enter an economic slowdown and a world
operating under very different rules. Yet the dominant
business impact of the pandemic can be maost helpfully
framed in terms of increased uncertainty. Institutions
attempting to forecast for future scenarios risk wasted
resources as circumstances change. instead, agility and
flexibility must be built into organisational DNA to flourish
on the road ahead.

with the right mindset, every organisatior has the
potential to turn these events to their advantage. it is rare
to face such a large and varied set of challenges. But it

is also rare to be presented with such a strong catalyst
for change. This is an unmissable opportunity to refocus
services around the true needs of their users. To move
away from the one-size-fits-all, rigid systems of the past
to a more individualised approach.

The Directors believe in two clear ways of meeting this
need. The first approaches digital transformation from

a top~down, organisational perspective — asking what
the end user need is and adopting working practices,
business models, and technolegies to achieve this.

This user-centric approach is seenin cur work at
FutureGov, where we improve the relevance and delivery
of public sector services, making o reol difference to the
lives of individuals.

The second locks at digital transformation through the
power of technology. Our Group-wide expertise in data,
outomation, and engineering gets to the heart of the
legacy technology infrastructure that still plagues many
organisations today. By working with our clients to solve
their deep-seated technical issues, we help them to
remain competitive and deliver world-class experiences
for their customers.

The Panoply has been expressly designed to provide
digital transformation services in both of these ways,
in a flexible and agile manner. This enables us to work
alongside our clients at the fast pace that thay require.



Guided by values

The past few years have seen social and
environmental concerns pushed up the
corporate agendao, as organisations

have increasingly woken up to their
responsibilities beyond pure shareholder
profit. We now see businesses committing
to initiatives around the UN's sustainability
goals, to fostering increased diversity in
talent pipelines, and making a positive
impact in the local communities in which
they operate.

MIIATY D19UVHLS SINNODOV R LHOdIY TWNNNY 0202



Our Business Model

We believe an We combine the dynamism and agility
. . of smaller, expert teams with the scale
INnCreasing Iy com plex required to confidently address our
clients’ most pressing needs, as they
world needs a new navigate the rapidly changing nature of

society ond business.

business model to

Using our model of consistent autonomy,

achieve h|gh |mp(] ct we embrace a culture of cultures to
. deliver impactful work and to drive
outcomes for clients profitable organic growth. And we're
. collectively entrepreneurial, creating a
and their employees regenerative spirit of innovation, which
i the t i k
Gnd more va |Ue fOf g:ia;r\:te;ieeed.rqnsformatlve work our

stakeholders.

Iimpactful Work

We deliver outcomes
that have impact beyond
financial gains.

Consistent

Autonomy

Operating
Model

Culture Profitable
of Cuitures Organic Growth

We retain our individuality We achieve growth and
whilst delivering collectively. profit as clients recognise
our value through delivery.

the panoply



The concept of consistent autonomy

Historically, there have only been two models for
groups that are highly acquisitive. The first is a holding
company with minimal cross fertilisation of clients,
projects, ideas, systerns and processes. The second is
when a fully integrated singie company with smaller
acquisitions is swallowed whole by a larger acquirer.

The problem with the first is that it leaves value on the
table and fails to generate the kind of transformational
and aspirational engagements that the collective can
take on. The problem with the second, particularly in
services, is that often the best people from acquired
companies become disillusioned, and within a few short
years, they leave. Both are unsatisfactory outcomes

for investors, acquired companies, founders, and
employees -~ leading to the often quoted view that ‘buy
and builds don't work’.

With the collective experience of creating numerous
services companies that went on to be acquired, we
have distilled this experience into what we call our
consistent autonomy meoedel. This enables acquired
companies to retain much of what makes them
special, particularly their culture, while at the same
time ensuring that clients experience the benefits of the
group’s collective range of services.

Group companies are bound together by a collective
belief that business canbe a force for good and that the
work we undertake delivers impact beyond just financial
gain. At the same time, by being allowed to retain their
culture, they're able to retain and ottract the experts that
make the difference in client projects.

Our approach ensures clients get the best possible
outcomes, rather than being bogged down in agendas
that differ from what they are actuaily iooking for. As
clients recognise the benefits they receive as aresult of
engaging with us, this enables the group to continue to
deliver profitable, organic growth.

MIINTY D193LvHLS | SLNODIV 9 LACd3IH TWNNNY 0202



Our Values

‘One of the pillars of our
Consistent Autonomy

model is Culture of
Cultures; we retain

our individuality whilst
delivering collectively.
To enable this, we share
a core set of values
that inform and inspire
those of our individual

companies.

Relationship with

individual company values

The Group’s values inform and inspire the
values of all of our companies. We use
this consistency as a tool to evaluate the
culture fit of companies joining the Group

through M&A activity.

the panoply

These 4 shared values are:

Collaboration
forimpact

We work together effectively. We
believe that together we can achieve
and deliver more and amplify our
impact.

Ambition with
inclusion

We are bold, challenging ourselves to
be better. We know we need to bring
people along on this journey.

Difference with
authenticity

We value difference not justin gender,
ethnicity and class but in personality,
talent and perspective. it takes all types
of attributes to make a great team.

Agility with trust

We are dynamic, modern, and agile
as well as professional and safe. We
bring the benefits of a small business
together with the security larger
businesses provide.



Commercial Vision & 2020 Key Metrics

Our Commercial Vision

We are one year into our three-year plan of achieving a run rate revenue

of £100m by 31 March 2023.

«  Our ambition is to drive 10% to 15% organic

revenue growth per annum over the next three

years with maintained or improving margins.

+  We plan that 70%+ of our operating profit
will drop through into positive cash flow to
generate significant cash reserves.

+  We plan to use this cash to set up a progressive

dividend policy for shareholders at approx
15%-20% of net income.

2020 Key Metrics
Key financial and non-financial metrics:

(i) key financial metrics

- Revenue growth 43% (2020: £31.5m [ 2019 £22.1m)
- Public services revenue totalled B4% (2019" 56%)

- Gross Profit growth 33% (2020: £12m / 2018" £9m)

= Normalised adjusted EBITDA? growth 62%
(2020: £3.4m [ 2019% £21m)

+  Netdebt of £0.4m (2018: net cash £5.7m)°
+  Adjusted profit after tax® of £27m (2019 £0.2m)

- Adjusted diluted earnings per share® of 3.6p
(2019 0.7p)

- Backlog® as at the 31 March 2020 of £15m to
31 march 2021 (sales backlog as 30 September 2019
of £12.8m to 31 March 2020)

(i) Non-financial metrics
+  Acquisition of FutureGov and Ameo
. RCF facility of £5m secured with HSBC

+  Growthin customer base with 285 customers
billed in the year {2019:19)

. 75% of customers billed in 2020 were also billed
in 2018 and/or 2018

- Top 10 customners represented 35% of revenue
(2019: 54%)

We plan to use a mixture of positive cash flow
and our listed shares to make further earnings
enhancing acquisitions over the next 3 years to
add more than £35m of revenue.

On this basis we aim to achieve a run rate
revenue of £100m by FY 2023 and deliver
£12m-£14m EBITDA.

Given our size and scale we betieve that
liquidity is important and will therefore kéep
leverage low at below 1x EBITDA.

Clients billed where work was performed by two or
more Group companies totalled £8.9m representing
28% of total revenue

Number of customers where there have been
collaborations within the Group of 51 (2019: 8)

Other key metrics

.

Current ratio of 17 (2019: 2.4y

Brand awareness via website visits
(2020: 20,265 [ 2019: 11,675)

'Brand awarseness via social media (Twitter and

Linkedin) (2020:1,633 / 2019: 658)

Employees scored an overall satisfaction rating
of 75 out of 10

The carbon intensity ratio per FTE employee was
0.34tCO2e

904 working hours donated to community
investment projects

L Normalised resulis are preparad on the assumption that the four Inital companies ccquired at PG were owned for a full parlod and the results of subsaquaent ocqulsitions lrom the date of
cornplation adjustad far normalised salories and bonusaes and the sama central costs o§ reported in tha current yeor. Rormalised numbears cre used whars the Directars beileve t provides a more

oppropriote imeasure when comparing the yaor on year performaonce of the Group.

2 Normalised adjusted ERITDA Is o non-IFRS maasure that the Company uses to measurs its performance and Is defined as earnings bafore interest. taxation, depreciation and emeortisotion and ofter
odd bact of costs related to acquisitions, restructuring and other one off costs made by the Group, talr value agjustments, share-based payment charges and pre IFRS i6 adjustmants.

Nel debtis colculated gs cosh loss

Ings.Cash d

puw

due toimpact of ocquisitions mads in the yaar.
. Ad]usted profit after tax is a non-IFRS measure and is, in the direclor’s opinion, mora representative of the underlying parformance of the Group. To arrive at cdjusted profit ofter tax, odjustmants

mode Includa the add back of acquisition, restructuring and cther ona off casts, amortisation related to acquiradintanglbles, shore-bosad paymants, the impact of fair value adjustiments and iFRS

16 edjustments and tha tgx impact of these adjustmants.

5. Adjusted diluted aarnings peor shatg s calcutated based on cdjusted profit after tox os defined above. An odjustad ditutad shore count is colculatad by toking the walghted overage basle shares
and including the maximum shares ta be Isswed in respest of contingent consideration to be paid based on performonce Measures met in the parlod, together with tha maxlimum Share-pbased

paymants outstanding,
. The value ol contracted revanue that has yat to ba recagnised.
Current ratio calcutatag before the iImpact of IFRS 16,

~No
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Acquiisition
Strategy

The Panoply was
founded in 2016, with the
aim of identifying and
acquiring best-of-breed
specialist information
technology, design and
innovation consuliting
businesses. The Group
collaborates with its
clients to deliver the
technology outcomes
they’re looking for at the
pace that they expect
and demand.

the panoply

In the last three and a half years, The Group has
identified and met numerous potential target
companies and has completed ten acquisitions.

Unlike many buy and build models that have
preceded The Panoply, the Directors are focused
on creating an agile, decentralised group where
employees join a culture of autonomy, purpose,
collaboration and innovation. The Directors believe
that this consistent autonomy operating model,
embracing a culture of cultures and shared values,
allows Group Companies to collaborate,

providing clients with innovation ond the rapid
delivery of services.

The Panoply has developed an efficient, formulaic
approach for acquiring companies. With an extensive
acquisition pipeline, the Directors intend to continue
to supplement the organic growth of existing
Enlarged Group Companies through the addition of
complementary companies largely originated by our
own in-house team.

We continue to:

- Add further capabitities around the following
technology stacks:

Microsoft, Azure, Power Platform, Power Apps
& Power automate, and Office365 &
Dynamics CRM

- Amazon Web Services, AWS

- Google Cloud Platform, GCP
- Software & Data Engineering
- DevOps, DevSecOps

= Automation

=AML

»  Bolster capabilities that enhance our
customer offering in the public, health
and adjacent sectors.

- Ensure acquisitions are not seen as exits for their
founders but incentivised to build long term
sustainable growth through o consideration
rmake-up that is majority share based.

Ensure acquisitions are immediately
earnings enhancing.



iINvestment Case

Strong financiails with exposure to cutting edge
technology, solving 21st century problems with
21st century solutions.

why invest

Approximatety 70% public services revenue -
Covid-19, the need for fundamental structural
change and sentiment, mean that this is a great
ploce to be

Approximately £40m revenue Group created since
IPO, with ampbition to grow to £100m in the next
3 years through acquisition and organic growth

Marquee clients and great reputation
Strong management team that are all

significant shareholders

Strong financial fundamentats
profitable (normalised adjusted EBITDA)

Cash generative

Intention to commence dividend payment in 2021

NORMALISED ADJUSTED EBITDA

£3.4m

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

£4.6m

Access to structural growth markets

Digital transformation within the UK public sector
alone will represents a total oddressable market
of £20bn by 2025

Global digital transformation market is expected

to grow from USD 469.8 billion in 2020 to USD 1009.8
billion by 2025, at a Compound Annual Growth Rate
(CAGR) of 16.5%

70% Public Sector Weighted, across Central
and Local Government, Healthcare and
education sectors

A unique, 2Ist century proposition for clients
Cloud/agile native

Deep expertise on every engagement,
collective strength

Drives ability to take market share

Investing for growth: .
Proven capability to quickly build competitive
afferings in key areas.

Prepared for the move to conversational Al and
Robotic Process Automation to solve the problems
of legacy technology

REVENUE: GREENSHOOT LABS

£457,533

REVENUE: HUMAN+

£902,503

Laser focused acquisition strategy
Criginated from within

Making only accretive acquisitions

Adding scale or capability

Management buy-in:

With significant stakes in the Company and
invested in its Purpose

1
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Case Studies

// Manifesto - Diabetes UK

Generating
bigger returns
on event
acquisition
spend

Challenge |

Manifesto’s partnership with Diabetes UK focuses
on helping the charity boost fundraising through
its participation events programme. This is a major
source of fundraising revenue for Diabetes UK,

with sponsorship money from swimmers, runners
and walkers helping fund vital research work and
supporting people with the disease. But with an ad
hoc approach to planning, executing and evaluating
digital acquisition campaigns, the charity was
struggling to systematically improve the return it
saw on digital advertising spend designed to drive
sign ups.

Approach

Working collaboratively across a range of established
and new events, Manifesto is helping Diabetes UK
better plan, execute and gain insight from its paid
search, display and social campaigns. We helped

the charity adopt a more far-sighted approach to
event acquisition, using live reports and custom
dashboards to combine data from a variety of
campaigns and channeis, to gain insight and
optimise activity for maximum value. As well as
maintaining regular contact to develop a shared pool
of strategic insight, were also helping Diabetes UK
trial new channels and technologies, like Spotify Ads,
for reaching and engaging target audiences more
cost effectively.

+227% funds raised
+93% sign ups
+98% average amount raised

the panoply

Impact

During the first two years of the Manifesto and
Diabetes UK partnership, the participation events
programme has raised a projected £2.3m, a 227%
increase over the prior period. The partnership
has also boosted the total number of event
participants by 93% and led to a 98% increase

in the average amount raised per participant.
Continuous knowledge sharing and regular
reviews have also helped Diabetes UK expand
the scope of their paid acquisition to encompass
more channels and execute campaigns with
greater confidence.

“We're really impressed with the
continuous improvernénts Manifesto
have implemented to our paid search,
display and social campaigns over the
past couple of years. It's a pleasure
working with the team and we've
learnt so much from their expertise.

It's brilliant to see our participation
events programme grow so effectively,
and we look forward to our continued
partnership.”

~ Daniel Larcey, Senior Events and Mass
Participation Manager, Diabetes UK




FutureGov - FamilyStory

Improving
outcomes for
families by
radically rethinking
social care

Challenge

Legacy case management systems, focused on
collecting information, are costing local authorities
hundreds of thausands per year in licensing and
maintenance. Social workers achieve amazing things
with families, but are held back by the systems and
technology they work with.

Hammersmith and Fulham, Kensington & Chelsea
and Westminster Children’s Services recognise this
problem and asked FutureGov to help them radically
rethink how technology can support children’s
social care. Together, we've been exploring how we
approach chiid protection in a more user-centred
way, that supports the people working hard to
improve the lives of families and young people, so
that we all help keep children safe.

Approach

During our initial Discovery phase, user research
helped us explore the current experience of social
workers and families. We found that on average,
social workers can spend 60% of their time on a
computer writing, recording and processing data.

With a design-led approach, we started working with
frontline teams across the child protection journey,
from referrals to leaving care. Meeting with a range
of stakeholders, we worked with the councils to

turn insights into a future journey, putting the user's
experience at the heart of the entire service.

Spending time with families and young people, we
sought to understand what it feels like to be using
and going through these services. Challenges around
transparency, having ownership over their story

and tense relationships with practitioners showed

an opportunity to improve the experiences and
relationships for both families and social workers.

We created FomilyStory - a set of simple digital case
management tools for social care that is designed to
meet the needs of social workers, partner agencies
and families.

Impact

FamilyStory reduces the administrative burden
placed on social workers and increases the time
they have available to work directly with families.
FamilyStory aims to increase productivity by up
to 30% and improve the ability for families and
social workers to collaborate by:

- significantly reducing report writing and time
taken on administrative tasks

= improving transparency, increasing the
quality of relationships and trust between
practiticners and families

- improving collaboration between sacial work
teams and other professionals

+ collaboratively building a picture of need,
supporting social workers to manage risk
and informing decisicn-making

“FarmilyStory is really useful, especially
for initial assessrment - the location,
who was there - it all helps. Right now
we do so much copying and pasting
from different places.”

= Social Worker, London Barough of
Hammersmith and Fulham

13
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Case Studies

continued

FutureGov and Notbinary -
Good Work Camden

Helping local
residents to
secure and
sustain good work

Challenge

Camden Council’'s 2025 vision is that jobs will
pay people what they need to earn to live and
businesses will provide jobs flexible for modern
lives. Camden borough has over eleven
thousand council tenant households not in
work, meanwhile, there are growing numbers
of people in work who are struggling to meet
their outgoings.

The Ceuncil wanted to leverage the rich
assets in their borough to widen the impact
of the work of their partners and local suppeort
services. FutureGov was invited to take the
lead in preparing the borough to grow a
support system of services that can help
residents in their job search.

the panoply

Approach

The Good Work Camden project took a whole system
view to improving employment outcomes, working
across the entire employment landscape from
support providers to employers. A human-centred
approach throughout ensured the Camden job
market is inclusive and accessible for all.

Neighbourhood focused: Camden wanted
to extend their employment support via a
neighbourhood approach that was bespoke
to local people and the lives they lead. We
developed a neighbourhood hub, building
neighbourhood profiles, integrating assets,
and ensuring the service serves long terrmn
resident needs.

Strategic collaboration: Residents often found
it hard to know where to go for employment
support. We built an existing collakoration
and joint working amongst providers in the
Employment and Skills Network (ESN), running
ESN workshops, reshaping the existing ESN
format and prioritising opportunity areas.

Digital platform: Before Good Work Camden,
there wasn't one centralised place for
employment support. We ran a provider
workshop and three rounds of resident interviews
and test sessions to understand what information
people need, and how different digital solutions

. could help.

Inclusive business: Residents cn employment
support lacked a clear and consistent path to
move into good work. Inclusive job opportunities
were not readily available, and poor employment
practices meant thot people in low-paid roles
couldn't progress. We ran a literature review

into interventions and ‘good work’ practices,

and conducted research via workshops and
employer interviews to refine the most

promising interventions.

Earn and grow: As of September 2019, over

five thousand households in Camden were in
in-work poverty. The council wanted to design an
intervention for residents for whom the ‘welfare
and work relationship’ presented a fundamental
challenge. Our work in this area was informed
by policy, service design and data: we explored
external exarnples of similar interventions for
inspiration; used a test and learn approach by
engaging with residents to understand their
experience; and used data to understand users
and prioritise ocur work.



Impact

During the first phase of the Good Work
Camden project, we provided the Council with
outcomes within each focus areq, contributing
to their vision of a human-centred approach to
employment within the borough.

Extended the employment support available
in Camden through the development of a
neighbourhood hub and jok hub.

working with the Employment and Skills
Network, we prioritised opportunity areas
and built a clear pathway for residents
receiving employment support.

Presented the Council with four
recommendations arcund a digital platform.
We advised that they conduct more testing
with residents and providers to develop their
ideas for a digital offer, its backend systems,
and how it connects with offline services.

Identified further interventions for Camden
to test and pilot. These included the provision
of free technology devices to enable people
to access the support they need; increasing
access to employment opportunities

and services through free transport; a
discretionary social fund to support single
parents with unexpected costs; and a
support package for residents transitioning -
onto Universal Credit.
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Case Studies

continued

Notbinary - Food Standards Agency

A portfolio of
Discovery projects
to identify potential
improvements to
services

Challenge

At Notbinary we support clients at every point in the
delivery lifecycle, from Discovery through Alpha and
Beta all the way to supporting live services. Working
with the Food Standards Agency {FSA), we led a
pertfolio of Discovery Projects across the organisation
to consider potential improvements to its services.

Befare you commit to building or improving a service,
you need to understand the problem tc be solved.
This means finding out about your users and what
they're trying to achieve, any pain points and where
opportunities to improve things lie. During a Discovery,
it is our responsibility to understand individual user
needs, how the current service operates, and its
systems and data flows.

Approach

The FSA had not been as exposed to the Government
Digital Service standard ways of werking due to falling
cutside of the GOV.UK remit. They therefore wanted

us to help set their internal standards and build their
capability. We worked closely with them to develop

a repeatable and highly efficient, user-focused
appreach to conducting holistic Discoveries across
the agency.

We held 50 qualitative interviews with representatives
from across the FSA. This helped us to understand
key service components in enough detail to analyse
how the people, processes and technology involved
were interacting. Our work ensures that a service will
be built that is more robust and is able to flex to meet
modern standards, and that data can flow and be
used more easily.

Our teams were collocated with the FSA business
tearmns and their Digital, Data & Technology (DDAT)
team. We worked across multiple sites across the
UK; travelling to meet users gt their places of work to
get hands-on experience of being a food business
operator. DDAT colleagues were paired up with key
members of our team to encourage upskilling and
coaching throughout our Discoveries.

the panoply

Impact

Over a year of working with the FSA, we
successfully completed more than a dozen
Discoveries across a vast range of domains
including: incident management and reporting,
allergen reporting, business advice, business
registration and approvals, local authority data
flows, intelligence and survetllance, science
committee content, HR and financial processing,
customer services, field operations and
inspections, and digital badges.

As part of our drive to instill robust and effective
practices for the FSA, we introduced Government
Digital Service standard assessments for our
Discoveries to ensure they were being run

well across the organisation. Another key
development we introduced was working in the
open, documenting our Discovery findings as

we went. This meant that our research, insights
and analysis was constantly available to all to
scg, comment on and challenge. This heiped
with getting feedback as early as possible and
negated any surprises at the final playback
sessions. It also helps open up our research to
the wider digital community who can access our
open repositories.



Human+ - UCL

Driving efficiency
savings in higher
education with
intelligent automation

Challenge

HR Services at University College London (UCL)
were interested in the potential benefits Intelligent
Robotic Process Automation (RPA) could bring to their
department. The team dealt with many repetitive,
manual tasks, and faced large fluctuations in
workload throughout the year, leading to additional
stress and the need to hire temporary workers. The
characteristics of these processes were ideal for
Intelligent RPA, but the university had little or no
experience with automation solutions, and staff
were understandably wary of a potential threat to
their jobs.

Approach

Human+ worked with HR Services at UCL to select
and implement two automation solutions in the

first quarter of 2019. Aware of the need to get all

staff on beard with the project, the team selected a
widely unpopular process as the first contender for
autemation. This dealt with payrell for casual werkers
= a manuadl, repetitive task which consisted of making
1500-2000 one-off payments per month. A human
employee was capable of approving around 100
payments per day, but no one enjoyed completing
this task and it was always put off until the last
minute.

When speaking to departmental staff about the
technology, HR leaders were careful to position
Intelligent RPA as an automation solution - capable
of relieving them of unpleasant tasks - rather than

a meore threatening sounding “robot”. The team
collectively named their RPA solution “Barbara”,
quickly coming to see it as another member of staff
who could take care of the jobs no one wanted to do..

Impact

Barbara was particularly impactful in helping
the team to deal with fluctuations in workload.
In Octaber, for example, payroll volumes at the
university typically double in value, making

it difficult for the HR tearn to cope. When
Barbara was built, every new staff member was
successfully added to the October payroll on
time - a feat which had never been achieved
before.

The automation of the payroll process resulted in
a yearly saving of approximately 750 employee
hours in the HR department. When combined
with the second automation solution which

dealt with the resignation process for staff - the
HR team saved around 1000 hours annually.

As a result they worked less overtime in busy
periods and temporary staff costs were reduced.
As testament to the success of this project,

a Continuous improvement team has been
created within the UCL shared service centre and
two finance solutions have already been buiilt
with Intelligent RPA. The team is also now working
to take the technology in-house by training their
own RPA developer.

« 1000 employee hours
saved

« October payroll
successfully completed for
the first time ever

» “Barbarathe bot” became
a central part of the team

17
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Chairman’s Statement

| am delighted with the continued
progress that the Group has
made this year. As set out in

last year's annual report, the
Group's strategy was to scale up
the business through accretive
acquisitions, whilst investing

in the group companies to
accelerate our competitive edge.
| am pleased to confirm that we
have executed on this strategy
well, as demonstrated through
our enhanced services offering,
notable new contract wins and
good financial performance.

the panoply

We acquired best-of-breed businesses FutureGov and
Amea in the year, adding technology services business
Arthurly to the Group poest period. Through these actions,
together with continual internal development, we have
cemented The Panoply’s position in the public sector. We
provide a truly compelling offering in this space, with the
breadth of capability and expertise to be able tc take

on the most well-regarded industry heavyweights,

and to win.

The digital transformation market has continued to
develop throughout the year and has undoubtedly
accelerated since March 2020 as companies respond

to the Covid-19 crisis. We are at the cutting edge of new
developments with strength in many key technologies of
the future, such as conversational Al and robotic process
autcmation, and have seen these grow in importance. As
a progressive, future-facing company we will continue to
embrace new ideas.

Qur purpose

The Panoply continues to be a purpose-driven company,
seeking to help people and organisations navigote the
challenges presented in the modern era. Itis increasingly
important for companies to take responsibility for their
actions in supporting ervironmental and social maobility
and change for the better. | am proud to say that the
motivation to help our clients achieve this is o huge
driver for our teams and a key differentiator from many
of our peers.

The Group's entire Board fully supports this purpose and
endorses initiatives such as The Panoply's employee
volunteer progrommes and annual Community Action
Bay, which provides staff with the skills and time that
they need to contribute to a purpese that they feel
strongly about.

As stated last year, the Group focuses on four key areas
within its Sustainable Futures work. The four aregs are:
helping communities to thrive in a digital future; making
the techindustry fair and accessible; putting employee
wellbeing first; and minimising cur environmental impact.
in order to provide transparency and accountability, the
Group has published targets set in 2019 and the progress
made against them in 2020, these can be found on page
27 and 37. It was particutarly pleosing to see that 116 of our
employees logged a total of 904 hours of donated work
across 37 different community investment activities over
the year.

We are foaking to build on the success of our purpose
led approach to date through closer olignment to the UN
Sustainability Development Goals (SDGs) going forward.
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Corporate governance

The Group's risk management is up to date and
appropriate and the Board will cantinue to monitor
its principal risks as events concerning Covid-19 and
the wider economy unfold. The Panoply’s Board has
committed to a corporate governance approach
commensurate with more mature businesses and
has applied the principles set out in the QCA code to
the Group.

We highly value our shareholders, for whom we are
ultimotely seeking to deliver volue which has been
achieved with purpose. Therefore, we deem it o priority
to keep all shareholders up-to-date and engaged and
we gre committed to transparency in all our corporate
communications.

People

! would like to take this opportunity to thank our team for
their continued commitment throughout this year, and
to weicome the FutureGov, Ameo and Arthurly teams to
the Group. The growth of the business has undoubtediy
been ossisted by the dedication of our staff, whilst the
centinued high level of new contract wins and cross-
selling of services is testament to the strength ot our
service offering, talented consultants and customer
relationships.

Despite the difficult period that the world has recently
entered, our team hos worked tirelessly to continue to
service customers, in o safe and efficient manner, and
| am extremely grateful for everyone’s effort and
ongeing support.

Outlook

At the time of writing this, the Covid-19 pondemic has
altered thé world as we know it. The Group has done very
well to not only withstond this extremne period of market
uncertainty, but also te grow during this time, We are
pleased to have continued to win new ¢lients and to
deliver a high ievels of work to our existing clients.

Looking forward, as The Panoply benefits from the growth
and enhanced service offering it has created, we have a
clear opportunity to take on our monolithic competitors
with projects on an even greater scole, delivered at speed
and to an outstanding quality. We glso continue to ook
for best-in-Class comMpanies to join the Group through
acquisition.

1 arn confident that we have the right resources and
management team in place to enable the Company to
deliver growth in line with our commercial vision, which
will ultimately create greater value for all our stakeholders.

DocuSigned by:
Mark Smith .
Chairman M SMIHL
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Chief Executive's Review

The year to 31 March 2020 was
transformative for the Group,

as we made great strides to
cement our position as a leading
alternative provider of digital
transformation to the UK public
services sector. [t was our first
full 12 month period as a public
company, and as such sets the
benchmark for which all future
performance can be compared,
with full PLC and central costs
for the whole period, along with
normalised market salaries for
the incoming entrepreneurs.

The year also proved our
collaboration model with £8.9m
of revenue (28% of total) spread
across 51 client projects involving
two or more group companies.
Collaboration is now a way of
life across the group and paves
the way for the next phase of
our journey, described in more
detail below.

1. Revonue growth caleulated against tha normalised revenus InFY19 of £221m. Normalised
rasults for comparatives are preparad on the assumption that tha four Inltial compaonlas
ccqulred at IPO wora owned for full pariod and the results of subsaquent ocquisitions
from the date of complstion adjustad far normallsed salarigs and banuses and the sama
cantral casts as raported in the currant yeor,

2 Normalised adjusted £B!TDA Is ¢ non-IFRS measure that the Company uses to mecsue
Its performanca and is defined s eamings before Interest, toxatlon, deprectation ond
cmortisation and cffar agdd back of costs reiated to ecquisitions, restructuring and other
one off costs mode by the Group, folr value odjustmants, share-based payment chorges
and pre IFRS 18 odjustmants.

the panoply

Alongside our strategic progress we delivered a robust
financial performance with both revenue and adjusted
EBITDA up 5% on consensus forecasts. Our acquisition
strategy produced significant revenue growth, up 43%' to
£31.6m in the year, with normalised adjusted EBITDA2 up
62% to £3.4m {2019: £221m revenue and £2.1m adiusted
EBITDA). The statutory 2019 comparatives are revenue

of £8.2m, adjusted EBITDA of £0.4m and operating loss
of £1.6m. The 2020 operating loss is £3.0m. See financial
review for more detail. Had both the acquisition of Ameo
and FutureGov been included from the beginning of the
year, revenue would be up 79% and adjusted EBITDA up
136% against 2019 normalised numbers.

The statutory loss after tax increased by 76% to £3.0m
(2019 £1.7m). The adjusted profit after tax was £27m
(2019: £0.2m). The Directors believe that this ‘adjusted
profit after tax’ measure is most representative of the
underlying performance of the Group. To arrive at
adjusted results, adjustments made include acquisition
expenses, amortisation related to acquired intangibles
and share-based payments, the impact of fair value
adjustments and IFRS 16 adjustments along with the
corresponding tax impact of the adjustments.

Net cash generated from operations before tax and
including IFRS 16 lease payments was £2.1m, delivering
a cash conversion ratio* of 91%. Adjusted EBITDA margin
for the year was 18% after accounting for investments
made in our automation businesses (hurman+ and
GreenShoot Labs).

Following a year of major developments to our
operations, we now have all the right pieces in place to
execute on our exciting growth strategy. We also now take
this opportunity to lay out our commercial vision, detailed
further below, based around the core ambition to achieve
significant profitable growth over the next three years.

Growth strategy

From inception, the vision of the Group was to bring
together a panoply of companies and skills in order to
provide an entrepreneurial, full service capability at scale
to deliver outcomes to large clients ot a fraction of the
cost and time of their traditional suppliers. This year saw
us deliver on that vision with approximately 400 members
of staff and capabilities ranging from hyperscale cloud
transformations, robotic process autornation and Al,
through to organisation and service design. During the

. Comparative normakised adjusted EBITDA figures cre calcuioted using the sama principtes

as current yacr adjusted for normolised salartas ond bonusas ond the $oma cantral Costs
as raportad In the currant year.

. Coshconvarsion is colculated based on cash from oparations pre lox and pra IFRS 18

odjustments ond adjusted profit bafore tox figutes which Includea adjutiments mades for
.amortisction related to acquired intangibies, share-based payments, Ihe impact of 1air
volue adjustments and IFRS 18 odjustments.



Covid-19 pandemic, the Group is proud to have not
furloughed any stoff and kept all staff on full pay.

Itis clear we are now at a scdle where we are trusted
to deliver mission critical programmes of work and we
see that credibility increasing as we grow further. It is
clear to us that our time is now, as the UK Government
recognises that it is time to address the stranglehold of
the incurnbent suppliers to deliver better outcomes for
service users and better value for toxpayers.

As always, we foster an envirenment where we will
continue to atract high colibre practitioners ond
where the entrepreneurialism of our leadership teams
continues to flourish. We work with clients in a way
which is both end-to-end and coliaborative, separating
eurselves from our peers.

Cementing our position in the public sector

We coempleted two major acquisitions in the year, both
predominantly in the public sector:

+  FutureGov Limited, a leader in digital service design;
and

+  Amec Professional Services Ltd, a consultancy
specialising in delivering business change

Following these acquisitions we are now in a position
to offer a true end to end offering to our clients,
particularly in public services, ranging from strategy

. and organisational and service design throughto a
full complement of technology skills including full stack
software development, datg, Al and automation.

Finoncially, both hove performed in line with
expectations since acquisition but their true value

has been far higher. With reference clients such as
Buckinghamshire Council, Camden Council, MHCLG,
food Standards Agency, DVLA, UK riydrographics Office,
NHS, UCL and many others, we are naw able to prove
that we are an alternative to the incumbent suppliers
and provide much needed innovation in a sector now
eager to embrace new models of delivery and new
partners to assist them.

64% (£20.m) of revenue in the year came from the
public sector (2019: 56%, £12.3m normalised) from

a wide range of projects ranging from hyperscale
cloud migration programmes through to high level
organisational change initiatives. This would have
reached 68% of 2020 revenues if Ameo and FutureGov
were included for the full year.

Example projects include:

+  Transitioning legacy on premise systems to an
open source cloud based model for the Ministry
of Housing, Communities and Local Government

. Launching a public service modernisation
programme for Trafford Council

+  Automating pharmacy processes for NHS Wales

+  Implementation of a chatbot based Clearing
process for Brunel University

= Building an audience centred digital strategy
for NSPCC

Consolidating our end to end propositions under
two full stack brands: FutureGov and Foundry4

Now that we can offer an end-to-end service and
provide case studies of our experience in doing so, we
have been warking to position FutureGov (FG) as our
change-ied brand and introduce Foundry4 (F4) as our
technology-fed brand. Both are positioned to win larger,
rmuiti-miliion-pound opportunities by presenting the
entire capability of the Group under a single brand but
with distinct messaging selling to differing audiences.
in FutureGov’s case, the audience is typically CEC/COO
type economic buyers looking at digital transformation
through the lens of organisational change and end-
to-end service design including technology, whereas
Foundry4 is focused on CTO/CIOs iooking to enable
digital transformation through the adoption of hyper
scale cloud, data analytics, machine learning and
automation. The two brands will have their own distinct
messaging and brand premise aimed at those two sets
of buyers.

Our other brands will continue to operate in their own
right but wili assist with sales opportunities that both
FG and F4 uncover as required. Both FG and F4 and ail
other brands will adopt a visual identity that provides a
strong family link between each other to faciiitate even
greater levels of leverage and collaboration.

Winning large scale, high profile engagements

Over the period we have won and delivered numerous
bigh profile engagements, several with public sector
clients, It is important to note that many of these
contracts are multi-disciplinary and could only have
been won through several group companies working
together interchangeably.

Examples of collaborative projects with wide reaching
impact include work with NHSx, the Food Standard
Agency, Camden Council, British Film Institute and mony
others. Over the year more than one company worked
on a client engagement for over 51 customers out of

a total of 265, representing 19% of clients and £8.9m

of revenue.
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Chief Executive's Review

continued

Post period end we have seen our teams secure
centracts which will extend our influence even further.

For example, through the previously announced US$5.2m
centract with a large, global philanthropic organisation,
which will see FutureGov advising EU capital ¢cities, and
our werk on the Government’s major Towns Fund project,
which will impact 100 towns across the UK. Our brand’
strategy as outlined obove is designed to further facilitate
the winning of these types of larger engagements.

Robust, recurring performance in commercial sector

36% of revenue came from the commercial sector in

the period {reducing to 32% of revenues when a full year
of FutureGov and Ameo’s revenue is included). Of that,
approximately two thirds is recurring revenue from clients
like News UK, Funding Circle, Cargill ond Dow Jones (post
period end win). The roster of recurring revenue clients
has now successfully transitioned from largely SMEs 2-3
years ago to mainly large scale corporate clients today.

Post pericd end we were contracted to help build Times
Radic as part of a £1.5m contract over the next 12 months.
This dermonstrates the scale of commercial work the
Group is involved with, co-creating with its clients and
working alongside client team members but also taking
responsibility for specific workstreams.

Previous investments demonstrating strong progress

In the previous financial year we invested in Greenshoot
Lobs (conversational Al) and human+ (robotic process
automation). Both of these businesses have since gained
excellent momentum and together generated £1.4m
revenue in the year, over 800% up on the previous year
(FY2019: £0.2m). Clients include UCL, NHS wales, Defence
Science and Technology Lab, Avaya and Mitel to name
but a few.

Their achievements demonstrate the success of

The Panoply’s strategy to expand its portfolio of
complementary businesses, both organically and
through targeted investments, offering a diversified range
of services and creating synergies to maximise value. We
anticipote that these two startups will together generate
meaningful revenues during the current financial year,
from a standing start in Aprii 2019.

the panoply

Our Covid-19 response

Of course, a key event came in the latter part of the
financial year as the Covid-19 crisis hit. Having flagged
the risk relatively early and putting the welfare of our
teams first, the Group instigated work from home plans
during the week commencing 8 March 2020, two clear
weeks ahead of UX Government instructions to do sc.
As expected from a cloud native 2lst century company,
the transition was straightforward, and we saw no loss
in praductivity during that time. The head start over
our clients enabled us to perfect how we would deliver
remote workshops so projects could continue as normal.
staff utilisation remained stable at approximately 70%.

We are also proud to have assisted in the Covid-19
emergency effort, building a personal protective
equipment (*PPE") stock level dashkboard fer North

East London NHS Trust, building a system to bring
rmanufacturers together to manufacture ventilators,
creating a system and processes for Camden Council to
ensure shielding residents received the assistance they
needed and supporting the Competition and Markets
Authority via the Department for Business, Energy &
Industrial Strategy to create a system which allows
businesses to be held to account for unfair behaviour
during the crisis.

To support aur tearmns, we set up an employee assistance
programme, and encouraged any under-utilised staff to
volunteer in their communities. We have not furloughed
any staff and have kept all staff on full pay. Thanks to our
robust performance we were able to make the decision
not to take government aid and believe this will provide
us with greater financial flexibility in the future, particularty
around potential for introducing a progressive

dividend policy.

The Group continues to ciosely monitor and manage

its costs in a prudent fashion. As at 31 March 2020 the
Group's financial position showed retoined cash reserves
of approximately £4.6m and a net debt’ position of £0.4m.
As of 30 June 2020 the Group held £6.8m? of cash and
cash generation is expected to remain strong. As one
right expect with high quality clients such as those the
Group works with, we have not suffered from any bad
debts and all debtors in the year to date are within their
usual payment profiles. As the Covid-19 crisis started and
following the year end the Group has agreed o £1.5m
overdraft facility with HSBC which is currently unutilised.

1. Net dabtis calculated os cash balances less borrowings.
2. Actuol cosh at £8.8m taking into account £2.0m of deferred statutory taxes (VAT, PAYE and
National Insurance} that is being paid down in the current quartar.
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The impact on digital transformation

As businesses across the globe are now finding out,
digital transtarmation goes beyond simply working trom
home. It means genuine changes to your operating
model and ongoing strategic delivery, inextricably linked
with embracing new technologies.

We believe that the impact of the pandemic will be te
accelerate widespread understanding and demand for
our services. Dunng the pondemic we have proven our
ability 10 compléte entire projects, from design througn
to delivery, in an agite way over a very short timeframe,
Once clients have seen our teams’ capacity to do this,
they cannot unsee it. They will not go back to being
satisfied with the long ond unwieldy projects offered
by our monolithic competitors. This is a change for the
long term. Indeed, this hos olready been recognised

at the highest levels of HM Government. At his Ditchley
Lecture, delivered on 27 June 2020, The Rt Han Michael
Gove MP said:

‘Il is a cliché to say of Government
that no-one ever last their job for
recommending the contract go to IBM...
We need to move to a system where
those who propose the innovative, the
difterent, the challenging, are given
room to progress and, if necessary, fail.
But we must then ensure that we learn
quickly, adjust and respond.”

Evidence indead that sufficient public sector buyers are
aware that the best outcome ore often delivered by
engaging mid-sized partners. This is distinct from srall
who are typically too small, or very large, who maore
often than not are slow, expensive and do not deliver.

Commercial vision

We take this opportunity te lay out a six step commercial
vision which we aspire to achieve over the next three
years:

- Weaim to produce 10% to 15% organic revenue
growth per annum

+ We aim for ¢.70% of operating profit dropping
through into positive cash flow to generate
significant cash reserves

+  We oim to use this cash to set up a progressive
dividend policy for shareholders at approximately
15%-20% of netincome

sV 111777

+  We aim to use o mixture of positive cash flow
and our listed shares to make further earnings
enhancing acquisitions to add more than £35m of
revenue

- Given our size and scale we believe that liquidity is
important ond will therefore aim to keep leverage
iow at betow Ix EBITDA

. On this basis we aim to achieve a run rate revenue
of £100m by March 2023 and deliver £12m-£14m
ERITOA

Current trading and outlook

Coming into the current financial year, the Group had

a confirmed backlog deliverable in the year, including
annualised recurring revenue, of approximately £i5m.
The first quarter of FY202! has been strong, and, as
previously reported, we sow £13m of new contracts
signed in the three months to 30 June 2020 Revenue for
the first three months was £10.0m with adjusted EBITDA
of £1.7m, up 10% and 54% respectively on o true like-for-
like bosis. Cash balonces as at 30 June 2020 was £6.8m
{after taking into account £2m of deferred statutory
taxes that is being poid down in the currént quarter)
with £2.3m ¢ash inflow in the period.

With our operating system and our two full stack brands
in place, we are now in a very strong position to address
the market opportunity ahead of us and drive true like-
far-like organic growth.

In addition, we will continue to target acquisitions that
will add to our capabilities or help us further strengthen
our position within the UK public services maorket. As
mentioned above, all future capabilities, brought into
the Group either through acquisitions or through internal
investment, will immediately be made available through
either the FG ar F4 brands to further facilitate integration.

We face the future with a great deal of excitement over
whot is to come. Having completed 10 acquisitions and
launched one stort up over the last 20 months, we have
the breadth of capabillity and sufficient size to become
a true challenger in the UK public services sector.

Our attention now turns to the build phase, dialling in
predictable arganic growth, improving mergins and
ensuring strong ¢ash conversion. We will continue to
look for acquisitions thot add to our capobilities or our
reach in o particular sub-sector of UK public services,
oithough moving forwards, they will be integrated more
fully to further leverage our scale benetits, yet ali the
while retaining that all important entrepreneurialism.
We are convinced that our time is Now.

Neal Gandhi
Chief Executive Officer

18 August 2020
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Financial Review

The results for the year reflect
the first full year of The Panoply
as a revenue generating entity
having completed the IPO and
its first four acquisitions eight
months into the prior period. As
such numbers for the current
year are compdred against
normalised numbers (referenced
as “Normalised”) or statutory
numbers (referenced as “Stat”)
as most appropriate. Normalised
numbers are used where the
Directors believe it provides d
mMore appropriate measure
when comparing the year on
year performance of the Group.
All numbers are also reported
before the impact of IFRS 16.

The Panoply reported revenue of £31.5m (2019: £22.1m
Normalised) representing an increase of 43%. The
increase in revenue reflects organic growth as well as
the acquisitions of FutureGov in June 2018 ond Ameo in
March 2020. 64% of revenue in the period related to
public services, up from 56% in the prior period on a
normalised basis.

Actud! statutory revenue for 2020 represents an increase
of 284% compared to 2019 statutary revenue of £8.2m. This
is as a result of the benefit of a full year's worth of trading
compared 1o 4 months of trading as a Graup in 2019,

We continued to see a large amount of repeat business
from customers, with 70% of customers billed in FY2020
also billed in FY2019.

Gross Margins remained strong at 38% against prior year
41%. The reduction was largely as a result of a strong
performance of our dedicated tearms business that
whilst providing longer term contracts also attracts lowey
gross margins than other parts of the Group as well as
investrents made into Human+ and Greenshoot Labs.

the panoply

Adjusted EBITDA was £3.4m up from £2.1m in 2018
{Normalised). After removing the investrments into
loss making subsidiaries, normalised adjusted EBITDA
pre central costs was up 65% to £3.8m (2019: £2.3m
Normalised). Statutory operating loss was £3.0m
(2019: £1.6m) due ta the reasons noted in more

detail below.

Central costs in the period were £1.9m meaning that
the underlying EBITDA of our subsidiaries after removing
investments into loss making subsidiaries was up 73% to
£57m (2019: £3.3m Normalised).

The statutory loss after tax pre IFRS 16 increased by

76% to £3.0m (2019: £1.7m Stat). The loss for the year

has increased due to an increase in loss on fair value
movement in contingent consideration and an increase
in amertisation of intangibles offset by a decrease

in costs due to listing and acquisitions. The Directors
believe that an ‘adjusted profit before tax’ measure is
more representative of the underlying performance of
the Group. To arrive at adjusted results, adjustments
made include acquisition expenses, amortisation refated
to acquired intangibles and share-based payments

the impact of fair value adjustments and IFRS 16
adjustrnents along with the corresponding tax impact
of the adjustments.The following table summarises the
adjustmenits:

2020 2018

£°000s £'000s
Statutory loss before tax (3,140} (1.638)
Amortisction of intangible
assets relating to acquisitions 1,558 339
Loss on fair value moverment of
contingent consideration 3,764 b4
Share-based poyments 129 239
Costs refating to acquisition,
restructuring and listing 591 1,352
IFRS 16 adjustment 3 -
Adjusted profit before tax 2,933 348
Tax (including impact of
amoertisation and costs relating
to acquisition, restructuring and
listing adjustments) (230} {(105)
Adjusted profit after tax 2,703 242
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As aresult of the acquisitive nature of the Group

and its earn out model, the Directors believe that an
adjusted shore count for the purposes of calculating
earnings per share is required. As such the Directors
calcukate an adjusted diluted share number by taking
the weighted average basic shares ond including the
maximum shares to be issued in respect of contingent
consideration to be paid based on performonce
measures met in the period, together with the maximum
Share-based payments cutstanding. The following toble
summarises the adjustments:

2020 2019
£°000s £'000s
Weighted averoge basic
shares 48,162 18,186
Shares reloting 1o future
contingent consideration 22774 14,666
Shares retating to
Share-based payments 3,885 3,928
74,821 36,780
Adjusted diluted earnings
per share {pence) 38 07

Based on these alternative non GAAP measurss the
Group achieved adjusted profit after tax of £27m (2019:
£0.2rm) resulting in earnings per share of 3.68p (2019: 0.7p).
The statutory loss per share for the period was 6.3p
(2019: 9.2p Stat).

Net cash generated from operations betore tax and
including IFRS 18 lease payments was £2.)m. Cash
conversion, calculated by reference to the adjusted
profit befare tax but after deducting costs relating to
acquisition and restructuring was 81%. This is despite
record debtor and accrued income levels as at 31 March
2020 caused by an incredibly strong final quarter.

In total, cash decreased in the year from £57m to £4.6m
as a result of the acquisitions of Ameo and FutureGov.
The cash cansideration for the acquisitions was £8.6m
with £2 4m raspectively being funded from the Group’s
cash reserves, £2.2m funded from ¢ash acquired ond
£5.0m funded through a new revolving credit focility put
in place during the year with HSBC. This results in the
Group having a smali net debt at year end of £0.4m.

Additional consideration

As a result of the strong performaonce of Group
companies during the current and prior period, further
consideration is payable and will be satisfied through
the issue of new ordinary shares. The total value ot
consideration that is currently payable is £12.1m resulting
in maximum further shores to be issued totalling 22.8m.

Moax shares to

value Minimum be issued
£°000s share price £'000s
15,262 074 20,624
219 . 0.825 285
1,649 0.87% 1,885
17,130 22,774
The expacted timeframe for the additional
consideration to be paid is set out below.
upto Bayond

12 Mmonths post
publication of
annuol repart

£000s

10 days post 12 months past
pubtication of  publication of
aanual teport annual report

E'000s £'000s

Tatat
E°000s

Consideration

paymants 12,130

6,562 B0 2,45

Doculigned y:
— D72DA44571AD429...
Oliver Rigby
Chief Financial Officer

18 August 2020
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Sustainable
Futures

The Panoply is committed to creating
sustainable change in our world by
enabling communities and organisations
to be more effective in shaping inclusive,
equitable and productive societies.

The past few years have seen social and
environmentai concerns pushed up the
corporate agenda, as oerganisations

have increasingly woken up to their
responsibilities beyond pure shareholder
profit. We now see businesses committing.
to initiatives around the UN’s Sustainable
Development Goals, fostering increased
diversity in talent pipelines, and making a
positive impact in the local communities
in which they operate.

The Panoply was founded as a values-
driven business. Our values are the glue
that bonds us together; a shared outiook
on the world that underpins our culture,
our principles, and everything we do. In
times of uncertainty we — as all other
businesses - must look to these core
values for guidance.

the panoply




Sustainable Development Goals

Our sustainable futures strategy is aligned with the UN Sustainable Development Goals.
We contribute towards these goals through the work we do with our clients, through the jobs
we create, through_the investments we make in our wider communities and through the way

in which we protect the environment.

We have integrated information on our work that aligns to the SDGs throughout this report.
The table below show the targsts and indicaters we are committed to contributing to.

Target

4.4 By 2030, substantially increase the number of youth and adults
wha have relevant skills, Inctuding technical and vocotional skills, for
smploymant, dacent jobs and entrepreneurship

4.7 By 2030, ensura all leamers acquire knowladge and skills neaded
to promote sustoinable davalopmant, including amaong othars
through education for sustainabte development end sustainable
lifestyles, hurnan rights, gender equality, promoticn of a culture

of peace and non-violanca, global citizenship, and appraciation

of cultural diversity ond of cultures centribution to sustainable
davelopmant

5.5 Ensure women's full and effactive participaticn and aquat
opportunities for leadarship at all levels of decisian-making in
pelitical, economic, and public life

81 Sustain per capita economic growth in accordance with national
circurnstances and, in particular, at least 7 per cent gross domestic
product growth per annum in the least developed countries

82 Achieva higher tevels of economic productivity through
diversification, technological upgrading and innavation, incluging
through a focus on high-value added and labour-intensive sectors

8.3 Promote development-oriented policies thot support productive
activitios, decent job creation, entreprensurship, craeativity and
infevation, and encourage the formalization and growth of micro-,
senall- and medium-sizad enterprises, including through access to
financial senvices

8.4 lmprove progressively, thraugh 2030, global rasource efficiancy in
consumption and production and sndeavour te decouple econamic
growth from environmentol degradaticn, in occordance with tha
10-year framaework of programmes on sustainable consumption and
production, with developed countries taking the lead

8.5 By 2030, achieve full and productive employment and decent
work far all wormnen and men, including for young people and
persons with disabilities, and equat pay ter work of equct vaiue

8.6 By 2020, substentially reduce the proportion of youth notin
employmant, education or training

8.7 Toke immadiate and effective measures to eradicote forced
labour, end modetn slavery and human trafticking and secure
the prehibition ond elimination of the worst forms of child labour,
Including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end
<hild tabour in all its forms

10.2 By 2030, emmpower and promote the social, economic and
pelitical inclusion of allirrespective of age, sex, disability, roce,
ethnicity, origin, religien or economic or other status

Indicotor

Programs and processes to ensure the
availability of a skiled workforce

Sustainability initiatives designed to raise
awareness, shara knowledge and impact
bshavior change

Femaie share of employrent in senior
rmonagement
Number of famale board members

Dirgct economic value generated ond
distributed

Revenue andfor (net) value added.
tax payments

Number, type and impact of physical and
technological legocies

Significant indirect ecanemic impacts,
including Lhe exlent of impacts

Company policies and/or structured
programmes for: i} training i) access to
finance

Estimated number of micro, small ond
madium anterprises {MSMES) with
significant increases in revenua and
employment gansration as a rasult of the
initiative Thase are existing MSMEs that
received training, financing, linkagas with
supply chain or other contributions from
tha company

Energy Intensity rotio

Scope 1 & 2 emissions and enargy
consumption by country/ragion
Reduction of snergy consumption

Breokdown of employees per employee
category according to gender, minority
group membership, and other indicaters of
diversity

Explicitty recognize payment of living wage

Investrments made in youth training ond
employability skills

Meosures taken by the argonizotion in the
reporting period intended to contribute to
the effective obelition of child labor.
Company modern slavery siatement

Type and impacts of intiotives to create an
accessible environment

Ratio of basic salery and remuneration of
women to men

Page
number

37.38

29,3238

24-25

-7

36-39

33

28,390,31

37-38

3l

28-29
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Sustainable Futures
People

Sustainable
Futures for
our people

the panoply

9%

of the senior positions
within The Panoply are
filled by women.

Inclusive workplaces

The Panoply airms to ensure sustainable futures
for all our people through the creation of inclusive
and nurturing workplaces where employees

can achieve personat and professional growth
irrespective of age, sex, disability, race, sthnicity;,
origin, religion or economic or other status.

The Group prides itself on being able to deploy
uniquely diverse teams ta clients, made up of
ditferent personailities, opinions and capabilities.

The Group will voluntarily publish its pay gap
results each year to hold itself accountable to
closing the gap. Our mean and median pay gap
is currently 16% ond 17% respectively, Wa are proud
that, whilst only 5% of the leadership roles in tech
in the UK are held by women, they make up 39% of
the senior positions within The Panoply.




our commitments

Last year we did a baseline diversity and inciusion (D&I)
survey to assess the current make-up of the business.
Using the resuilts of that survey we set ourselves some
targets and made commitrnents in order to help us
achieve them.

To deliver unconscious bias training for all

hiring managers

We went beyond just hiring managers and rolled out
the training for all interested employees. The training
was delivered by local facilitators and over a third of the
Group's workforce have participated to date.

To ensure thot the interview process is consistent
and objective

Qur HR teams have been working to ensure that the whole
recruitment process is consistent and objective by:

- lntroducing blind CVs at shortlist stages

+  Setting diversity requirements for applicants at
shaortlisting stoge

. Ensuring that the interview panels are diverse

+  Having a consistent and transparent approach to
salary decisions

To creote networking opportunities for
under-represented Groups within the business

We piloted a global LGBT netwoerk this year by elevating
an existing, self-organised group within the business.

The network exists to influence policy and cuiture ond to
ensure that The Pancply is an inclusive, safe-space for the
LGBT community. We intend to roll cut this mode! for other
groups within the company, focusing this year on black
talent and working parents.

To invest in a pipeline of diverse talent through
partnerships and volunteering

we have looked to diversify our recruitment channels
this year, in part by strengthening our relationships with
community partners. wWe take ¢ long-term approach

to investing in our talent pipeline and therefore are
sponsoring talent from secondary school age onwards.
Further details can be found on pages 37 and 38.

2020
(actual)

2020

2019 (target)

Toincrease
reprasentation of people
from BME backgrounds* 17% 20 6%

To increase female
representation in senior
roles

32% 37% 39%

To increase the
represantation of those
from less privileged
backgrounds (Lower

middle class and below) 19% 24% 28%

To increqase
representation of people
with a disability Q% 5% 3%

To increase female
directors on company
boards

26% 30% 32%

29
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People continued

This year we took a deeper dive not only into our diversity
metrics but alsc our inclusivity indicators by exploring the
current attitude and sense of belonging of key diverse
groups. Through an anonymous global staff survey we
have established an inclusivity score for employees from
different groups to identify where the gaps are and to see
where we need to be focusing our attention. These scores
were taken from an average of four inclusivity responses
scored out of 5. ’

Overall inclusivity score

4.25

Scored outof 5

We broke down the inclusivity scores to compare the
following employees:

*  BAME vs white

- With disability vs without disability

. women vs men

»  LGBT vs heterosexual

= Working class vs middle class background

the panoply

In all instances the latter, ‘dominant’ group scored more
highly than the underrepresented groups. The largest
disparities were between BAME/white employees and
those with a disability. wWe will work to close the gap so
that gl employees are able to experience the same sense
of inclusion and belonging at work. This in turn will help

us to achieve an authentically diverse and representative
workforce.

2021 targets

When setting diversity targets The Panoply values a
iong-term view with short term focus. It understands

that what gets measured gets done and will therefore
invest in making its annual diversity and inclusion reports
comprehensive, transparent and public.

Long-term, with continued investrment in inclusivity
for all staff, the group believes that it will achieve true
representation of the diverse communities in which it
operates. In the short term, it will set more focussed
data-based targets by leveraging employee
demographics, surveys and market segmentation

to identify the gaps and opportunities.

= Toincrease representation of people from BAME
backgrounds®* in senior positions W 20%

+ Toincrease representation of people with a disability
to 5%

- To close the inclusivity gop** between white and
BAME employees

+ Teincrease female representation for senijor roles to
44%

*UK anly
** The gap is currently 0.58pts. Scorad out of 5 from an average of 4 indicators.




Employee wellbeing

The Pancply prides itself on providing decent
employment for its people and is constantly looking for
ways in which it can improve the mental, physical and
financial wellbeing of its staff. Each office within the Group
pays above the living wage to every employee and
delivers a programme of culturcily relevant wellbeing
initiatives. It measures the success of this work through

a bi-annual employee satisfaction survey. Overall, our
employee satisfacticn score this year was 7.5/10.

we will target all business areas to achieve an average
satisfaction score of 8.0.

As well as job satisfaction, the emotional wellbeing of its
people whilst at work is another priority for the business.
This year it has trained and mobilised a team of mentat
health first giders across its offices and launched an
employee assistance programme for all staff. The
average employee wellbeing score was 7.2/10.

Human rights

Upholding hurman rights, particularly worker rights, is a
core priority at The Panogly. This year it took the steps to
address the risk of human trofficking and modern slavery
including;

- Promoting awareness of modern skavery through the
distribution of training materials in all offices

+  Compieting a risk assessment of all global suppliers
using the vuinerability guidelines from the 2019 Globa!
Siavery Index

+  Publishing a full modern slavery statement

3
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Sustainable Futures

Planet

Sustainable
Futures for
our planet

Our planet is being irrevocably
changed by humans. To meet
the Paris agreement obligations,
human emissions need to reduce
year on year by 8% for the next
decade. The Iatest calculations
from the Breakthrough Institute
shows that our emissions will be
reduced by about that amount
in 2020 because of the Covid-19
lockdown. This demonstrates the
scale of the issue.

the panoply

The digital industry that The Panoply operates within
is a significant, yet not widely undérstood, contributor
to the climate and ecological emergency. The most
widely accepted, and peer reviewed research by
Ericson Research (2018), shows that between 2010-
2015 the global digital industry was responsible for
1.4% of global ernissions. This puts it on o par with the
aviation industry. The Panoply company websites
have contributed almost a tonne of CO2e to our
overall emissions of 128.29 tonnes of CO2Ze.

Our actions
In this financial year we:

+ increased the breadth and depth of our
carbon reporting;

»  welcomed external speakers to educate us
on the graveness of the climate situation;

matched leave for people attending the
September climate strikes;

supported our companies in building
environmental impact products and services;

+  empowered our passionate teams to make
changes to reduce our impact, ond;

+  promoted one of the team to lead on
measuring, offsetting and reducing our
carbon footprint.

The increased breadth and depth of reporting,
alongside our acquisition of two new companies in

the year and an additional office for Manifesto, has
significantly increased the carbon we're responsible for
from 54.31 tonnes of CO2e to 129.49 tonnes of CO2e. This
has also increased our carbon intensity per FTE by 25%
from 0.27 to 0.34 tCOe/FTE.
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Carbon Emissions Group UK Norway Bulgaria
Scopel

Gos emissions (1C0O2e) 320 3.20 0 o]

Total Scope 1 cost (£) £1182.09 £1,82.09 £0.00 £0.00

Scope 2 N
Purchased district heating ermissions (tCO2e) 516 G 516 0 §
Purchased electricity emissions (tCO2e) 38.36 2674 0.41 n.2 g
Total Scope 2 cost (£} £15,280.39 £8,28112 £2,483.27 £4,518.00 S
Total Scope 1and Scope 2 CO2e (tCO2e) 4672 29.94 557 n.ai ,.;.i,
Total Scope 1and Scope 2 cost (£) £16,462.48 £9,483.2] £2,483.27 £4,516.00 §
Scope 3 ;’
Vehicle emissions 383 383 0 o g’
Flight emissions 78.26 66.48 655 523 2
Website emissions 0.87 075 aom an é
Total Scope 3 CO23 (tCO2e) 8276 70.86 6.56 5.34 o
Total Scope 1,2 and 3 C023 (tCO2e)} 129.48 100.80 1213 16.55 §|
Carbon Intensity (tCOZe) 5
Per employee (equivalent FTE) 0.34 0.84 1.01 0.09 %
One of our companies’ flights alone made up 20% of the Group's total emissions. Flights right across the Group E

contributed to 60% of the Group's total emissions. Our investments in remote working will ensure this figure is significantly

reduced for the next financial year.

Source

CO2e tonnes

Electricity emissions

Gas emissions

District heating emissions
Vehicle emissions

Flight emissions

Website emissions

38.36
320
516
363
78.26
087




Sustainable Futures
Planet continued -

A greener future

we will continue to deepen the measuremeant of, and
action on, all of our emissions in the next financial year.
We need to understand the variance in the energy
consumption across the various properties we rent and
the other factors behind the difference in the employee to
emissions ratios across our companies. We will also focus
on fully measuring our scope three emissions; employee
commuting, waste disposal, supply chdin, climate
conflicts, investments and the products and services we
have helped create.

This means we have ambitious ptans for carbon neutrality
certification, carbon budgets, employee incentivisation
and continued growth of the products and services our
companies are offering to help our clients understand,
medasure and reduce their impact on the planet.

However, because there is still more to measure for a
complete baseline and because of the significant impact
coronavirus induced working from home will have, it is not
possible to set meaningful KP(s for the level of reduction
for the 2020/21 finoncial year. We will instead focus on
constantly reprioritising our roadmap based on the

latest social context and scientific research to reduce our
impact on the planet.

the panoply

The Panoply Group's strategy is based around impactful
companies jeining the group, therefore acquisitions could
take place at any point during the financial year. when
this happens we wil! use whatever data is available to
account for, and offset, the emissions of that company
for the entire financial year, not from the day they join.
Emissions are a debt to the planet that we want to help
future Pancply Group companies to pay back.

Finally, to oftset the emissions we have identified, plus
an additional 5% to compensate for the things we
have undoubtedly missed, we will be partnering with
organisations who can help us offset the 135 tCO2e
through UK flora and fauna restoration. We believe it is
crucial for offsctting not to be seen as a cheap way to
expunge the impact organisations have on the planet.
As a UK headguartered company it is crucial to drive
change within the UK and help the nation achieve it's
Paris agreement obligations. The partnerships we form
will also highlight that tree planting is not the only way to
offset emissions.



Sustainable Futures
Communities

-

Sustainable 1% Pledge

The Panoply donates 1% of its
Futu res for pre-tax profits and pledges
1% of employee time to invest
in sustainable futures for the
ou r communities in which our
employees live and work.
oy @ .
Communltles | By leveraging the success
of the business to achieve
social good and donating a
percentage of its profits and
time to charitable projects
each year, this pledge helps
to ensure that the Group'’s
philanthropic giving keeps
pace with the growth of
the business.

In FY 19/20 The Panoply committed £32k

to charitable projects based on it's pretax
profits. £11.4k of this amount was distributed

to community projects throughout the year in
addition to £36.7k of charitable funds committed
in FY 1819.

In addition to its 1% pledge, Neol Gandhi, CEO, and
Cliver Rigby, CFO each tronsferred respectively
323,529 and 58,823 ordinary shares to Founders
Pledge, a charity which receives and administers
charitable gifts, and reviews and distributes
grants to qualified organisations suggested

by donors. The shares were transferred at nil
consideration and had a value of approximately
£275,000 and £50,000 respectively.

the panoply



Donating time

The Panoply believes in the power of peopie to transform their
communities. Therefore it aims to denate 1% of time each
year to supporting local communities to build sustainable
futures. We encourage employees to get involved through
our vplunteer programmea which was irmplemented in al)
business areas this year and gives fulli-time staff an annual
benefit of at least 16 paid hours for community engagement.

Cammunity Action Day

The Pancply hosted the first annual Community Action
Day this year which saw employees across Europe coming
together to show the impact they can make.

The Christmas Give

Last Christmas, to celebrate the season of giving,

The Panoply donated £25 on behalf of every employeeto a
charity of their choice. Some of the impacts the charities were
able to make with our donations included:

- Providing teaq, breakfast and shower services for over 67
rough sleepers

. Paying annual internet costs for 30 refugees so thot they
can participate in digital training
. Training costs for a rescue dog handler in Norway

BASH Festival

The Panoply wants to invest in sustainable futures for its
communities and that means futureproof jobs for everyone.
Therefore last year the Group partnered with BASH Festival to
provide opportunities for 13 - 17 year old girls who are interested
in tech, to participate in a week long festival of code.

Employee Volunteering Grant

To complement the incredible work that Panoply volunteers
do for local charities and to celebrate the commitment

of the employees, the company offers the opportunity to
apply for a £,000 grant to any member of stoff who logs 1%
of their time by the end of the FY. The grant, which is given
directly to charities, strengthens the relationships between
The Panoply and community organisations and helps our
partners to do more work in providing sustainable futures
for beneficiaries.

The Panoply Enterprise Challenge

The Panoply Enterprise Challenge is designed to inspire
secondary school students from underrepresented
backgrounds to be entrepreneurial Throughout the
programme, students are exposed to lots of different
people, skills and careers through a mixture of classwork
and volunteer interaction.

Students are challenged, in teams, to come up with a
business idea and pitch their plan in return for a £50
investment. Successful teams then have 6 weeks to run
their businesses for the maximum profit.

In FY 2019/2020, 116 of our
employees logged 904 hours
across 37 different community
investment activities.

Our first event saw 99 employees
support 13 projects and together
donate 408 hours.

In total, the Group donated £5,430
to charities local to where its
employees live and work.

Sponsored spaces for 38 girls.

£5,000 donated through the
employee volunteering grant
programme.

60 students participated and
created 12 micro-enterprises.
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Sustainable Futures
Communities continued

The Future Leaders
Programme

2019 marked the first edition of
our Future Leaders Programme.
The Mission was to shake up the
boardrooms of tomorrow by
investing in underrepresented
talent today.

Women, ethnic minorities and people from
low-income backgrounds are still massively
underreprasented at senior levels in business.

The Future Leaders incubator sought out young
entrepreneurs from these communities and gave
them the skills, network and support they will need
for success.

Following the footprint of The Panoply, the Future
leaders programme was open to young people in
London, Canterbury, Oslo and Sofia. Working with
grassroots erganisations, applicants came from the
following backgrounds.

Successful participants were offered a weekly
stipend, free desk space, a business coach, weekly
professional development workshops and the
chance to pitch to real investors at the end of

the programme. Five young entrepreneurs were

-supported through the pilot. Here is what they said

about the experience.

Our applicants were

79% 19%

BAME with disability

70% 57%

Low income Female

the panoply

Natalie Angelova

'The program really rmakes you experiment, push out
your comfart zone, and think fast. It was great!

Awao Abdulqadir

‘I've grown into a more secure and structured person.
if I'd feel like 'm having a bad week, { could tell my
coach and they'd assure me thatit’s normal but that |
need to be stronger and more focused the next week!’

Emily Banks

‘There is definitely a Iock of support out there for
young entrepreneurs and it can feel quite lonely at
times... 'm so glad | took the risk to do this.”

Miranda Hatson

‘My experience has been pretty life changing.. | have
had a space to work, learn and be around others. |
have had support that | reaily needed”



Case Study

Chi Nguyen

Tell us a little bit about your
business?

RISE FITNESS is an online platform
which connects personal trainers
to clients in their ared. The workouts
are provided at home, at the office,
a local park - essentially, anywhere
the client wishes. The business aims
to tap into the growing sharing
economy by providing an
on-demand service for individuals
who are seeking to empower
themselves through personal fitness.

Why did you apply for the Future
Lteaders Programme?

1 applied for the Future Leaders
Prograrmme because it offered an
outlet for me to explore my business
ideas. ! believe it isimportant to
surround yourself with people who
are willing to push you to dream

big and | feit the incubator could
provide me that. Prior to ottending
the programme my main difficulty
was the psychological aspect of
starting a business due to self doubt
and imposter syndrome. However,
the programme has helped me
overcome these fears by helping
me understand that entrepreneurial
pursuits are gvailable to anyone
and everyone.

Why do you think itis important
that boardrooms of the future
look different than the
boardrooms of today?

fthink it is important the beardrooms
of tormorrow look different than

the boardreoms of today because
the world is changing. Traditional
corporate structures dominated

by a particular demographic at

the pinnacle of every crganisation

is now being challenged by a new
globally interdependent and diverse
world, The economy of the future will
undoubtedly operate within g new
framework which values diversity and
inclusion. Talent is indiscriminate ond
exists within everyone - regardless

of your gender, race, economic
background and so forth. The

boardroom of the future will need
to aceommodate this reality to
ensure the best talents make it into
the boardroom.

Canyou tdlk a little bit about your
experience on the programme?

My experience on the programme
was amazing. | thoroughly enjoyed
the overall structure and guidance
provided by the programme. | was
able to gain valuable insight on
various aspects of running a business
i.e. accounting & tax, pitching,
identifying target customers and
more. The exposure to working in @
business environment also allowed
me to connect with CEO's to get an
idea of what the position entailed.

“Fundamentaily, the Future Leaders
Programme is a beacon of hope

in a worid which stili has not fuily
apprecioted the value which a
diverse talent pool can provide.”

Inwhat ways have you grown
professionally or persenally
through the incubator?

In terms of professional growth |
believe the exposure to varicus
individuals in a business environment
has improved my understanding of
business and what it takes to build
one. For example, interacting with
CEQ's altowed me to understand their
mind-set and approach 1o business.
As g result,  was then able to adopt
many of their traits and instill them
within my own personality. In terms

of personal growth, | believe t have
learnt a lot about myself and how
communicate with others. Being in
this new environment has forced me
to constantiy introspect and improve
my understanding of the world.

Why do you think there is g need
for programmeoes like this?

Fundamentally, the Future Leaders
Programme is a beacon of hope

in a world which still has not fully
appreciated the value which a
diverse talent pool can provide. To
reiterate my eaorlier idea — tolent

is indiscriminate ond exist within
everyone regardless of race, gender,
and economic background. for
example, without this programme |
would not have been able to meet
and interact with the other founders
on the programme. These founders
have the most amazing ideas and it
is a shame to think without a platform
like Future Leaders their ideas would
not be nurtured. We need tc shake
up the boardrooms of tomorrow by
supporting diverse entrepreneuriol
talent today - and this programme
does just that.
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Risk and Risk Management

The success of the Group depends on the proper management of risk. The Group has c governance structure to identify
and monitor relevant risks at both a subsidicry and a Group level. The risks identified are ranked by likelihood and

potential impact, then tracked through monthly board meetings. Once risks are identified, the Group will formulate and
deploy mitigating strategies.

The principal risks and uncertainties that the Board believed could have a significant adverse impact on the Group's
business are set out below. The table is not intended to be exhaustive and the principal risks are not listed in order of
seriousness or potential impact. There may also be risks that are not currently considered to be serious or which are
currently unknown and risks that are outside of the Group’s control. Where reasonably possible, The Panoply has taken
steps to manage or mitigate the risks, or potential risks, but it cannot entirely safeguard against all of them.

Risk

Description

Impact

Macro-economic risk - events outside of The Panoply’s control

Adverse
developments
in the global
economy could
impact the level
of demand for
the Group's
services

Strotegic risk

Identification
and integration
of investrment
opportunities

the panoply

The global economy is likely

to suffer slower growth than
current levels, impacting
consumer and business
spending and investment,

in light of a new strain of
coronavirus, Covid-19. The virus
has quickly spread resulting

in severe iliness and, in many
cases, death, and has prompted
the World Health Organisation

to declare o pandemic. This has
resulted in the implementation
by governments and businesses
across the world of drastic
measures to halt the spread of
the virus and safeguard lives
and health services.

The Groups' strategy is to grow
both organically and through
acquisitions.

Group’s clients may be forced to
respond to such circumstances
by reducing their digital
transformation and non-
essential consulting budgets,
thereby reducing the demand
for the Group’s services.

Likely to be a significant amount
of economic uncertainty and
disruption to businesses and the

wider economy in the short term.

There is a risk that failure to
complete on transactions will
leave the Group with substantial
unrecovered costs; or that

a company that has been
successfully acquired does not
integrate effectively.

Mitigation

The Group has evaluated

the impact on the Covid-i9
pandemic across all our
operations and key risks
identified. Weekly meetings have
been held to assess the risks
and we have developed short
term responses and long term
strategic agetions to minimise the
impact to our business.

Finally, we have performed
additional financial stress testing
and liquidity impact analysis in
order to reflect the impacts from
the Covid-19 pandemic in the
assessment of the Group's long-
term viability.

The Group has a comprehensive
M&A process to ensure that
companies who join the

Group aligns with the Groups’
purpose, values and vision; adds
strategic value to the Group

and strengthens our proposition
adding greater depth or breadth
and has leaders who can work
collaboratively.

The Group makes use of

expert advisers to conduct

due diligence. In addition,
warranties and indemnifications
ore included in transaction
documents.

Once companies are part of the
Group, the Group integrates the
newly-merged company inte

its standard monthly reporting
cycle where (finoncial) risks, if
any, are identified.

Furthermore, the Group has
appointed a COO who will
further improve the Group
processes.



Risk

Operational risk -

Retention of
key personnel
throughout
the whole
erganisation

Inability to
recruitand
retain a diverse
workforce

Impact on
employees due
to Covid-19

Description

People

. The quality of the services

provided by the Group's
businesses are fundamentally
derived from the quality of the
Group's people. The Group's
performance could therefore
be adversely affected if it is
not able to recruit, train and
retain key talent in the Group’s
businesses and at the Group
level,

We are a people business,
requiring high calibre people
to work alongside clients to
meet their needs.

Failure to recruit employees
with suitable qualifications at
all required leveis is a key risk in
our operational strategy.

As a result of Covid-19,
the Government have
implemented lock-down
processes.

Impact

A number of individuals are
key to the management and
performance of the Group
and Group subsidiaries. Four
of the companies acquired at
PO are now appreaching their
earn out.

The Directors believe that

the loss of key people could
significantly impede the
Group's financial plans,
product development, project
completion, marketing and
cther plans.

This could impact the Group’s
ability to provide contracted
solutions and services
exposing the Group to liability,
negatively impacting profit
und custi flow in the short
term and causing damage

to reputation, customer
relationships and staff moraie.

Prolonged lock-down and
home working may have a
negative impact on the mental
wellbeing of team members.

Mitigation

Retention of key people is
supported by the Share
Purchase Agreements
(sPAs) which provide certain
restrictive covenants.

Furthermore, members of key
management hold significant
equity interests in the Group
which are subject to certain
lack-in and orderly market
provisions,

In order to retain Key personnel,
the Group actively discusses
opportunities throughout the
Group and has a succession
plan for senior management
and for up and coming
leaders.

Our goalis to have a diverse
workforce that replicates the
diversity of where we operate.

The Group puts culture and
purpose in the forefront

of what we do to becorne
an employee of choice for
amployees.

Proactive measures to
encourage socia!l interaction
between team members via
video callfchats including
regular check-ing with line
managers to identify any
amerging issues early.

Use of mental heolth first
aiders to inform how we can
best support tearm members
through this uncertain period.

An employee assistance
programme has been
implemented throughout the
Group.

4]
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Risk and Risk Management

continued

Risk

Description

Operational risks - IT and legal

Breach of leqal,
regulatory and
contractual
information
security and
data privacy
legisiation

Cyber security
risk

Financial risk

Customer
defaults

EU Exit

the panoply

General compliance with legal,
regulatory and contractual
information security and data

‘privacy requirements.

The Group relies upon the
confidentiality, integrity and
availability of its IT systems
internally and as part of its
service offerings to custormers.
Cyber security events are
cccurring more frequently
and attacks are designed with
greater complexity.

The Group has exposwre
to credit risk through the
detault of a client or other
counterparty.

The Group’s operating
business are generally paid for
their services in arrears,

Financial or trading risks
associated with the UK leaving
the European Union,

Impact

Non-compliance could expose
the Group to liability and fines
{for example under GDPR), and
negatively impact profit and
cash flow in the short term,
cause reputational damage and
domage custorner relationships
and credibility in the market.

A major cyber security event
causing loss of availability or
loss of custorner data could limit
the Group's operations, expose
the Group ta fines and cause
reputational damage, and
damage customer relationships
due to reduced credibility in the
market.

Risk that a client or other
counterparty is unable to pay
all or any of an omount due to
the Group.

Potential to limit or harm the
Group's trading activities,
overheads and staff mobility.

Mitigation

The Group reviews the impaoct

of new information security and
data privacy regulations and
legislation on the Group and its
customers. The output of these
reviews influences the Group's
internal controls and processes
and the design of products,
solutions and working practices. .
Furtherrmore, the Group has
appointed a COO who will focus
on key Group risks and operating
effectiveness.

Cyber security threats are
monitored by each individual
company and any risks of cyber
security are communicated
throughout the whole group ona
timely basis.

The Group makes credit
checks and monitors its
exposure to individual clients
and negotictes payment terms
in light of the credit worthiness
of its counterparties. The
Group is cash generative and
the Board maintains focus on
the Group’s working capital
needs.

The Group has evaluated
scenarics associated with
‘Brexit’ and concluded that
there is no substantial risk to
operations in the next two to
three years. The Group is not
overly reliant on UK-EU trade,
its most significant customers
being UK public sector
organisations.



Risk

Risk of fraud or
theft

Description

Unauthorised access or
misuse of the Group’ bank
accounts or other resources
leads to loss of funds.

Competitive environment

Competitors
with the ability
to undercut our
businesses

The Group's competitors
include large consultancies ond
technology companies, as well
as smaller niche companies.

It is part of the Group's strotegy
to exploit the current disruption
of the digital transformation
services industry and to focus on
working with clients to meet their
needs.

Impact

Impact the financicls and cash
flows of the Group.

There is a risk that larger
companies may be able to
undercut with prices.

Mitigation

System, review and approvat
controls are in place restricting
access to accounts and are
regularly monitored.

The Group is focused on
delivering first class services to
clients and working hand-in-
hand with clients to meet their
needs.

We believe that the way we
provide services séts us apart
from competitors so that our
clients can see the value of the
work that we perform.

We continue to monitor the bid
to win ratios to identify potential
rigks.
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Corporate
Governance
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Board of Directors

Mark William Smith, aged 65,
Non-Executive Chairman

Mark has held several senior roles in creative and
innovative communication busingsses. He began his
career as a chartered accountant ot Touche Ross

& Co. [Deloitte). He then spent 30 years at Chime
Communications, which was acquired by Providence
Private Equity in 2015,

Mark is currently chairman of Holiday Extras, a market
leader in the provision of online ancillary travel services,
a position which he has held for 16 years. He is Qlso a
non-executive director and acting Chairman at The Dods
Group, an AIM listed intelligence, media, training and
events company, operating in over 50 countries.

the panoply

Neal Narendra Gandhi, aged 52,
Co-Founder and Chief Executive Officer

Neal is a serial tech entrepreneur having co-founded
four companies that exited successfully with a combined
value of £177m. He co-founded his first company at the
age of 21 and, under the brand name of Jungle.com, that
company went on to be sold to GUS for £37m. In 1996 he
co-founded Xplora and sold it to Nasdag-listed USWeb

in 1998,

Neal then co-founded Attenda, a managed services
consultancy which went on to be sold for £72m; one part
to Telecity Plc and the other to Darwin Private Equity. In
2006 he founded QuickStart Global, an off-shore IT service
provider, which grew rapidly, and in 2010 was listed in the
sunday Times Tech-Track 100 at number 3, his second
company in that list with Attenda having been listed at
number 2 in 2001

Oliver James Rigby, aged 39,
Co-Founder and Chief Financial Officer

Oliver gualified as an accountant with MRI Mocres
Rowland LLP in 2006 before spending six years as an
adviser in corporate finance with Daniel Stewart and
Deloitte. Oliver acted as a Nominated Adviser 1o the AlM
Market of the London Stock Exchange and was one of their
youngest Qualified Executives.

pPrior to co-founding The Panoply, Oliver set up Growth
Company FD Limited in 2012 to provide part time CFO and
corporate finance support to growing businesses.



Christopher Paul Sweetland, aged 65,
Non-Executive Director

Chris qualified as a chartered accountant with KPMG
before spending 8 years overseas in a variety of
financial roles with PepsiCo Inc. N 1988, when he was
CFO for the Central Europe Baverages Division, he was
recruited by WPP to be part of their small central team.

Chris retired from his role as WPP Deputy Group Finance
Director in 2016 having spent 27 years helping build the
company and having been involved in all aspects of
operations, investor relotions and the many acquisitions
that built that Group. Chris also represented WPP on

the boards of a number of companies both in the UK
and overseaqs.

Isabel Jane Kelly, aged 54,
Non-Executive Director

Isabel is the founder of Profit with Purpase, a social
purpose consultancy working with companies and
nonprofits. She is also an Industry Careers Advisar for
MBA students gt the Said Business School, focused on
social impact.

In 2002 Marc Benioff, CEO of Salesforce.com, hired Isabel
to establish the Salesforce Foundation internationaily
(now Salesforce org). For 12 years she grew and led an
imernational teamn delivering technology, grants and
pregrammes in 110 countries, as well as generating
revenue of $12m to fund the work. Isabel worked at
Oxfam and Amnesty internationai for 12 years prior {o
joining Satesforce.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Panoply Holdings plc is committed to operating
proper standards of good corporate governance and
has established a corporate governance model based
on the key principles of the Quoted Companies Alliance
Corporate Governance Code (*Qca Code”). The following .
outlines how the Company addresses the ten broad

governing principles defined in the QCA Code. The
Non-Executive Chairman is responsible for corporate
governance and the overall leadership of the Board and
ensuring its effectiveness.

The Panoply Holdings pic operates a business modei and
growth strategy that promotes the generation of
shareholder value through its growth. The company
promotes professionalism, openness, honasty and
integrity between its customers, staff, shareholders and
suppliers.

Principle 1 - Establish a strategy and
business model which promote long-term
value for shareholders.

The Panoply is a digitally native technology enabled
services group, at the forefront of a growing market,
focused on sustainable digital transformation and
positive, purposeful organisational change.

We believe an increasingly complex world needs a new
business mode! to achieve high impact outcomes for
clients and their employees and more value for
stakehaolders.

We combine the dynarmism and agifity of smaller, expert
teams with the scale to confidently address our clients’

most pressing needs as they navigate the rapidly

changing nature of society and business. Using our

madel of Consistent Autonomy, we embrace a culture of
cultures te deliver impactful work and to drive profitable .
organic growth. And we're collectively entrepreneurial,
creating a regenerative spirit of innovation, which delivers

the transformative work our clients need.

In the last three and half years, The Group has identified
and met numerous potential target companies and has
completed ten acguisitions.

Unlike many buy and build models that hove preceded

The Panoply, the Directors are focused on creating an

agile, decentralised group where employees join a

culture of autonomy, purpose, collaboration and

innovation. The Directors believe that this consistent

autonomy operating model, emnbracing cuitures of .
cultures and shared values will allow Group Companies

to collaborate, providing clients with innovation and rapid
delivery of services.

The Panoply has developed an efficient, formulaic
approach for acquiring companies. With an extensive
acquisition pipeline, the Directors intend to continue to
supplement the organic growth of existing Enlarged
Group Companies through the addition of
complementary companies.

the panoply

Key Strengths

The Directors believe that the Enlarged Group's key
strengths include:

Significant market opportunity — independent
research house, International Data Carporation
(IDC), estimates that the market for digital
transformation services in EMEA will rise from
$45 billion in 2017 to $82 billion by 2021.

Group plattorm — The Panoply provides a platform
for companies which join the Enlarged Group to
accelerate their organic growth through
cross-selling, leveraging The Panoply brand,
network, listed status and balance sheet.

Alignment of interests — The Panoply’s acquisition
mode) involves a significant proportion of the
consideration for an acquisition being issued in
Qrdinary Shares thereby ensuring alignment of
interests with existing shareholders.

Consistent Autonomy model - The Panoply's model
allows companies within The Panoply Group to
continue to remain entrepreneurial and creative,
unstifled by burecucracy,;

- Central control is provided by a non-executive
director appointed by the Board to the board
of each Panoply Group Company to provide
governance as well as guidance and oversight
on growth strategy and collaboration with
other Panoply Group Companies;

- The benefits of this model to clients are better
outcomes, faster execution and lower cost for
higher quality work.

Profitable and cash-generative — the Enlarged
Group is, cash generative and only intends to make
accretive acquisitions going-forward.

Focused growth strategy

- The Panoply's acquisition model is designed to
attract ambitious companies, confident in their
ability to grow profitably and rewards
cross-sefling and collaboration;

- The Panoply’'s management has an extensive
network to heip identify, attract and execute
future acquisitions.

Experienced Management and Board with proven
track record — The Panoply is managed by highly
experienced executive and non-executive directors
combining strong secter, public company and
international mergers and acquisitions expertise
with a trock record of building, growing and exiting
services companies.



Principle 2 — Seek to understand and meet
shareholder needs and expectations,

The Panaply proactively engages with its shareholders
and potential shareholders alike. This is through a series
of mechanisms:

- Formal announcements — ds a London Stock
Exchange (LSE) AIM listed company, we make all
statutory onnouncements through the LSE's
regulatory news service (RNS). A feed is maintained
on our investor area (see below). The Panoply
reports formally to shareholders by the publication
of its annual and half-yearly financial statements.

. Analyst and investor presentations -- the Executive
Directors present the half-yearly and annual results
to institutional investors, analysts and the media.
The presentations are available on the investor
section of the website.

. AGM — Notification of the date of the AGM is sent to
shareholders at least 21 working days in advance of
the meeting. Details are set out in the Notice of
Meeting. The Directors (and the external auditor} are
available at the AGM to answer questions, both
during the course of the meeting, and informally
afterwards. All details can be found on the Investor
Announcements and the Investor Documents
pages.

- News releases — in addition to statutory
announcements, we use RNS Reach to present
regular business news and updates to shareholders.
We also have a full news service available on The
Panoply website.

. interactive sessions — The Pancply's Executive
Directors arrange regular (six monthly) face to face
sessions with any interested shareholders or
potential shareholders, and are also available for
updates at any point in the year. See contact details
below.

. Investor focused micro-site — we maintain a full
section on the main Pancply website for investors.
This includes the Financial Calendar and real-time
RNS annauncements; the latest Investor Documents,
presentaticns ond reports; share information and
share dealing interactive feeds; this corporate
governance statement; a full list of investor related
contacts.

. LSE Profile — we also maintain a profile on the
London Stock Exchange Issuer services website.

. Investor Email - we also manage an investor emait
account for any direct queries —
investors@thepanoply.com.

Contact with major shareholders is principally -
maintained by the Executive Directors, who ensure that
their views are communicaoted to the Board as a whole.
The Chair is alsc available to discuss governance and

other matters directly with major shareholders. At every
Board meeting, the Board is provided with the latest
brokers’ reports and a summary of the contents of any
meetings with shareholders. The Board considers that the
provision of these documents is a practical and efficient
way for both the Chair and Senior Independent Director
to be informed of major shareholders’ opinions on
governance and strategy and to understand any
shareholder issues and concerns.

If you would like to know more about The Panoply as a
shareholder, or potential shareholder, please contact us
through our investors email address and we will put you
in touch with one of our Executive Directors.

Principle 3 — Take into account wider
stakeholder and social responsibilities and
their implications for long-term success.

Please see further details in the People, Planet and
Community Section of our Annual Report and Financial
Statements.

Principle 4 — Embed effective risk
management, considering both
opportunities and threats, throughout the
organisation.

Risk managernent activity is overseen by the Chief

Execulive Officer and Chief Financiul Officer, with the
support of the Executive Management Team.

Our framework enables us to remain vigilant 1o all known
and emerging risks and opportunities. Effective risk
management supports informed decision making;
enables us to minimise impact from unforeseen internal
or external events; and allows us to fully exploit emerging
opportunities. Our objectives for risk management are to:

. Identify, measure, control and report on business risk

that may undermine the achievement of objectives, .

both strategically and operationally, through
appropriate analysis and assessment criteria

. Effectively allocate effort and resources for the
management of key and emerging risks

. Build an accurate picture at the highest level of the
key risks facing our business, and use this
information to drive business improvements in a
considered and coordinated way

- Support and develop our reputation as a wel!
governed and trusted organisation

. Minimise costs and drive efficiencies in the way that
pervasive risk is controlled across the business

. Identify weaknesses in, and opportunities to
improve, our business processes

Risk Registers

At the Operational level, a risk register is maintained
within every business of the Group. Risks are recorded
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and managed within as required and are reviewed
regularly by the management of each business.

At a central level, there is a single central risk register for
Group Significant risks, which recards the top risks to the
business.

Risk registers are reviewed on a quarterly basis which
supports the escalation of any risks with a high residual
impact, or potentially pervasive risks, to a higher level risk
register as appropriate,

Risk Appetite

The Board determines the amount and type of risk that
The Panoply is willing to take on in pursuit of its strategic
objectives. The Board's appetite for risk is influenced by
various key factors including {but not limited to) the
overall economic, regulatory and operationat landscape
in which we operate.

The Executive Management Team advise the Board of
these key influences which enables the Board to adjust
the amount of risk that The Panoply takes on. Risk
tolerance may, by business choice, differ in different parts
of the company.

Review and Assurance

Risk registers are updated as and when required. A tull
review is undertaken quarterly. The highest rated risks are
presented to the Board every quarter by the CEO. Every six
months the Board is presented with the detailed risk
registers for each line of business. Further details can be
found in our Risk Section of the Annual Report and
Financial Statements on pages 40 to 43,

Principle 5 — Maintain the Board as a well-
functioning, balanced team led by the
Chair.

The PLC Board (“the Board} is responsible for the
Company’s corporate governance systems and
processes that support good decision making.

The Non-Executive Directors, Mark Smith (Chair), Isabel
Kelly and Chris Sweetland cre considered independent of
management and free from any business or other
relationships that could materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgement. Both Mark Smith
and Chris Sweetland own shares in The Panoply and all
three Non-Executive Directors hold options, however this
is not considered to clter their independent status.

Director's Commitment (¢ The Panoply
The Directors ocknowledge the importance of the
principles set out in the QCA Code.

Our Non-executive Directors have committed in their
letters of appointment to attend all reasonable board
and committee meetings in addition to being reascnably
available at other times for The Panoply business. Our
Executive Directors have entered into employment
contracts which require them te attend all board and
committee {of which they are a member) mestings.

the panoply

The Non-Executive Directors meet at least once a year
without the Executive Directors present. All Directors
submit to re-election each year at the Annuol General
Meeting (“AGM") of the Company.

The Board meets at least four times each yeaor with
additional meetings when circumstances and urgent
business dictate. At each meeting the Board reviews o
schedule of reserved matters including trading
performance, financial strength, strategy (including
investment and acquisition opportunities), risk
management, controls, comgliance, reports to
shareholders aond succession management.

The Directors have established two committees of its
Board, narnely the Audit, Risk and AIM Rules Compliance
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

The Audit, Risk and AIM Rules Compliance Committee is
chaired by Chris Sweetland and has primary
responsibility for monitoring the quality of internal
controls, ensuring that the financial performance of the
Company is properly measured and reported on and
reviewing reports from the Company's auditors relating to
the Enlarged Group's dccounting and internal controls, in
all cases having due regard to the interests of
Shareholders. The Audit, Risk and AIM Rules Compliance
Committee meets at least twice a year. Mark Smith is the
other member of the Audit, Risk and AlM Rules
Compliance Committee. Cliver Rigby, CFO, attends Audit,
Risk and AIM Rules Compliance Committee meetings by
invitation.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Isabel Kelly,
and reviews the performance of the Executive Directors
and determines their terms and conditions of service,
including their remuneration and the grant of options,
having cdue regard to the intetests of Shareholders. The
Remuneration Committee meet at least ocnce o year,
Mark Smith is the other member of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee also considers Boord
policy in relation to the remuneration of the Chairman of
the Board. Non-Executive Director remuneration is a
matter for the Chairman and the executive members of
the Beard. No Directer is invalved in any decisions ds to
their own remuneration or benefits.

Principle 6 — Ensure that between them the
Directors have the necessary up-to-date
experience, skills and capabilities.

The Board members and their relevant experience and
skills are detailed on pages 48 and 47. The Non-Executive
Chairman believes that, s a whole, the Board has a
suitable mix of skills and competencias covering all
essential disciplines bringing o balanced perspective that
is beneficial both strategically and operationaily and will
enable the Company to deliver its strategy. The Boord
consists of two executive directors and three non-
executive directors, all of whom are independent. The
nature of the Company’s business requires the Directors



to keep their skillset up to date. Updates to the Board on
regulatory matters are given by Company's professional
advisers when appropriate.

In addition to the support provided by the Company’s
retained professional advisers (Nominated Advisor,
lawyers, auditor and M&A advisor), external consuitants
have been engaged to advise on a number of matters
including tax planning and market research. External
advisers attend Board meetings or committee meetings
as invited by the Non-Executive Chairman to report
and/or discuss specific matters relevant to the Company.

Principle 7 — Evaluate Board performance
based on clear and relevant objectives,
seeking continuous improvement.

Board performance effectiveness process

The Chairman is responsible for the regular evaluation of
the Board's performance and that of its committees and
individual Directors.

Succession planning and Board
appointments

The Remuneration Committee meet as and when
necessary to consider the appointrment of new executive
and non-executive directors, although the Board as a
whole take responsibility for succession planning. Board
members all have appropriate notice pericds so that if
Board member indicates his/her intention to step down,
there would be sufficient time to appoint a replacement,
whether internal or external.

The Company's Articles of Association require thot
one-third of the Directors must stand for re-election by
shareholders annually in rotation and that any new
Directors appeinted by the Board during the relevant year
must stand for election at the annual general mesting
immediately following their appointment. Any Directors
who are not employed by the Company or holding
executive office who have served on the Board for at
least nine years will be subject to annual re-election.

Beard gppointrnents are made after consultation with
advisers including the Nominated Advisor who
undertakes due diligence on all new potential Board
candidates.

Principle 8 ~ Promote a corporate culture
that is based on ethical values and
behaviours,

The Board recognises that core values provide a
framework which influences every level of the Group. One
of the Group’s four key values is “Difference with
authenticity”. This means we value difference not just in
gender, ethnicity and class but in personality, talent and
perspective. It takes all types of attributes to make a
great team.

See further details on our behaviours in the People, Planet
and Community section of our Annual Report & Financial
Statements on pages 26 to 37 and our Values on page 8.

Principle 9 ~ Mgaintain governance
structures and processes that are fit for
purpose and support good decision-
making by the Board.

On behoif of the Board, the Manoging Director of the
trading business of subsidiaries has overall responsibility
for managing the day to day operations of that entity
and the Board as a whole is responsible for monitoring
performance against the Company's gools and
objectives. The individual Board members’ specific
responsibilities, contributions and skills are set out on
pages 46 and 47.

The Board has established two standing Committees, the
Audit, Risk and AIM Rules and Compliance Committee
{Audit Committee) and the Remuneration Committee.
Membership of both the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee during the year under review
was exclusively Non-kxecutive.

Principle 10 - Communicate how the
Company is governed and is performing by
maintaining a dialogue with shareholders
and other relevant stakeholders.

The Company maintains a reguiar dialogue with key
stakeholders including shareholders to enable interested
parties to make informed decisions about the Group and
its performance.

Historical annual reports and notices of general meetings
can be found in the Financial Reports section of the
Group's website.

The Board discloses the results of Annual General
Meetings and these can be found in the Regulatory News
section of the website.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year,
although the Company’s Auditars or any member of the
Audit Committee may request a meeting at any time,
should they consider that one is necessary. The role of the
Audit Committee is to make recommeéndations 1o the
directors and shareholders, in relation to the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
Company's External Auditors and to approve their
remuneration and terms of engagament. Prior to the
commencement of each annual or interim audit, the
Audit Committee will discuss and agree the nature and
scope of the audit with the External Auditors and in
discussion with them, wili menitor the integrity of the
finoncial statements of the Group and approve any
formal announcements relating to the Company’'s
financial performance.

The Audit Committee develops and implements policies
on the engagement of the External Auditors to supply
non-audit services and will report to the Directors,
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identifying any matters where the Audit Cornmittee
coensiders that action or improvement is needed, making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference and
may seek infarmation it requires from any employee of
the Company. The Audit Committee may seek outside
professional advice at the cost of the Company, in crder
to secure any relevant experience or expertise it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
ond jts report can be found in Remuneration Report on
poges 55 and 56,

the panoply



Our Section 172 Statement

The directors of The Panoply and all those of all Uk
Companies must act in accordance with a set of general
duties. Section 172 of the Companies Act requires
Directors to take into consideration the interests of
stakeholders in their decision making and is summarised
as follows:

A Director of @ company must act in a way they consider,
in good faith, would most likely to promote the success of
the Company for the benefit of its shareholders as a
whole and, in doing so have regard (armongst other
matters) to.

. The likely consequences of any decisions in the
long-term

. The interests of the Company’s employees

. The need to foster the Company’s business

relationships with suppliers, customers and cthers

. The impact of the Company’s operations on the
community and environment

The desirability of the Company maintaining a
reputation for the high standards of business
conduct, and

. The need to act tfairly between sharehoiders of the
Company

This section serves as our Section 172 statement.

The Board considers, both individually and together, that
they have acted in the way they consider, in good faith,
would be most likely to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its shareowners as a whole
(hoving regard to the stakeholders and matters set out in
section 172(i){a-f) of the Act in the decisions taken during
the year ended 3t March 2020).

Qur vision is to create o Panoply of experts, opinions,
ideas and cultures that can deliver genuine change
within our world to maximise the opportunities of the
21st century.

The Board recognises that engagement with the
Company’s stakeholders is critical to the success of the
business in realising this vision. The Directors continue to
have regards to the interest of our people and the
Company’s other stakeholders, including the impact of its
activities on the community, the environment and the
Company's reputation when making decisions. We
recognise that promeoting the long-term sustainability
and success of the Company is intertwined with creating
value for, and engagement with, our stakeholders. it
should therefore he at the core of our business.

Engagement with stakeholders is not new and has been
a part of the business since its inception, but the
obligation to include the Section 172 statement presents
an opportunity to fllustrate to you how your Board
engagaes with stakeholders and how this has impacted
on your Company's decisions and strategies.

The Following sections summarise how the Directors’ fulfil
their duties and responsibilities:

Risk Management:

The Group is offected by a number of risks and
uncertainties, not all of which are whoily within its control
as they relate to the wide macroeconomic ond legislative
envirenment within which the Group operates. Therefore
it is vital that we effectively identify, evaluate, manage
and mitigate the risks we face, and that we continue to
evolve our approach to risk management,

Far details of our principal risks and uncertainties, and
how we manage our risk environment, please see
pages 40 to 43 and our Risk Committee report on
pages 57 and 58,

Our People:

We understand how important it is to hove a workforce
with different skills, perspectives and experiences. ACross
the Group, we are making sure that our workplaces are
inclusive and supportive enough to attract the diversity of
talent that will enable us to grow.

For further details on our people, please see pages 28 to
3L

Our Planet:

The environmental impact of the fourth industrial
rcvolution has been vastly underestimated. With a carbon
footprint today equal to the aviation industry, we want to
raise awareness of this and work with our industry to
minimise its impact.

We believe thot there is a better, more sustainable way to
do business. We're investing in training and research to
build teams of technology experts within the Group who
deeply understand the environmentai impact of digital
products and are able to design and advocate for better
alternatives.

For further details on how we interact and protect our
planet, please see pages 32 to 35.

Our Communities:

During periods of upheaval, communities face the threat
of being left behind, we want to ensure those
communities thrive and have a meaningful stake in the
future. Our work is transforming the way that businesses
operate. We want to make sure that we are equipping
people with the skills they will need to thrive in the future
workplace.

Cur community investment work is focused on
empowering vulnerable communities through technology
and providing access to employment for diverse talent.

For further details on how we interact with our
communities, please see pages 36 to 39.
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Our Shareholders:

The Board is actively committed to engaging with our
sharehaolders, as we recognise the importance of
continuing effective diclogue, whether with major
institutional investors, private or employee shareholders. It
is important to us that shareholders understand our
strategy and objectives, sc these must be explained
clearly. Any feedback received is collated with any issues
or questions identified being properly considered.

For further details on how we engage with our
shareholders, please see page 49.

the panoply



Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee determines, on behalf of the Board, the Group's policy for executive remuneration and
the individual remuneration packages for the Executive Directors. In setting the Group's remuneration policy, the
Remuneration Committee considers o number of factors, including the following:

. salaries and benefits availoble to Executive Directars of comparable companies;

- the need to attract and retain Executives of an appropriate calibre; and

. the need to ensure continued commitment of Executives to the Group's success through appropriate incentive
schemes.

The Committea meets at least once A year.

Remuneration of Executive Directors
The remuneration packages comprise the following components:
- Base salary

The Rermuneration Committee sets the base salary by reference to responsibilities and the skills, knowledge and
experience of the individual.

- Bonus scheme ond other benetits
There is no annual bonus scheme or other benefits in place currently.

. Share Incentive Schemes
An EM! and unapproved option scheme were implemented in the prior period and options were awarded to each
of the Executive Directors.

. Other benefits
Private medical and life cover for employees including the Directors have been provided in the current year.

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

The fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board. They are nat entitled to receive any bonus or
other benefits but did receive unapproved Share-based payments at the time of their appointment, Non-Executive
Directors’ letters of cppointment are on a three-month rolling basis.

Directors’ remuneration

Details of individual Directors’ emoluments for the year (excluding employer’s National Insurance contributions) are as
follows:

Share Other 2020 2019
Salary Pension Option benefits total total
£000 £000 £'000 £'C00 £000 £'000

Non-Executive
sark Srith (oppointed 18 Octaber 2018) 50 - 4 - 54 21
Christopher Sweetland (appointed 18 October 2018) 35 - 3 - 38 4
Isabel Kelly (appointed 18 October 2018) 30 - 2 = 32 12

Executive

Neal Gandhi (appointed 20 December 2016) 259 18 7 1 295 148
Cliver Rigby (appointed 20 December 2016) 141 20 17 2 180 150

Total 515 38 43 3 6599 345
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Directors’ interests in shares

The interests of the Directors in the Ordinary Shares of the Company at 31 Mareh 2020.

31-Mar 3-Mar
2020 2009
Name of Director Number Number
Christopher Paul Sweetland - 30,000
I1sabel Kelty - -
Mork witliam Smith - 122,000
Neat Gandhi 9,306,885 9,786,884
QOliver Rigby 5,066,07 5)24,930
14,372,992 15,063,814
Directors’ interests in Share-based payments
The directors have been granted options over the shares of the Campany as follows:
Granted Lopsed durng Type N-Mor-18 & Exercise Date when
in 2019 the year 31-mMar-20 price Exercisabte
Christopher Paul Sweetland 20,300 - Unapproved scheme 20,300 74p 31/a3f21
Christopher Paul Swestland 20,300 - Unapproved scheme 20,300 74p 31fo3f22
Christopher Paul Sweetland 20302 - Unopproved scheme 20,302 74p 31/03/23
Isabel Jane Keily 20300 - Unapproved scheme 20,300 74p 31/03/2
Isabel Jane Kelly 20,300 - unopproved scheme 20,300 Tap 3f03/22
Isabel Jane Kelly 20302 - unapproved scheme 20,302 74p 31/03/23
Mark William Srnith 33834 - unapproved scheme 33834 74p 3ifo3fa
Mark Williarn Srétn 33834 - Unapproved scheme 33834 74p 31foaj22
mMark william Srith 33836 - unapproved scheme 33836 T4p 31/03/23
Neal Gandhi 135,338 - EM! scheme 135,338 74p 31703/
Ned! Gandhi 135,338 - EMI scheme 135,338 74p /0322
Neat Gandhi 135,340 - EMI scheme 135,340 T4p 31f03/23
Oliver Rigby 135,338 - EMI scherne 135,338 74p 31/03/21
Qliver Rigby 135,338 - EMI scheme 135,338 74p 31/03/22
Oliver Rigby 135,340 - EMI scherne 135.340 74p 31/03/23
By ordey of the Boord
DocuSigned by:
Tsubd V~¢.“7
SaHST oo o-

Chairrman, Rermuneration Comimtittee

18 August 2020
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Audit, Risk and Aim Ruies Compliance Committee

During the year The Audit, Risk and AIM Rutes Compliance
Committee (“the Committee”} comprised Christopher
Sweetland and Mark Smith. Both members are
independent Non-Executive Directors and details of their
skills, experience and qualifications set out on pages 46
and 47. The Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Financial Controller attend the meetings. The Committee
will also invite divisional leaders and specialists relevant
and external auditors to the Committee’s agenda if
appropriate.

Main responsibilities

The terms of refersnce for the Committee are based on
the Guidance on Audit Committees issued by the
Financial Reporting Council. The main responsibilities of
the Committee are summarised below:;

. review the integrity of the financial stotements of
the Group and any formal announcements relating
to the Group's financial perfarmance

. review the Group’s internal controls established to
identify, assess, manage and monitor risks, and
receive reports frorm management on the
effectiveness of the systems it has established, and
the conclusions of any testing perfermed by the
external quditor

. moke recommendations to the Board in relation to
the appointment of the external auditar and
approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor

. assess the independence, objectivity and
effectiveness of the external auditor and develop
and implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-audit services

. review the integrity of the statement in the Annual
Report on being fair, balanced and understandable,
as required under the Companies Act 2006

Summary of activities in 2020

In 2020, the Committee’s core work programme focused
on a number of significant issues and other accounting
judgements where the Committee believed the highest
level of judgement was required and with the highest
potential impact on the Group's financial statements.
There were four meetings held in the year from the 1 April
2019 to the 31 March 2020 which included meeting with
the external auditors to discuss their audit planning
document and their audit findings report.

Financial reporting

The Cornmittee reviewed and evaluated the
appropriateness of the interim and annual financiol
statements {including the announcements thereof to the
London Stock Exchonge) with management and the
annual financial staterment with the external auditor,
including:

. at the Board's request, the Audit Committee
determines whether the Annudl Report and
Financial Statements, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the

information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Group's position and performance, business
madel and strategy

. the clarity of disclosures and compliance with
financial reporting standards and relevant financial
and governance

. discussing the critical accounting policies and use
of assumptions and estimates, as noted on
pages 85 to 87 of this Annual Report and Financial
Statements, and concluding that the estimates,
judgements and assumptions used were
reasonable based on the information available and
had been used appropriately in applying the
Group's accounting policies

. reviewing the going concern and viability of the
Group over the longer term os pon of its
assessment of the Group's risks

The Committee is able to question management at both
Group ond business unit levels to gain further insight into
the issues addressed in these reports. The key significant
financial reporting issues and other accounting
judgements are set out below and further explained on
pages 85 1o 87 under section critical accounting
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty.

Significant accounting judgements

- Revenue and margin recognition
The Committee discuss whether revenue
recognition within the Group is dligned o IFRS 15.
This includes finding out any challenges subsidiaries
may have in implementing IFRS 15 in their finance
framework and accounts.

. darrying vaiue of goodwitl and other intangibles

The judgement largely relates to the assumptions
underlying the value in use of the cash-generating
units, primarily the macroeconomic assumptions
{such as discount rates) underpinning the valugtion
process. The Committee received reports from
management setting out the allocation of the
purchase price between goodwill and other
intangibles. The Committee also received reports
from management outlining the impairment model
and the assumptions used.

. Carrying value of investments

The judgement largely relates to the assumptions
underlying the value of investments held by the
parent company. The Committee received reports
frorm management indicating their assessment of
the potential impairment of investments including
consideration of triggering events, the calculation of
vaiue in use and discount rates and sensitivity
analysis.

. Cash generating units (CGUs)

IFRS 3 Business combination requires management
to assess the CGU as part of purchase price
allocation process. The Board uses their judgement
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Audlit, Risk and Aim Rules Compliance Committee continued

in deciding the number of CGU per entity acquired
during the year. The Committee hos reviewed
managements judgement regarding the
assessment of CGUs.

. Fair value of contingent consideration

The Committee hos reviewed the assumptions used
to calculate the fair value of contingent
censideration. This primarily includes a review and
challenge of any EBITDA adjustments used in the
calculation of valuations.

. Share-based payments

The Committee has reviewed the change in
valuation maodel used in estimating the fair value of
Share-based payments in the year. The Committee
received reports from external advisors which
concluded that the Binomial and Monte Carlo
valuation models would be more suitable given the
vesting conditions attached to the Share-based
payment arrangements. The Committee reviewed
management reports thot outlined the assumpltions
used.

. Going concern

In order to satisfy itself that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future and that there are no moterial
uncertainties that could lead to significant doubt as
to the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, the Committee considered the Group's
budgets and forecasts, cosh position (both existing
and projected), bank facilities ond covenants.

External auditor independence and
effectiveness

The Committee carries out a formal review each yeor, Lo
assess the independence and effectiveness of the
external ouditor, Nexio Smith and Williamson (NSW). The

Ccommittee has sotisfied itself as to NSW's independence.
DocuSigned by:

{funs Sweetland
8igpHEY S Weetiand

Chairman of the Audit, Risk and AIM Rules and
Compliance Committee

18 August 2020
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Directors’ Report

The Directers present their Annual Report on the offairs of
the Group, together with the financial Statements and
Auditor's report, for the yeor ended 31 March 2020.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of
digitally native technology services to clients within the
commercial, government and non-gavernment
organisations {NGO) sectors.

General information

The Panoply Holdings Pic is a public fimited company
listed on the AlM market of the London Stock Exchange on
4 December 2018 and is incorporated and domiciled in
the UK. The Company's registered number is 10533096,

Corporate governonce

The statement on corporate governance on pages 48 (o
52 is included in the Directors’ Report by way of reference.

Results and dividends

The Group's loss on ordinary activities after taxafion was
£3.0m (2019: loss £1.7m). The audited financial stotements
of the Group are set out on pages 70 to 117. The Directors
do not propose a dividend for the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019; £Nil).

Strategic review

The infermation sotisfying the strategic review
requirements is set out in this report on poges 3 to 43,

Going concern

The Group's busingss activities, together with the factors
likely to affect its future development, performance and
position ara set out on pages 3 to 25. The financial
position of the Group, its billings, gross profit and
profitability are described on pages 24 and 25. Details of
the key risks and uncertainties in the business, including
the operational impact of Cavid-18 and expected impact
on the economy, adlong with the mitigation has been
presented in the risks and uncertainties is presented on
poges 40 1o 43.

Having considered the Group’s cash flows, liquidity
position and borrowing facilities, and after reviewing the
budgets and cash projections for the next twelve months
and beyond, the Directors believe that the Group ond the
Compuany have adequate resources te continue
operations for the foreseeable future and for this reason
they continue te adopt the going cancern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

Directors

The present membership of the Board is as follows:

Mark Smith, Non-Executive Chairman Chris Sweetland,
Non-Executive Director Isabel Kelly, Non-Executive Director
QOliver Rigby, Chief Financial Officer, Neal Gandhi, Chief
Executive Officer.

The names and biographical details of the current
Cirectors of the Compony are given on pages 46 and 47.
During the year under review, all Non-Executive Directors
were independent of management ond any business or
other relationships which could interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement.

Detgils of Directors’ interests in the Compony's shares,
service contracts and remuneraticn are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on poges 55 ond 56.

Post-balance sheet events
Detoils of post-bolontce sheet events are given in Note 27.

Political donation

Tne Group has not rnade any politicat donations during
the yeor.

Financial risk management and objectives
Details of financial risk management and objectives are
contained in Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial
Startements.

Awareness of relevant audit information
Each cf the Directars who held office at the date of
approval of this Directors’ Report confirms that, so far as
they are oware:

there is no relevant audit information of which the
Auditor is unaware; and

. the Directors have taken all the steps they ought to
have taken to make themselves aware of any
retevant audit information ond to establish that the
Auditor is oware of that information.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held in London on
14 September 2020 - ot 09:00am. Notice of the Annual
General Meeting will be sent 10 shareholders on

20 August 2020

Independent Auditor

The auditors ore required to be reappointed annually at
the AGM.

By order of the Boord
DocuSignead by:

Blwer ﬂlﬁlﬂb,
t mmy.ng...
Company Secretary

18 August 2020
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Statement of Directors Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable iaw and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the Group and
Company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reporting
standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and,
as regards the Company financial statements, as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006. Under company law the Directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group and of the profit or loss of the
Group for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are required Lo:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonabie and prudent;

. state whether applicable IFRSs and UK accounting
standards have been followed, subject to any
material deportures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group’s transactions, disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the
Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report, in addition to
any other information included in the Annual Report and
Financial Statements, is prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom company law. They are also responsible
for ensuring that the Annual Report & Financial
Statements include information required by the AlM Rules,

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corperate and financial information
included an the Company’s website. Legistation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of the financial staterments and other
information included in annual reports may differ from
legisiation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of
The Panoply Holdings plc

Opinion

we have oudited the financial statements of The Panoply Holdings plc {the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (the '‘Group’)
for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and
Company Statements of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in £Equity, the
Consclidated and Company Statements of Cash Flows and the notes to the financiat statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been apptied in their preparation is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the Company financial staternents, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’'s affairs as at 31
March 2020 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended;

. the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unicn;

. the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs os adopted by the
Eurcpean Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Cur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the oudit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and Company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Stondard as applied to SME listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

we have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relotion to which the iISAs (UK} require us to report to you

where:

. the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriote; or

- the Directors have nat disclesed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Group's or the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
cccounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the finoncial statements are authorised for
issue.

Emphasis of matter - impact of Covid-19

We draw attention to note 11 of the financial statements which describes the impact of Covid-18 on the Group and the
Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

the panoply



Key audit matters

we identified the key audit matters described below as those which were most significant in the audit of the financial
statements of the cuirent period. Key audit matters include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement, including those risks that had the greatest effect on cur overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources
in the audit and the direction of the efforts of the audit team.

In addressing these matters, we have performed the procedures below which were designed to address the matters in
the context of the financial statements as a whele and in forming our opinion thereon. Consequently, we do not provide

a separate opinion on these individual matters.

Key audit matter

Business combinaotions
accounting — Group (See
Note 8)

Description of risk

The Group has a business Model based
on acquiring business and during the

yedr, two acquisitions have taken place.

There is a high degree of judgments
and assumptions involved to perform
valuations of separately identifiable
intangible assets arising from the
acquisition of a business.

There is a risk thot the values and
allocations of intangible assets and
goodwill recognised are not in
accardance with International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 3 ‘Business
combinations’.

How the matter was addressed in
the audit

We challenged management on the identification
of intongible assets and the inputs and
assumptions used in the purchase price allocation
to determine the value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities:

As part of our procedures we:

. Parformed on assessmaent of the accounting
for acquisitions in the year to check if it was in
accorgdance with IFRS 3.

. Obtained the business combination workings
for each acquisition and checked the
mathematical accuracy of these, obtaining
support for any judgements used by
rmanagernent.

. Agreed the caiculation of residual goodwill
based on the consideration payable and
identifiable assets and liabilities.

. Used our internal valuations team to assess
the valuation models prepared in respect of
edach acquisition, including the basis and
rnethodology adopted for identifying
separate intangibles distinct from goodwill
and the fair value of contingent consideration

recognised.

. Considered the appropriateness of the useful
lives applied to the intangible assets
identified.

. Cengidered the overall valuation of intangible

assets identified relative to similar companies
in the industry.

. Reviewed acquisition costs to ensure these
have been expensed within the Income
Statement in line with IFRS 3.

- Checked the appropriateness of discount
factors applied.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of

The Panoply Holdings plc continued

Key audit matter

Fair Vglue of contingent
consideration - Group and
Company (See Note 20)

Revenue — Group (See
Note-3)

the panoply

Description of risk

The Share Purchase Agreements (SPAs}
contain clauses for contingent
consideration and clowback provisions
based on the aequired entities’
performance over the first two to four
years of acquisition.

Management are required to apply
judgement to determine the fair value of
the consideration payable, in accordance
with IFRS 3.

The Group’s activities include the
provision of business IT management,
desigh, implementation and support
services. These services have multiple
deliverables and can be a fixed or
variable price. A number of contracts are
expected to span the year end and the
acquisition dates.

Judgement will be involved in determining
the levels of revenue to be recognised in
line with IFRS 15 ‘Revenus recognition,
particutarly for contracts which span the
year end and acquisition dates.

How the matter was addressed in
the audit

we challenged the inputs and assumptions
used to determine the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable at acquisition
and subsequently at the reporting date.

As part of our procedures we:

Reviewed the Share purchase agresments
(*sPA’s") to abtain an understanding of
consideration payable and agreed this
back to the supporting businass
combination workings.

Reviewed and challenged management’s
future forecasts of revenues and results
which underpinned how the overall
contingent consideration was colculated.

Campared historical forecasts against
actual results and corroborated
mangagement’s assertions where
reasonably practicable.

Confirmed the appropriateness of
discount tactors applied.

Assessed if any of the contingent
consideration should be treated as
employee benefits given that some of the
vendors have been retained in the
business

As part of our procedures we:

Gained an understanding of the design
and implementation of controls over
revenue recognition which have been
designed by the Group to prevent and
detect fraud and errors in revenue
recognition.

Performed tests of detail on the different
revenue streams testing from the nominat
ledger and separately from cantracts.

Reviewed terms of major contracts and
assessed the accounting for each revenue
stream for compliance with IFRS 15.

Performed cut off testing around the
subsidiary acquisition dates and the year
end to determine If revenue is recognised
in the correct period.



Key audit matter

Carrying value of goodwill -

Group (See Note 9

carrying value of
investments in subsidiaries -
Company (See Note 11)

Description of risk

The Group has a significant carrying
value of goodwill arising on the
acquisition of businesses in the prior year
and current year.

An annual impairment review is required
to assess the carrying value of goodwill
for each cash generating unit (CGU).

Management uses a discounted cash
flow model and compares the resulting
valuation to the carrying value of goodwill
for each CGU to assess if any impairment
is required.

There are significant judgements and
assumptions, such as growth rates and
discount factors, used by management in
determining the valuation.

The Company has significant balances
relating to investments in subsidiaries.

The investrnents relate to the acquisition
of subsidiaries in prior year and current
year.

The carrying value of the investments in
subsidiaries is also underpinned by the

future financial viability of the subsidiaries.

How the matter was addressed in
the qudit

We reviewed management’'s assessment of
impairment of gocdwill. We challenged
assumptions and assertions made by
managementin their assessment and
considered whether the presence of
impairment indicators should result in an
impairment charge.

As part of our audit procedures we:

. Obtained the discounted cash flow
models and the underlying valuations for
each cash generating unit and checked
the mathematical accuracy of these.
Reviewed the basis of support for
judgernents and assumptions used by
manogement.

. Reviewed and challenged management’s
forecasts of future results which underpins
how the valuations dre calcutated.

. Compared historical forecaosts against
actual results and corroborated
management’s assertions where
reasonably practicable.

. Used our interna) valuations team to
assess the valuation moedels and the
appropriateness of the discount rates
Opplied. ’

. Performed sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used in the calculations.

We reviewed management’s assessment of
impairment of the carrying valus of investments
in subsidiaries. We challenged assumptions and
assertions made by management in their
assessment and considered whether the
presence of impairment indicators should result
in an impairment charge.

As part of our audit procedures we:

. Obtained the discounted cash flow
models and the undertying valuations for
each investment in subsidiary and
checked the mathematical accuracy of
these. Reviewed the basis of support for
judgements and assumptions used by
management.

- Considered the Company’'s market
capitalisation value as at 31 March 2020
against the carrying value of the
investments in subsidiaries for indicator of
impairment.

. Reviewed and challenged management's
forecasted future resuits of the
subsidiaries, which underpins how the
valuations are calculated, ond
corroborated management’s assertions
where reasonably practicable.

. Performed sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used in the calculations.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of
The Panoply Holdings pic continued

Materiality

The materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set at £460,000. This has been determined with
reference to the benchmark of the Group's revenue, which we consider to be one of the principal considerations for
members of the Company in assessing the performance of the Group. Materiality represents 1.5% of revenue as
presented on the face of the Consolidated Income Statement.

The materiality for the Company financial statements as a whole was set at £298,000. This has been determined with
reference to the benchmark of the Company's assets, which we consider to be an appropriate measure as the
Company exists only as a holding company for the Group and carries on no trade in its own right. Materiality represents
0.5% of total assets as presented on the face of the Company's Statement of Financial Position.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Of the Group's eighteen reporting components, nine were subject to audit for group reporting purposes. The nine
components covered: 95% of group revenue, 97% of group loss befare tax, 97% of group assets and 95% of group
liabilities.

For the remaining components, we performed analysis at a group level to re-examine our assessment that there were
no significant risks of material misstotement within these.

One of the nine components and two of the nine components subject to oudit for group reporting purposes were
based in Norway and Bulgaria respectively and its audits were carried out by component auditars based in Norway and
Bulgaria. We held a telephone meeting with the component auditors in Norway and Bulgaria as part of planning and
discussed the component auditors’ risk assessments and directed their planned audit approach. In addition to these
meeting, we sent detailed instructions to the component auditors’ audit teams and reviewed their key audit working
papers.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report and fFinancial Statements, other than the
financial statements and cur auditor's report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our
opinicn on the financial statements does not cover the other information ond, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therecn.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such moterial inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstaterment in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information_ If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Strategic Report ond the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared Is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicoble legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

. adeduate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit.
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Responsibitities of Directors

As exploined more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 60, the Diractors ore responsible
tor the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a trus end fair view, and for such
internol cont1ols as the Directors deterrning is necessary to enable the preparation of tinonciol staternents thot ore free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability
to continue @s a going concern, disclosing, as appliceble, matiers related to going concern ond using the going
concern bosis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group ©r the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibiiities for the audit of tha finoncial statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiol staterments 0s o whole are free from
material misstaternant, whether dus to froud or error, ond to issue on auditor's report that includes our epinion.
Reasonable assurance [s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an oudit conducted in accardance with
1sas (UK) will alwoys detect a material misstoternent when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or efror and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence tha economic
decisions of users waken on the baosis of these finuncial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the qudit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditarsrespansibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’'s mermbears those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report ond for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by low, we do not accept or aossume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as
a body, for oug audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

g&@'{’\r‘&\n ' L

Stephen Draw

Saenior Statutory Auditor, for and on behalf of
Nexia Smith & Williamson

Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

25 Moorgote
London

ECZR 6AY

18 August 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
Note £000 £'000
Revenue 3 31,533 8,152
Cost of sales (19,526) (a,81)
Gross profit 12,007 3,341
Administrative expenses (15,149) (4,992)
Other income 184 24
Operating loss 4 (2,958) (1.6e27)
Adjusted EBITDA 3,846 402
Amortisotion of intangible ossets 10 (,583) (339)
Depreciation 1213 (737) (45)
Loss on fair value movement contingent consideration 20 (3,764) (54)
Share-based payments 5 (129) (239)
Costs relating to business restructuring 4 (155) -
Costs directly attributable to busingss combination and listing 4 {a386) (1,352)
Operating loss (2,958) (1827}
Finance income 7 5
Finance costs (189) (14)
Net finance expense (182} (9)
Loss before taxation (3.140) (1.638)
Taxation 6 96 {41)
Loss for the period (3,044) (.677)
Other comprehensive income
Exchonge differences on translation of foreign operations 104 (38)
Total comprehensive loss for the period {2,940) (1,715)
Loss per share
Basic and fully diluted 7 {6.32)p (9.22)p

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 77 to 117 are an integral part of these Consolidated

Financial Staterments.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: D2C7DB38-9F85-4962-9645-4F97149F27A1

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2020

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
Note £000 £000
Nan-current assets
Goodwill 9 35,672 20585
intangible assets 10 8,691 5214
Property, plant and equipment 12 290 280
Right-of-use assets 13 1,045 -
Deferned 10x asset 22 - 14
Tolal nan-current assels 45,598 26,093
Cuirent assets
Trade and other receivables 14 8,590 3,918
Contract gsset 18 1,413 232
Other taxes and social security cosis | 19 206 -
Cash and cash equivalents 15 4,614 5,650
Total current asselts 14,823 9,800
Total assets 60,421 35893
Current ligbilities
Trade and other payables 16 (4,343) (2,210}
Other toxes and social security costs 19 (3,00) (1539)
Deferred and contingent consideration 20 (10,685} {3.270)
Lease liabilities 13 (609) -
Borrowings 17 {29) -
Contract liability 18 (1,454) (408)
Total current liabilities (20,121} {7.425)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax fiability 22 (1,623) {925)
Deferred and contingent consideration 20 (5,998) {8,292)
Borrowings 7 (5,000) -
Pravisions — Dilapidations (23) -
Lease liabilities 13 (390) -
Total non-current liabilities (13.034) {9.217)
Total liabilities {33,155) {16,642)
Net assets 27,266 19,25]
Equity
Share capital 21 551 423
Share premium account 2 31,477 20,779
Capital redemption reserve bAl 5 °
Other reserves 2 434 20
Retoined eornings (5,201) (2157)
Total equity 27,266 19,257

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 August 2020. Signed
on ehalf of the Bog;gugfmgsrneyg:tors by BocuSigned by:
Qliver Rigby , Bl wu’ Neal Gandhi | (& iy

Director Director
0720A44571ADA23, SEBT1ATA2582472 .

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 77 to 117 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2020

Foreign Share
Share Share Capital exchange option Retained
capital premium  redemption reserve reserve earnings Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- At1April 2018 - A90 - - - {480) 10
Loss for the period - - - - - (1677) (1.677)
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations - - - (38) - - (38)
Transactions with owners
Shares cancellation (5) - 5 - - - -
Shares issued : 428 - 20543 - - - - 2097
Share issue costs - (254) - - - - {254)
Share-based payments - - - - 238 - 238
£quity at 31 March 2019 423 20,779 5 (38) 239 (2157) 19,251
Foreign Share
Share Share Capital exchange option Retained
capital premium  redemption reserve reserve earnings Total
£:000 £°000 £000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £000
At Aprit 2019 423 20,779 5 {38) 239 (2157} 19,251
Loss for the period - - - - - (3044} (3044)
exchange differences on )
translation of foreign
operations - - - 104 - - 104
Transactions with owners
Shares issued 128 10,698 - - - - 10,826
Share-based payments - - - - 129 - 129
Equity at 31 March 2020 551 Nn477 5 66 368 (5,201} 27,266

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 77 to 117 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
Note £°000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
toss before taxation {3,140) (1836)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 12 737 45
Amortisation 10 1,583 339
Share-based payments 5 129 238
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 2
Foreign exchange fosses 104 7
Finance expense 189 14
Finance income ) {8)
Movement in fair value contingent consideration 20 3,764 54
3,359 {oa1)
Working capital adjustments:
{increase){decrease in trade and other receivabies (2,588) 384
increase/(decrease) in trade payables, accruals and contract liability 1,978 (650)
Net cash generated from/{used in) operations 2,751 1,207)
Tax (paid) /received (a4) 27
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries (paid) 8 (e.587) (5,613}
Acquisition of subsidiary cash inherited from acquisition R 3,7m 6,878
Deferred consideration paid 20 (1,088) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (31} (33)
Additions to intangibles 10 (196) -
Interest received 8 5
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (7.283) 1,337
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital - 5,659
Cost relating to the issue of shares - {(254)
New borrowings 5,000 -
Costs relating to the issue of new borrowings (143) -
Repayment of borrowings (507) (24)
payment of lease liabilities (629) -
Finance costs (178) (14)
Net cash generated from financing activities 3,540 5367
Net (decrease)}/increase in cash (1,038) 5524
Cash at bank and in hand at beginning of period 5,650 126
Cash at bank and in hand at end of period 5 4,614 5,650
Comprising:
Cash at bank and in hand 15 4,614 5,650

The accompadnying accounting policies and notes an pages 77 to N7 are an integral part.of these Consolidated

Financiol Statements.
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74

Company Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 31 March 2020

31 March 3l Morch
2020 2019
.\ Note €000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investments n 54,852 32499
Property, plant and equipment 1 -
Total non-current assets 54,953 32499
Current asselts
Trode and other receivables 14 183 21
Other taxes and social security Costs 19 - 137
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 23 1,337 628
Cash and cash equivalents 15 147 2,762
Total current assets 1,667 3,648
Total assets 56,620 36,047
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables A 16 (494) (310)
Other taxes and social security costs 19 (157) (19)
Deferred and contingent consideration 20 (10,547) {3270)
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 23 (3,227) -
Total current liabitities (14,425) (3.599)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred and contingent considerotion 20 {5.998) {8.292)
Borrowings 17 (5,000) -
Total non-current liabilities {10.998) (8,292)
Total liabilities {25,423) (nagy
Net assets 31197 24156
Equity
Share capitol 21 551 423
Share prermium account 2 31,477 20,779
Capital redemption reserve 21 5 5
Other reserves 21 368 239
Retained earnings (1,204) 2,710
Total equity 31,197 24,156

The Panoply Holdings Plc has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from

presenting the company profit ond loss account.
The Company’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 was £3.9m {2019; £3 2m profit).

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 August 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
] Bliwur Ripy Mal, Candlii
iMRERI@GIW0a20 . Foara...
Director Director

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 77 to 17 form an integral port of these financial

statements.

the panoply//



Company Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2020

Capital Share
Share Share redemption cption Retained
capital prernium reserve reserve earnings Total
£°060 £°000 £:000 £°000 £000 £'000
At1 April 2018 - 490 - - (480} 10
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the period - - - - 3190 3,190
Transactions with owners
Share cancellation (s5) - 5 - - -
Shares issued 428 20543 - - - 20,971
Share issue costs - (254) - - - (254)
Share-based payments - - - 239 = 238
Equity at 31 March 2019 423 20,779 5 239 2,10 24,156
Capital Share
Share Share redemption option Retained
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000
At April 2018 423 20,779 5 238 2710 24,586
Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the pericd - - - - (3,914) (3,914)
Transactions with owners
Shares issued 128 10,698 - - - 10,826
share-bosed payments = - - 129 - 129
Equity at 31 March 2020 551 31,477 5 368 (1,204) 31,197

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 77 to 117 form an integrai part of these financial

statements.
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Company Statement of Cash Flow

for the year ended 31 March 2020

2020 209
Note £:000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before taxation (3,914) 3,180
Adjustments for:
Dividends received (1,678) (5,438)
Share-based payments 5 129 173
Impairment of intercormpany loans 450 -
Finance expense 120 3
Movement in fair vaiue contingent consideration 20 3,764 54
(1129) (2,018)
working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivables (392) (745)
Increase in trade payables, accruals and contract Iic:bility 322 172
Net cash used in operations (1,199} (2,591}
Tax received/ (paid) - -
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries (paid) 8 (7,360) (5,613)
Deferred consideration paid 20 (713) -
Loans provided to subsidiary undertakings (765) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment m -
Dividends received 1,678 5,438
Net cash used in investing activities (7.161) (175)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital - 5,659
Cost relating to the issue of shares - (254)
Proceeds from loan from subsidiary undertakings 1,000 -
New borrowings 5,000 -
Cost relating to the issue of new borrowings (148) -
Finance costs (07) (3)
Net cash generated from financing activities 5,745 5,402
Net {decrease)[increase in cash (2,615) 2,636
Cash at bank and in hand at beginning of period 2,762 128
Cash at bank and in hand at endg of period 15 147 2,762
Comprising:
Cash at bank and in hand 147 2,762

The accompanying accounting policies and notes on pages 77 to 117 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General information

The Panoply Holdings plc is a pubiic limited company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act
2006 with registered number 10533096. The Company’s shares are publicly traded on the AIM Market of the London
Stock Exchange.

The address of the registered office is 141-143 Shoreditch High Street, London, England, El 6JE. The principal activity of the
Group is the provision of digitally native technology services to clients within the commercial, governmeant and non-
government organisation (NGG) sectors.

The following subsidiaries inciuded in the consclidated financial statements of The Panoply Holdings plc have taken
advantage of the exernption frorm audit conferred by s479A of the Companies Act 2006:

. Monifesto Digital Limited (Registered number 7885631}

. Not Binary Limited (Registered number 10686321)

- iDisrupted Limited (Registered number 9496322)

. Human Plus Limited (Registered number 11771564)

- Questers Global Group Limited (Registered number 8116392}
. Questers Resourcing Limited (Registered number 5640907)
- Deeson Group Holdings Limited (Registered number 11418077)
- Deeson Group Limited (Registered number 1073356)

. Greenshoot Labs Limited (Registered number 10967409)

- FutureGov Limited {Registered nurmber §472420)

. Us-Creates Limited (Registered number 5938821)

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and in accordance with the Companies Act 20606 and the AlM rules
for Companies. The measurement bases and principal accounting policies of the Group are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stafed

As detailed further in the Directors’ Repon, ofter reviewing the budgets and cash projections for the next twelve months
and beyond, the Directors believe that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue operations
for the foreseeable future and for this reason they have adopted a going concern basis in preparing these financial
statements.

In considering the business activities for the forthcoming 12 months, the directors have assessed the impact of principal
risks and uncertainties through scenario modelling. This includes an assessment of the impact of Covid-19 and the
probable resuliing recession by assessing the impact on our services, sector, custormers and through looking at trends
in the digital tronsformation sector. We have the ability to draw on a pre-agreed overdraft with HSBC of £1.5m and
strong cash reserves within the Group. Furthermore, trading for the 3 manths to 30 June 2020 has been strong with a
cash balance of £8.7m as at the 30 June 2020.

After performing all the above assessments and through modelling scenarios, it is concluded that we would maintain
sufficient undrawn capacity and satisfy ali borrowing facility covenants in the next 12 months.

The financial statements include the financial results of the subsidiaries listed in Note 11 for the full year and the following
subsidiaries from the date of acquisition. All subsidiaries are incorporated in the UK unless otherwise stated:

. FutureGov Group consisting of the following entities — acquired on 11 June 2019
. FutureGov Limited
. FutureGov Australia Pty (incorporated in Australia)

. US Creates Limited
- Ameo Professional Services Limited ~ acquired on 10 March 2020
Further details of the above acquisitions can be found in Note 8 Business Combination.

1.2 New IFRS accounting standards adopted in the year

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are new and effective for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
have been adopted. Details of the impact of new standards on the Group's consolidated results, assets or iiabilities are
included in the notes to the accounts as indicated.

. IFRS 16 Leases {effective 1 January 2019)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

On 1 April 2019, the Group adopted IFRS 16 Leases. The standard requires recognition of right-of-use assets and leose
liabilities, representing the obligation to make lease payments for almost all lease contracts. Depreciation of the right-
of-use assets and recognition of interest on the lease liabilities replaced amounts recognised as rent expense under
1AS 17 in the consolidated income statement. The Group adopted IFRS 16 on a modified retrospective basis. Accordingly,
prior year financial information has not been restated and will continue to be reported under IAS 17 Leases. The lease
liability has initiclly been measured at present value of the remaining lease payments, and the right-of-use asset has
been set equal to the lease liability odjusted for prepayments and accruals.

The following practical expedients have been taken on transition to IFRS 16:

. For contracts in pace ot the date of initial application, the Group has elected to apply the definition of a lease
from 14517 and IFRIC 4 and has not applied IFRS 16 to arrangements that were previously not identified as lease
under IAS 17 and FRIC 4.

- The Group has elected not to include initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset for
operating leases in existence at the date of initial application of IFRS 16, being 1 April 2019. At this date, the Group
has olso elected to measure the right-of-use assets, at an amount equai to the lease liability adjusted for any
prepaid or accrued lease payments that existed at the date of transition,

- instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use assets at the date of initio! application, the Group
has relied on its historic assessmeant as to whether leases were cnerous immediately betore the date of initial
application of IFRS 16.

. On transition, for leases previously accounted for as operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12
months and for leases of low-value assets, the Group has applied the opticnal exernptions to not recognise right-
of-use assets but to account for the lease expense on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.

. The Group has benefited from the use of hindsight for determining lease term when considering options to extend
and terminate leases.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities on initial recognition at 1 April 2019 was
3.25%. There was no material difference between the operating lease commitments disclosed at 31 March 2018 under
1AS 17, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate on initial recognition, and the lease liabilities recognised in the
Group statement of financial position at 1 April 2019

The implementation of IFRS 16 resulted in:

. A recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in relation to property leases and other leases recognised
in the consolidated staterment of financial position as of 1 April 2018 of £1.5m.

. a reduction in trade and other receivables {prepayments) of £61k, which is now recognised in the right-of-use
assets and ledase liabilities; ond '

. a decrease of net result for the 2020 reporting period of £31k, consisting of a decrease of lease expenses
recognised under operating expenses of £534k, an increase of depreciation recognised under net operating
expenses of £683k and an increase in interest expenses recognised under finance expenses of £42k.

. New and amended IFRS accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

There are new IFRS accounting stondofds and amendments to existing accounting standards not yet effective in
the current year, but none of these are expected to have a material impact on the Group in the following financial
period.

1.3 significant changes in the current reporting period

The financial pesition and performance of the Group was particularly affected by the following events and transactions
during the reporting period:

. The acquisition of FutureGov Group in June 2019 (see note 8) which resulted in the recognition of goodwill (see
note 9} and other intangible assets {note 10).

. The acguisition of Ameo Professional Services Limited in March 2020 {see note 8) which resulted in the recognition
of goodwill (see note 9) and other intangible assets (note 10).

. The adoption of the new accounting standard for leases (see note 13).

. A chonge in accounting estimate in calculating the fair value of share-based payments under IFRS 2 (see note 5).
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For a detailed discussion about the Group's performance and financial position please refer to our operating and
tinancial review on pages 24 and 25.

2. Principal accounting policies
a) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to

31 March 2020. A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control is achieved where the Company has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the activities that affect the Company's returns and exposure or
rights to variable returns from the entity. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective dote of ocquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Amounts reported in the
financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are dealt with using the purchase method. The purchase method involves the recognition at
fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date,
regardless of whether or not they were recorded in the financial stotements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and fiabilities of the subsidiory ore included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position at their fair values, which are also used as the cost bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group accounting policies, '

The consideration transferred in the acquisition is measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired.
Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchose is recognised in the profit or
loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.
The consideration transferred does not include amaounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts, to the extent that they exceed the settlement amounts, are generally recognised in the profit or loss. Any
deferred contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If an obligation to pay
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not
remeaqsured, and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is remeasured at
fair value at eoch reporting dote and subseguent chonges in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is stated after separating out identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill represents the excess of consideration
payadbte over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition.

b} Segment reporting

Operating segrnents are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-rmaker as required by IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of
Directors.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are consistent with the occounting policies of the Group as a
whole. Segrent adjusted EBITDA represents earnings befare interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, share-based
payments, fair value of this is the measure of profit that is reported to the Board of Directors for the purpose of resource
allocation and the assessment of segment performance.

when assessing segment performance and considering the allocation of resources, the Board of Directors review
infformation about segment assets ond liabilities. For this purpose, all assets and liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments with the exception of borrowings.

The Group is organised into, and Managed through, the following three operating segments, which are based on
service and supported by central functions:

- Consulting and innovation - Services include strategy consulting and service design

- Software development — Services include digital transformation, technical software development, cloud based
services and IT implementation ’

. Automation ~ Services include automation, rocbotics, chatbots and Al
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

c) Goodwill
The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

. the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

. the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus, if the business combination is
achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquires; less

. the net recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assumed.
When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Costs related to acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities that the Group incurs
in connection with a business combination, are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment review is carried out annually. if there is an
impairment, the cost is reduced by the occumulated impairment amount.

d) Revenue and revenue recognition

Revenue consists of the value of work deliverad to clients during the year exclusive of VAT and is recognised as
performance obligotions are met in accordance with the terms of the contract which are primarily on a time and
materials basis. Revenue is wholly ottributable to the principal activities of the Group. The Group adopt IFRS 15 principles
in recognising the revenue. Revenue recegnised in excess of invoices raised is included within contract asset. Where
amounts have been invoiced in excess of revenue recognised, the excess is inciuded within contract liability.

The majority of the services are provided on a time and material basis where clients are billed monthly for the time
spent on a project which corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to
date and accordingly revenue is recognised at the amount billed. For fixed-price contracts where criteria to recognise
performance obligations over time have been met, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a propoertion of the total services to be provided. This is determined by actuol labour
hours and cost incurred relative to the total expected labour hours and cost. The use of labour hours and costs is a
faithful depiction of the transfer of services as it directly relates to the effort required to satisfy the performance
obligation. Only inputs relating directly to the performance in transferring the services are included when measuring
progress to date. Due to changing circumstances, extent of progress and completion may be revised which may affect
revenue and costs. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in
the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

The majority of the contracts are one single performance obligation. However, some contracts include multiple
deliverables. In most cases, the deliverable is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract; therefore, it is
accounted for as a separate performance obligation. In this case, the transaction price will be allocated to each
perfarmance obligation based an the stand-alone selling prices.

Standard terms of payment within 30 or 60 days are typically adopted. There is therefore no financing component.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies the performance obligations, the timing of which is set out in Note 3.2,
For the majority, contracts are for performance obligations that are satisfied over time. However, there are some
contracts which contain performance obligations that are only satisfied at a paint in time. The revenue for these
contracts is recognised when the performance obligation has been satisfied, for project development work this occurs
when the customer accepts the final output.

When the customer has a right to return the product within a given period, the entity is obliged 1o refund the purchase
price. For instance, if potential candidates put forward are considered unsuitable by the client and no one is recruited.
The contract stipulates reimbursement of 50% — 100% of the fee, under the agreed terms of contract. Under IFRSI5,
revenue is only recognised to the extent it is highly probable there will not be a significant reversal of revenue in a future
period and is usually therefore recognised only when a successful candidate is recruited.

A small number of contracts have variable consideration associated with it, whereby a bonus is paid if certain cost
savings are made by the client. These are recognised using the ‘most likely omount method” once it has been identified
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue will not occur.
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e) Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

terns included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Consolidated Financial
Statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the Staterment of Financial
Position date. All exchange differences are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

As ot the reporting dote, the ossets and habilities of overseos subsidiaries ore transioted into pounds Sterling at the rate
of exchange agpplicable at the reporting date and their Income Statements are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. The exchange differences arising from the retranslation of foreign operations are taken directly to
foreign exchange reserve.

Translation differences on non-monetary finoncial assets and liabiiities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on goodwill and fair volue adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabifities of the foreign entity and transiated at the rates of exchange at the reporting date,
Currency translation differences arising are transferred to the Group’s foreign exchange reserve and are recognised in
the Income Statement on disposal of the underlying investment.

f)  Property, piant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment dare stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the disposai proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Consolidated income Statement.

Depreciation is calculated on & straight-line basis so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual
vulue, over the useful economic life of that asset as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 - 10 years (depending on the length of the lease)
Fixtures and fittings 4 -5 years
Computer eguipment 3 -Gyears

Useful economic lives and estimated residual values are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate.

g} Intangible assets acquired as part of d business combination and amortisation

In accordance with IFRS 3 “Busingss Combinations”, an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. A fair value calculation is carried out based on evaluating the net
recurring incorme stream from each type of intangible asset. Intangibles are initially recognised at fair value, and are
subsequently carried ot this fair value, less accumulated amortisation and impairment. The fallowing items were
identified as part of the acquisitions of entities by the Group and were still owned at 31 March 2020:

. brand amortised aver two to five years;

. customer lists amortised over three to six years;
- database over five years, and

. Intellectual property over ten years.

The aliocation of fair values to the tangible assets and the identification and valuation of intangible assets affect the
calculation of goodwill recognised in respect of an acquisition and as such represent a key source of estimation
uncertainty.

h) oOtherintangible assets

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programrmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable software products controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

. it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
. Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;
. There is an ability to use or sell the software product;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

. It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

. Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software
product is avdilable; and

. The expenditure attributable 1o the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software preduct include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion or relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are
not recognised as an asset in subsequent periods.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which
does not exceed 3 years.

i}  Impairment testing of goodwill

Impairment reviews are tested at cash generating unit (“CGU") level. Goodwill is allocated to those CGUs that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination. During the year, the each acquired entity is
equivalent to one CGU.

Impairment reviews are carried out using multi-year cash flow projections from the approved budgets of the Group.
These are discounted using a weighted overage cost of capital ("WACC"} specific to each CGU. The internal rate of
return for each CGU reflects the time volue of money and the nature and risks of the CGU. Cash flows are estimated
over a maxirmum of five years and o terminal value,

An impainment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use based on
an internal discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment losses are cradited to the carrying amount of the relevant
goodwill.

i)  Investment in subsidiaries and impairment

The investment in the Company’s subsidiaries is recorded at cost less provisions for impairment. Carrying values are
reviewed for impairment annually to determine if there is any indication that any of the investrments might be impaired.
The Company uses forecast cash flow information and estimates of future growth to assess whether investments are
impaired.

If the results of operations in a future pericd are adverse to the estimates used for impairment testing, an impairment
may be triggered at that point.

k) Taxation

Current tax is the tax currently payable based on taxable profit for the year. Deferred income taxes are calculated using
the liability method on temporary differences. Deferred tax is generally provided on the difference between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases, However, deferred tax is not provided on the initial recognition of
goodwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the related transaction is a business combination or
affects tax or accounting profit.

In addition, tax losses ovailable to be carried forward as well as other income tax credits to the Group are assessed for
recognition as deferred tox assets. Deferred tax liabilities are provided in full, with no discounting. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying deductible temporary differences will be able to be

offset against future taxable profit. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at tax rates that are
expected to apply to their respective period of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in the Consolidated Income
Staternent, except where they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the reloted
deferred tax is also charged or credited directly to equity.

I} Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Staterment of Financial Position when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets as follows:

Amortised cost

These assets arise principally from the provision of services to customers {e.g. trade receivables), but also incorporate
other types of financial assets where the objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. They are initially recognised at the transaction
price thaot is directly ottributable to their acquisition or issue and are subsequently corried ot amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment,

Impairment provisions for trade receivables and contract assets are recognised based cn the simplified approach
within IFRS g using the lifetime expected credit losses. During this pracess the probability of the non-payment of the
trade receivables and contract assets is assessed. This probability is then multiplied by the amount of the expected loss
arising from default to determine the lifetime expected credit loss for the trade receivables. For trade receivables, which
are reported net, such provisions are recorded in a separate provision account with the loss being recognised within
administration expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement. On confirmation that the trade receivable and
contract assets will not be collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the associated
provision.

Impairment provisions for loans to related parties are recognised based on a forward-looking expected credit loss
model The methodology used to determine the amount of the provision is based on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial asset. For those where the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition of the financial asset, twelve month expected credit losses along with
gross interest income ore recognised. For those for which credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit
josses olang with the gross interest income are recognised. For those thot are determined to be credit impaired, lifetime
expected credit losses along with interest income on a net basis are recognised.

Cosh and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Financial ligbilitics and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences d residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting ail of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the compony ore recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Bank borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of any transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the
instrument. Such interest-bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, which ensures that any interest expense over the period to repayment is at o constant rate on the
balance of the liability carried in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. For the purposes of each financial
liobility, interest expense includes initiai transaction costs and any premium payable on redemption, as well as any
interest or coupon payable while the liability is outstanding.

Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities, which are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective intarest rate method is @ method of calcuiating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability and
allocating interest incorme or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the het carrying dmount on initial recognition.

Fair value on contingent consideration
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or as a financial ligbility. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value, with changes in fair value recognised through profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the ocguiree is remeasured to foif volue at the acquisition dote. Any goins or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or foss.

m) Employee benefits

Share-based payments - equity-settled

All material share-bosed payment arrangements are recognised in the financial statements. All goods and services
received in exchonge for the gront of any share-based remuneration are measured at their fair values. Fair vailues of
employee services are indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of the share-based payments awarded.
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Their value is approised at the grant date and excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in the Consclidated Income Staterment with a
corresponding credit to “share-based payment reserve”. if vasting periods or other non-market vesting conditions
apply, the expense is allocoted over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the number of
share-based payments expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised if there is any indication that the number
of share-based payments expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

Any cumulative adjustment prior to vesting is recognised in the current period. No adjustment is made to any expense
recognised in prior periods if share-based payments ultimately exercised are different to that estimated on vesting.

Upon exercise of share-based payments, the proceeds received, net of ottributable transaction costs, are credited to
share capital and share premium.

The fair value for the share-based payment is measured using the binoemial model for share-based payments with no
market performance conditions and the monte carol method for options with market performance conditions.

n}) Pensions

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. Differences between contributions payable in the year and
contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the Consolidated Staternent of Financial
Position.

o) Presentation of results

In some instances, Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) such as adjusted EBITDA (refer to Financial Review on
page 24} are used by the Group to provide ‘adjusted’ results. This is because Management are of the view that these
APMs provide a more meaningful basis on which to analyse business performance and is consistent with the way that
financial performance is measured by Management and reported to the Board. Furthermore, the statutory numbers for
the vear ended 31 March 2019 does not reflect o true picture of trading given the number of acquisitions made in the
latter part of the year and the exceptional costs due to listing. Therefore, management believe that the APMs provide a
more meaningful picture rather than statutory actuals to actuals.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure, defined as the Group’s operating profit before expensing depreciation of
tangible fixed assets, amortisation, costs relating to listing, acquisitions and restructuring, impairment, goin or loss on
fair value movement centingent consideration and share-based payments.

p) lLeases

Under IFRS 16

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability ot the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for annual lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
ta dismantle and rernove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the usetul life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
economic lives of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In
addition, the right-of-use osset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurerments of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group's incremental berrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilities comprise the following:
+ Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed paymeants

. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

. Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
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. The exercise price under d purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the Group is reasonable certain to exercise an extension option, and penatties for early
termination of a lease uniess the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate earty.

The lease liability is meosured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is g
change in future lease payments arising for a change in an index or rate, if there is o change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarontee, or if the Group changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasurad in this way, a cofresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the profit and loss i the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of machinery that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets including IT equipment. Assets with o value less
than £5,000 are considered low value, The Group recognises the lease payments associated with thesa leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Under IAS 17

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group held operating leases that were not recognised in the Group's
Statement of Financial Position. Payments made under operating leasss were recognised in profit and loss ona
straight-line basis over the term of the leases. Lease incentives were recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expense, over the term of the lease.

q) Grantincome

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are generally recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Judgement is applied in assessing when there is reasonable assurance the grant conditions have been complied with
and that the grant money will be received.

r) Research and development

Research and development expenditure is recognised in the Consolidoted Income Statement as an expense until it can
be demonstrated that the conditions for capitalisation under 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ apply. The criteria for
capitalisotion include demoenstration thot the project is technically and commercially feasible, the Group has sufficient
resources to complete development and the asset will generate probable future economic benefit.

During the year, research and development costs are within Administrative expenses and are not identifiable with its
own subheading. The allocation of the administrative costs that relates to research and development for the Group is
carried out annually at the point of assessing for R&D tax credit relief as part of the tax work.

The Group benefits from both small, medium enterprises for R&D tax credits and research and development credits
(RDEC).

RDEC research and development credits are occounted for as having the substance of a government grant and
recognised in other income. The grants are recognised on the basis of the fair value of claims made. A corresponding
other receivable is recognised at the time the claims are accepted and will subsequently be offset against tax payable.

s} Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabiiities. The resulting
accounting estimates, which are based on management's best judgment at the date of these financial statements, will
seldom equal the subsequent actual amounts. The estimates and assumptions thot have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are summarised
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Critical judgements:

1 Revenue recognition
The main judgements are:

. Deciding what are the performance obligations in a contract
. Deciding whether the contract shouid be measured over time or at o point in time
. The cost to complete contracts to determine the percentage completion

Under IFRS 15, measurement and recognition of revenue required the Group to make judgements and estimates. In
particular, there are a large number of contracts within the business which may require significant contract
interpretation to determine the appropriate accounts such as whether promised goods and services specified inan
arrangernent are distinct performance obligations and based on the contract terms, whether the performance
obligation should be recognised at a point in time or over time (refer to Note 3.2).

2 Cash generating units (CGUs)

IFRS 3 Business combination requires the management to assess the CGU as part of purchase price allocation process.
The Board uses their judgement in deciding the number of CGU per entity acquired during the year. CGU is defined as
the smallest identificble group of assets that generates cash inflaws that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. The board determines the number of CGU by ascertaining the number of main
income stream generating from an entity. Each entity acquired during the year, was deerned das one CGU. There are a
total of 9 CGUs as a result from the business combination in 2020. (2019: 7).

3 Intangible assels frorm acquisition

Acquiring a business entity would include purchasing its intangible assets even when there were no intangible assets
on its Statement of Financial Position. The board uses judgement in identifying the types of intangible assets as a result
of business combination. During the year the board identified several intangibles such as customer list, brand, client
database and software. Details of intangible assets identified on acquisitions are in notes 8 and 10.

Key source of estimation uncertainty:

L Valuation of intangible assets

Intangible assets (2020: £8.6m, 2019: £5.2m) are non-physical assets which have been obtained as part of an
acquisition and which have an identifiable future economic benefit to the Group at the point of acquisition. Each
intangible asset is valued at acquisition by measuring the future discounted cash flows over a ronge of two toe ten-year
period from the date of acquisition, depending on class. For exampile, ‘customer list’ uses assumptions such as using
the average retention rate, revenue growth over the prior three to five-year pericd. All future cash flows are discounted
using o WACC, based on the internal rate of return for each asset, calculated over its useful economic life.

2 impairment of goodwill

Impairment of goodwili requires an estimate of whether there is an impairment indicator. The key estimate for the
carrying vatue of CGU is the cash flows associated with the CGU and the WACC. Each of the CGU held by the Group is
measured regularly to ensure that they generate discounted positive cash flows.

The Group determines CGUs are impaired on ot least an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the 'value in use’ of
the cash-generating units to which the intangible value is allocated. Estimoting a value in use amount requires
management to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to caiculate the present value of those cash flows. Where there is indication of
impairment, the goodwill is impuoired by o charge to the Consclidated Income Statement. The key area of uncertginty is
the revenue growth. Management perform sensitivity analysis to ascertain the leve! of growth rate that will start to
impair the goodwill on a yearly basis. Further explanation is included in Note 8 — Goodwill and impairment.

3. Impairment of investments

An assessment of impairment of investments is performed if there is an indicator of impairment. The key estimate for
the carrying value of the investment is the cash flows associated with the investment and the WACC. Each investment is
reviewed regularly to ensure that they generate discounted positive cash flows.

The same principles used in the assessment of iImpairment of goodwill is used for estimating the 'value in use’ of the
cash flows of the investrnent. Where there is an indication of impairment, the investrment is impaired by a charge to the
consolidated income statement. The key area of uncertainty is the revenue growth. Management perform sensitivity
analysis to ascertain the level of growth rate that will start to impair the investment on a yearly basis.
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4. Measuring the fair value of contingent consideration

The fair value of contingent deferred consideration is determined by reference to the future EBITDA of the acquired
business and appiying the contingent deferred consideration farmula as specified in the asset or share purchase
agreement and discounting the net present value of the future cash flows. The total fair value of consideration for the
businesses acquired during the year was £22m (2019: £32m) and the goadwill was calculated as £15m (2019; £2Im). The
range of contingent consideration in the current period was £Nil to £6.1m; further details are included in Note 8.

5. Valuation of share-based payments

The valuation of share-based payments is calculated using valuation models. In the prior year, the estimated fair value
of the share-based payments was calculated by applying a Black Scholes valuation model. In the current year, the
appropriateness of the valuation model used was reassessed taking note of the vesting conditions, including any
perfaormance-based conditions. It was concluded that the Binomial and Monte Carle valuation models would be more
suitable give the vesting conditions attached to the share-based payment arrangements. This change in accounting
estimate resulted in an immaterial change to the pricr year charge which has been recorded in the current year

3. Segmentreporting

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports reviewad and used by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker {CoDM), being the Board of Directors, in assessing the Group's performance and in
determining the ailocation of rescurces.

The Boord has concluded that it monitors the Group’s perfermance and makes business decisions around investments,
resource allocation and acquisitions based on the Group's services. These services are noted below and consists of 3
reportable segments. All other revenue that is not classified as a reportable segment are clossified as “All other
Segments’ or ‘Central Services’.

. Consuiting and innovation ~ This part of the business provides strategy consulling and service forganisationat
design services to external clients in the government, commercial and NGO sectors

- Software develepment — Services within this sector Business IT Management, include digital transformation,
technical software development and implementation, cloud based services, data hased services and support
services.

. Automation - Services inciude automaetion, robotics, chatbots ond artificial intelligence

. Al other segments — Other segments not included in the above. This primarily relates to the Group's operations

comprising of magazine publicotion and events maonagement services which are not core to the Group.

The Beoard of Directors primarily uses a measure of revenue and adjusted EBITDA which is taken as earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, costs relating to business acquisitions and restructuring, costs relating to
share-based payments and fair value movement in contingent consideration to assess the perfermance of the
operating segments. Information about segment revenue is disclosed in the tables below.

3.1.1 Revenue

)] Revenue by service

included in revenues arising from ‘Software development’ service are revenues of £3.2m (2019: £2.4m) which arose from
the Group's largest customer and represents 10% of the Group’s total revenue.

2020 2msg

£'000 £°000
Consuiting and innovation 9,581 769
Software development 21,242 7,389
Automation 1,361 35
All other segments 278 20
Intersegment eliminations (929) (81}

Total Revenue 31,533 8,152
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

i}  Revenue by geography

2020 2019
£000 £'000
United Kingdom 25,279 6,51
Norway 2,046 769
Switzerlond 1,814 552
Rest of EU 902 28
usa i488 291
Other 4 !
Total Revenue 31,533 8,152
i) Revenue by sectar
2020 2019
£'000 £°000
Commercial ' 1,476 2,87
Government 13,207 3050
NGO 6,850 2,231
Total Revenue 31,533 8152
3.1.2 Adjusted EBITDA by service
2020 2019
£'000 £°000
Consulting and innovation 1,648 60
Software development 4,575 1,227
Automation (23s) (58)
All other segments (200) (137}
Central services (1,841) (B90)
Total Adjusted EBITDA 3,846 402
Finance costs (189) (14}
Finance income 7 5
Depreciation and amortisation (2,320) (384)
Restruciuring costs (155) -
Costs directly ottributable to business combinations (a36) {1,352)
Fair value movement for contingent consideration (3,764) (54)
Share-based payments (129) (239)
Loss before tax from continuing operations (3,140) (1.636)

3.1.3 Ssegment assets

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the

operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset.

2020 2018

£'000 £'000
Consulting and innovation 29,985 3522
Software development 32,565 29,045
Automation 1,425 272
All other segments 204 54
Total Segment Assets 64,179 32,893
Intersegment eliminations (5,425) (548}
Unallocated:
Central services 1,667 3548
Total assets per the Statement of Financial Position 60,421 35,893
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3.1.4 segment liabilities

Segrment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial staternents. These assets are allocated based on the
operotions of the segment and the physicol location of the asset.

The Group's borrowings are not considered to be segment liabilities, but are managed by the Group finance function

2020 2019

£'000 £°000
Consulting ond innovation 7,324 1,640
Software development 20,272 14,702
Automation 1,768 340
All other segments 338 179
Total Segment Ligbilities 29,702 16,861
intersegment eliminations . (5,425} (548}
Unaliocated:
Central services 8,878 329
Total liabilities per the Statement of Financial Position 33,155 16,642

3.2 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of services over time and at a point in time in the following service line:

Consuiting and Software All other Adjustmants®
innovation development  Automation segments & Eliminations Total
Year ended 31 March 2020 £'000 £°000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
External revenue 9,238 20,672 1,345 278 - 31,533
Inter-segment revenue 343 570 6 - (929) -
Total revenue 9,581 21,242 1361 278 (929) 31533
Recognised at a point in time 23 7,408 1 159 - 7,591
Recognised over time 9,558 13834 1,360 na (929) 23,942
Total revenue 9,581 21,242 1361 278 (928) 31533
Consulting and Software All other Adjustments(!)
innovation development Automation segments & Eliminations Total
Year ended 31 March 2019 €000 £'000 £°000 £°000 €000 £'000
External revenue 769 7378 35 20 - 8,202
Inter-segment revenue - N - - (&) {s0)
Total revenue 769 7,389 35 20 (81) 852
Recognised at g point in time - 1,768 - - 1,768
Recognised over time 769 5,621 35 20 (81) 6,384
Tota! revenue 769 7,389 35 20 (81) 8152

(1) Inter- segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation and reflected in the adjustments and eliminations coiumn.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

4. Operating loss

2020 2019

£'000 £:000
Operating loss is stated after charging:
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment {see note 12) 154 45
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (see note I3) 583 -
Amortisation of intangible assets (see note 10) 1,583 339
Employee costs (see note 5.2) 18,080 4,346
Costs directly attributable to the business combination and listing {see note 4.1) 436 1,352
Costs relating to restructuring™® 155 -
Disposal of fixed assets 34 2
Loss on fair value movement contingent consideration (see note 20) 3,764 54
Share-based payments (see note 55) 129 239
Operating lease rentals (see note 13) 317 245

* Businass restructuring costs were incurred in the year refating to the closure of the publication part of the business and in relation to restructuring of personnel

4.1 Costs directly attributable to the business combination and listing/IPO:

2020 2019
£'000 £:000
Acquisition costs attributable to business combination 436 473
Listing costs - 879
436 1,352
4.2 Auditors remuneration
2020 2019
£°000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for the audit of parent company
and consciidated financial statements 145 106
Fees payable to Company’s auditors and its associates for the audit of Company’'s subsidiaries 27 16
Fees payable to Company’'s auditors and its associates for other services:
Audit-related assurance services 2 29
Other assurance services - 335
Other services 4 -
Tax compiiance and other tax advisory servicas 131 23
309 509
43 Finance income and costs
2020 2019
£°000 £'000
Finance income
Interest income from financial assets held for cash management purposes 7 S
Finance income 7 5
Finance costs
Interest payable on bank loon and overdrafts 147 -
Interest and finance charges paid/payable for lease liabilities and financial liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss 42 14
Finance costs expensed 189 14
Net finance costs 182 9
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5. Employee costs
5.1 Directors and employess
The average number of staff employed by the Group during the financiol year is 361 {2019: 77) as follows:

. 2020 2019

Consultant ** 220 37
Administrative staff +*+* ns 34
Management 26 6
Total 361 77
*+ Consultant include consuitants employed by Questers solely for clients’ projects. '
*=2 Adiministrative stoff alsa participate in income generaling activities, safes and markating.
Employee numbers are stated including Directors.
5.2 Employee remuneration

2020 2018

£°000 £000
Wages and salaries 16,144 3,807
Pension contributions 494 87
Share-based payments 129 133
Socigl security costs 1,313 281
Other benefits - 38
Total 18,080 4,345
5.3 Key management personnel

2020 2019
Number of key personnel for the parent company. 5 5]

2020 2019
Number of key personne! for the Group 26 18

Group key personnel cormprises of Directors of the porent company and the directors of the principat operating
companies,

5.4 Key management emoluments
Emoluments for the key management personnel for the parent company.

2020 2019

£000 £000

wages and salaries 515 296

Pension contributions 38 g

Share-based payments 43 40

Social security costs 65 28

Qther benefits 3 -

Total 664 373
The total emolument for the Group key personnel for the year:

2020 20i9

£'000 £:000

wages and solaries 2,310 757

Pension contributions [:]:] 4]

Share-based payments 70 77

Social security costs 295 56

Other benefits 13 =

Total 2,786 831
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

The aggregate of remuneration of the highest paid director (including Employer NI} of the Company was £329k (2019
£164k). The amount of pension contribution paid into the defined contribution scheme for the highest paid director
totolled £18k in the year. The full breakdown of other benefits are detailed in the remuneration report.

Details of individual Directors’ emoluments for the year (incfuding employer's National Insurance (“NI*) contributions)
are as follows:

Other benefits (refer to

Fees oand salaries Employer's NI remuneration report) Taotal
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £:000 £000 £:000 £'000 £000 £°000 £000
Non-Executive
Chris Sweetland 35 12 4 1 3 2 42 15
Mark Smith 50 17 6 2 4 4 60 23
Isabel Kelly 30 10 3 1 2 2 356 13
Executive
Neal Gandhi 259 128 34 16 36 20 329 164
Oliver Rigby 141 128 18 8 39 2 198 158
Total 515 296 65 28 84 49 664 373

5.5 Share-based payments

(i) share-based payrment plans for employees

The Company has an HMRC-approved EMI share-based payment scheme for certain staff and senior management.
There is also an unapproved share-based payment scheme in place which is used where the individuals do not fall
under the rules of the approved scheme.

2020 2019
2020 Waeighted 2019 Weighted
Number average Number avcrage
of options exercise price of options exercise price
Outstanding at 1 April 3,680,119 7ap - -
Granted - - 3680110 74p
Forfeited (42.631) - - -
Outstanding at 31 March 3,637,488 74p 368019 74p
Weighted average remaining contractual useful life is B.68 years
(il Non-employee share-based payments
The total non-employee share-based payments ore:
2020 2019
2020 Weighted 2019 Weighted
Number average Number average
of options axercise price of options exercise price
Outstanding at 1 April 247,669 . 74p - -
Granted ) - - 247,669 74p
Outstanding at 31 March 247,669 74p 247,669 74p

In the prior year, the estimated fair value of the share-based payments was calculated by applying o Block Scholes
valuation model. In the current year, the appropriateness of the valuation model used was reassessed taking note of
the vesting conditions, including any performance-based conditions. It was concluded that the Binomial and Monte
Carlo valuation models would e more suitable given the vesting conditions attached to the share-based payment
arrangements. The Binomial model was deemed to be the best mode! to value shares where there are no market-
based performance conditions. There are a number of shares where the awards contain a market performance
condition. These share-based poyments were vadlued using the Monte Carlo model as it was deermed more accurate in
estimating the impact of market conditions.
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(i) Total share-based payments
The number of cutstanding options under each valuation method has been disclosed in the table below.

Binomial Monte Carlo
model model

Total

Number of outstanding options as at 31 March 2020 2,856,579 1028578

3,885,157

The change in the accounting estimate has resulted in an immaterial reduction to the charge recognised in the prior

year and this has been credited to the Consolidated Income Statement in the current year.

The changes in estimate around model inputs for the options granted in 2019 were as follows:

Binomial Black
and Monte Scholes
Carlo model Model
Exercise price £0.74 £0.74
Share price at grant date £0.74 £0.74
Risk-free interest rate 0.88% 0.87%
Expected volatility' 3185% 4B8.80%
Dividend yield 1.00% 0.00%
Contractual life of option (years) 10 10
The total share-based payments expense included in the Consolidated Income Statement is:
2020 2019
£000 £000
Share-based payments to employees m 133
share-baosed payments to non-employees (42) 106
Total ‘ 129 239
The total share-based payments expense relating to Directors of the Company;
2020 2019
£000 £000
Share-based payments 43 a0
Total 43 40
The totai share-based payments expense relating to key personnel of the Group:
2020 2018
£000 £:000
Share-based payments 70 77
Total 70 77

1 rhe expected price valatility is based on the historical volatiity (bosed on the rermaining life of the opticns), adjusted for any expectad changes 16 future volatility due

to pubiicly available information
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

6. Taxation

2020 209
current tax £000 £000
UX corporation tax for the period at 19% (2019:19%) (581) (21
Adjustments in respect of prior period provisions 121 -
Adjustrments in respect of prior period R&D credits 461 -
Overseas current tax charge on income for the year (95) )
Total current tax (94) (122)
Deferred tax
Current year 268 8i
Change in deferred tax rate @7 -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods Q)] -
Total deferred tax 190 8)
Total tax credit/{charge) 96 {a)

During 2020 a deferred tax credit of €296k (2019; £64k) was attributable to deferred tax on intangible assets ocquired as

part of business combination. For further deferred tax information — see Note 22.

The relationship between expected tax expense based on the effective tax rate of the Group of 4% (2019: 3%) and the tax

expense recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement can be reconciled as follows:

2020 2019
£000 £000
Loss for the year before tax: (3,140) (1,6386)
Tax rate 19% 19%
Expected tax credit 587 3an
Principal differences due to:
Fixed asset differences - (14)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (956) (376)
Non taxable income (3) -
Additional deduction for R&D expenditure - 98
Adjustments in respect of prior period provisions 121 -
Adjustments in respect of prior pericd R&D credits 461 -
Difference in tax rates 39 (8)
Movement in deferred tax rates (80) (13)
Deferred tax asset not recognised (83) (103)
Deferred tax credit on intangible assets arising on business combinations - 64
96 (an
7. Earnings per share
2020 2019
£000 £°000
Loss ottributable to ordinary shareholders (3.044) (1,677)
2020 Number 2019 Number
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue, basic 48,162,078 18,186,006
Basic and diluted loss per share (6.32)p (9.22)p

Earnings per crdinary share has been calculated using the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

There is no difference between basic loss per share and diluted loss per share as the share-based payments are anti-

dilutive.
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The Group have o number of share-based payments (see note 5} and share purchase agreements (see note 8) where
the tarms and conditions could affect the measurernent of basic ond diluied earnings per share. A number of shores
that were issued during the period are contingent on certain conditions being met and therefore these have been
excluded from the calculation of the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue.

8. Business combinations

During the year the Company completed two acquisitions; the first acquisition was of FutureGov Limited (‘FutureGov'), a
group of 3 companies consisting of FutureGov Limited, FutureGov Austraiia Pty Limited and US Creates Limited.
Additionally, the Company completed the acquisition of Amea Professiona Services timited (‘Ameo’) in the period. A
sumrnory of the acquisiticns is shown below.

Summary
Business combination summary FutureGov Ameo Total
os ot 31 March 2020 Note £'000 £000 £:000
Date of acquisition n 1 4une 2018 10 March 2020
Consideration payable Cash & Shares Cash & Shares
acquired 1 100% 100%
Acquisition related costs 4 208 108 37
Intangible assets acquired on acquisition 10 2,842 1822 4,764
Net assets 8694 1,800 2,494
Total identifiable net assets acquited at fair value 8 (iv) 3,536 3,722 7,258
Cash 6,060 3527 9,587
shares (including contingent deferred consideration) 7262 5508 12,758
Total fair value consideration 8 (iv) 13,312 9,033 22,345
Goodwill 8 (iv) 9,776 5,31 15,087
Cash flow
Acquisition of business (net of cash acquired) 3809 1,967 5,876
Total cash flow from acquisition of business

{net of cash acquired} . 5,876

(il  Revenue and profit/{loss) if acquired from | April 2019
The consolidated pro-forma revenue and prof!t/(loss) for the year ended 31 March 2020, had the acquisitions occurred
on 1 April 2019 are shown below. These amounts have been calculated using the subsidiary’s resuits adjusted for:

. differences in the accounting policies between the Group ond the subsidiary; and

. the additional depreciation and amortisation that would have been charged, assuming the fair value adjustments
to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets had applied from 1 April 2019, together with the
consequential tox effects.

Acquisition to (from 1 April 2019}

31March 2020 FY 12m

Revenue £000 £'000
FutureCov 8,792 8,223
AMEo 737 7,262
7.529 15,485

Acquisition to (from 1 April 2013)

31 March 2020 FY 12m

Profit/(loss) before tax £'000 £°000
FutureGov 900 1,345
Ameo 173 1325

1,073 2570
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

(i) cashflows from investing activities — acquisition of subsidiaries
The cash paid for acquiring the companies ond the cash inherited are summarised as follows:

Paid by the Group during the year

Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries Cash inherited from acquisition
Entity . £'000 £°000
FutureGov 6,060 2,151
Ameo 3527 1,560
Total 9,587 3,7

The cash paid by the parent company only is as follows

Cash poid fer acquisition of subsidiaries

Entity £'000

FutureGov 5160 -
Ameo 2,200 -
Total 7,360 -

Business cormbination explained by entity

a. FutureGov

On 11 June 2019 the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of FutureGov for an initial consideration of £11.8m -
being £5.7m in shares and £6.1m payable in cash. Further contingent deferred consideration may be payable, in shares,
dependent upon the performance of FutureGov post-acquisition. As at 31 March 2020, this was estimated to be £1.5m.
The Panoply also procured, on Completion, the repayment of lcan notes issued by FutureGov to cernain shareholders
with a principal amount totalling £500,000 by FutureGov {the “Loan Notes™).

As with previous transactions, all Panoply Shares allotted and issued under the $PA (including the shares issued os part
of the Initial Consideration) are subject to customary lock-in arrangements and subject to claw-back by The Panoply if
FutureGov's EBITDA decreases over the 2 year earn-out period.

The partial or full clawback subject to the future EBITDA performance of FutureGov (based on EBITDA) during the

15 rmonth period 1 January 2008 to 31 March 2020 (annualised) ond 12 month period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, In
addition to the Initial Consideration, the sharehclders of FutureGov will be entitied to receive deferred earn-out
consideration, of which 96% will be payable by the allotment and issue of shares in The Panaply (“Pancply Shares”} and
4% in cash following the agreement of the relevant EBITDA calculations at the end of each of those financial perieds. The
number of Panoply Shares to be allotted and issued shall be calculated by dividing the earn-out price poyable by o
price per share in The Panoply which is the grecter of 87.5 pence and the volume-weighted average mid-market price
over the 30 business days prior to the issue of the relevant Panoply Shares. Any Panoply Shares ollotted and issued by
way of deferred consideration will be allotted and issued as follows:

. in four equal tranches over a 24-month period fallowing the determination of the accounts in respect of the
financial year ending 31 March 2020 and the publication of the Group’'s results for the same period; and

. in four equal tranches over a 24-month period following the determination of the accounts in respect of the
financial year ending 31 March 2021 and the publication of the Group’s resuits for the same period.

The total consideration payable by The Panoply in respect of the Acquisition is capped at a maximum of £21m.

IFRS 3 requires that consideration to be measured at fair value. The total consideration (before caleulating its fair value)
of £13.8m is further analysed based an the timing of the consideration payments and an estimation of the contingent
consideration likely payable as at the transaction date to work out the fair value (net present value} of the
consideration as at the transaction date using cost of debt 3.7% for calculoting cash consideration and completion
shares using WACC of 14.4%. The tair value of the total consideration is caiculated to be £13.3m.

At 31 March 2020, the actual EBITDA for the year and the fair value forecast EBITDA for March 2020 are assessed to be
higher than the total EBITDA forecast calculated at completion date. The estimated total consideration was calculated
at £13.6rm, ¢ debit of £288k has been recognised in the Statement of Total Comprehensive Income in respect of the
maovement on the deferred contingent consideration fiability.

FutureGov Limited was incorporated in 2008. For over more than a decade FutureGov has built an enviable reputation
for the delivery of scaled digital transformation and organisational change across government orgonisations, saving
money and improving outcomes for citizens at local and national level across health and public services. Digital
transformation in the public sector follows a defined process from Discovery, where the suitability and need for a new
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service is assessed, through to Alpha where a proof of concept is created, then to Beta where a scaled full version is
delivered and then to Live. Histerically, FutureGov has had a reputation for Discovery and Alpha phases, typically ending
their engagements there or partnering with third party organisations for the Beta and Live phases.

The acquisition will significantly increase the Group's revenue originating from the health and public sectors. The
combination of FutureGov's wealth of experience and The Panoply’s extended capabilities creates a very strong
disrupter in these sectars, challenging the status-quo of larger organisations. The Group is now able to offer public
sector clients an end-to-end service from discovery through to live digital transformation progronmes, which is entirely
tailored to the needs of the industry.

Futuregov
Fair value
Book cost adjustments Fair value
£'000 £000 £°000

Intangibles
Brand - 2493 293
Customer lists - 2,549 2,549
Goodwill 722 (722) -
Tangible assets
Property, plant and equipment 30 - 30
Current assets
Trade and other receivablas 1483 - 1,483
Cash and cash equivalents 2,51 - 2,151
Current liabilities
Trade and other [labilities (1272) (149) (1,421)
Non-~current liabilities
Borrowings (507) - (507}
Deferred consideration (513) - {513)
Deferred tax (3) (536} (539)
Net assets 2,10 1,435 3,536
Cash 6,060
Share issued {Contingent to performance untit FY2020) 5,786
Contingent consideration (Equity) 1,466
Fair value of total consideration 13,312
Goodwilt ’ 9,776

Acquisition-related costs of £208k that were not directly attributable to the issue of shares are included in
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement and in operating cash flows in the Statement of Cash
Flows.

The trade and other recelvables are all considered recoverable. The goodwill is retated to assemble warkforce and the
high profitability of the acquired business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes.

b. Ameo

On 10 March 2020 the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Ameo for an initiol consideration of £8.3m
being £4.8m shares plus £2.2m, cash and an additional cash payment of £1.3m made to the vendors at completion
representing cash held on Ameo’s statement of financial position in excess of its normalised working capital
requirerments. Further deferred contingent consideration may be payabls, in shares, dependent upen the performance
of Ameo post-acquisition. As at 31 March 2020, this is estimated to be £0.7m. As with other acquisitions, there may be o
partial or full clawback of the initial share consideration in the event of underperformance of Ameo post acguisition. The
deferred contingent consideration or clawback will be determined by reference to the forecast during the 17 month
period 1 November 2018 to 31 March 2021 (annualised) and 12 month period frorn 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022,

The number of Panoply Shares to be allotted and issued shall be calculated by dividing the earn-out price payable by a
price per share in The Panoply which is the greater of 82 pence and the volume-weighted average mid-market price
(VWAP) over the 30 business days prior to the issue of the relevant Panoply Shares. Any Panoply Shares allotted and
issued by way of deferred consideration will be allotted and issued in one tranche following the publication of the
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Group's results for the relevant period for financial year end 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 of the acquired business
and applying the deferred contingent consideration formula as specified in the share purchase agreement.

IFRS 3 requires that consideration to be measured at fair value. The tatal consideration (before calculating its fair value)
of £9.2m is further analysed based on the timing of the consideration payments and an estimation of the contingent
consideration likely payable as at the transaction date to work out the fair value (net present value) of the
consideration as at the transaction date using cost of debt of 3.4% for calculating cash consideration and WACC of
14.3% for caleulating completion shares. The fair vaiue of the total consideration is calculated to be £9.0m.

At 31 March 2020, the actual EBITDA for the year and the fair valus forecast EBITDA for March 2020 are assessed to be
lower than the total EBITDA farecast calculated at completion date. The estimated total consideration was calculated at
£8.0m, a credit of £62k has been recognised in the Staterment of Total Comprehensive Income in respect of the
movement on the deferred contingent consideration liability.

Ameo, founded in 2008, based in UK, is a consultancy specialising in delivering business change, with a strong focus on
the public sector. Ameo has been working with businesses for over 10 years seeking to deliver long-lasting, cost-
effective change across o wide range of areas, from financial reporting and process design to digital innovation.
Amed’s ethos is to seek 1o work as a partner with its clients in order to develop sustainable solutions and improve the
skills of its clients’ teams. th addition, to Public sector, Ameo also has considerable experience delivering projects across
other sectors such as higher education, energy and utiiities, and various industries within the private sector.

The Acquisition will bring additional and complementary capabilities to the Group’s public sector offering, as well as
extending its reach into this key market. The strategy and change delivery capability of Ameo, alongside the
organisational and service design capability of FutureGov, and the backing of The Panoply’s first-in-class technology
businesses provides the basis for targeting and winning increasingly large digital transformation projects in the UK

public sector. N

Fair value

Book cost  adjustments Fair value
Ameo £:000 £:000 £000
Intangibles
Brand - 233 233
Customer lists - 1,689 1,689
Tangibte assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 - 2
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 1,649 - 1,649
Cash ond cash equivalents 1,560 - 1,560
Current liabilities
Trade and other liabilities (694) - (694)
Taxes and social security costs (352) (352)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tox - (365) (365)
Net assets 2,165 1,557 3,722

Fair value

Book cost adjustments Fair value
Ameo £000 £000 £°000
Cash 3,527
Share issued (Caontingent to performance until FY2020) 4,800
Contingent consideration (Equity) 706
Fair value of total consideration 9,033
Goodwill 5,31

Acquisition-related costs of £109k that were not directly attributable to the issue of shares are included in administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement and in operating cash flows in the Statement of Cash Flows.

The trade and other receivables are ait considered recoverable. The gaodwill is related to assemble workforce and the
high profitability of the acquired business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes.
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The total consideration payabie by The Panoply in respect of the Acquisition is capped at a maximum of £10.5m, which
includes the reimbursement payment of £1.3m meaning that the effective cap is £9.2m.

8.1 Acquisitions post year end

The Panoply Holdings Plc acquired the entire issued share capital of Arthurly, a technology services business with
strength in the Microsoft Technology Stack on the 10 June 2020. The initial consideration for the Acquisition was £0.4m,
satisfied though the payment of circa £0.2m cash and the issue of 365,853 new ordinary shares in The Panoply.

£100,000 worth of the shares are subject to claw back in the event of underperformance in accordance with the Group's
acquisition formula. Further consideration may be payable based on revenue generated for the 16 months to

30 September 2021, Any such additional consideration shall be calculated following the agreement of the relevant
revenue calculations and publication of the Group's results relating to the financial period ending on 30 Septermber 2021
and shall be payable by the allotment and issue of shares in The Panoply. The number of such shares to be ailotted and
issued shall be calculated by dividing the deferred consideration payable by a price per share in The Panoply which is
the greater of 82 pence and the volume-weighted average mid-market price over the 30 business days prior to the
relevant issue date. Any shares in The Panoply which are aliotted and issued as part of the deferred consideration will
be allotted and issued in 4 tranches at six-month interval,

The total consideration payable by The Panoply in respect of the Acquisition is capped at a maximum of £1.5m.
Acquisition costs of £44k were incurred. These are recorded in the financial statements year ended 31 March 2021,

All Panoply Shares allotted and issued under the SPA (including the shares issued as part of the Initial Consideration)
are subject to customary lock-in arrangements and subject to claw-back.

The acquisition is expected to be immediately margin ond earning enhancing to Notbinary.

The Group is currently performing a fair value review of Arthurly’s assets and liabilities and will report these within its next
published financial statements.

Arthurly Limited, company registration number 11560054 is incorporated in England and Wales. Its registered office is 17
sunnybank Road, Griffithstown, Pontypool, United Kingdom, NP4 5LT.

9. Goodwill and impairment

Accumulated

impairment Carrying

Cost losses amount

£000 £'000 £'000

As at1 April 2018 - - -
On acquisitions 20,585 - 20,585
As at 31 March 2019 20,585 - 20,585
On acquisitions 15,087 - 15,087
As at 31 March 2020 35,672 - 35,672

Management have concluded the acquisitions in the year are separate cash generating units. In the yeor ended
31 March 20290, there are nine cash generating units {CGU), being ane CGU per entity acquired.

impairment tests for goodwill

The value of CGUs is assessed according to the projected performance of the business. This is performed by calculating
the recoverable amount of all CGUs based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations uses a post-tax cosh flow
projects based on latest forecasts by each CGU which are extrapolated to cover a 5 year period. The forecasts used are
latest forecasts which have been adjusted for the impact of Covid-19 and the expected resulting market downturn, A
risk-free discount rate is based on WACC using the CAPM model. A risk free rate has been used to mitigate the risk of
double counting risk adjustrnents as these have been taken into account in the cash flows, As the WACC used in the
value-in-use caiculation are post- tax WACC, the implied pre-tax WACC has been subsequently calculated and
disclosed below.

Each reporting period, management compares the resulting cash flow projections by CGU to the carrying value of
goodwiil. Any material variance in this calculation results in an impairment charge to the Consolidated (ncome
Staternent. The following table sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to
them. The growth rate used varies between years, with the maximum growth rate shown in the table below. As well as
the following assumptions, EBITDA margin based on historic and latest forecasts have been used for each CGU and
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ranges from 10% to 21%. A long term growth rate of 1.9% based on CPl as at 31 March 2020 was used to extrapolate cash
flows beyond the budget period. :

carrying value Annual Pre-tax

31 March revenue discount

2020 growth rate rate

[adc]N] £°000 % %

Ameo 5,31 10.0% 15.5%

Bene Agere 1,845 125% 14.8%

Deeson 1239 10.0% 13.3%

FutureGov . 9,776 12.5% 145%

Greenshoot Labs 130 12.5% 130%

Manifesto 6,002 10.0% 13.1%

Not Binary 8,287 125% 13.1%

Questers 2,992 125% 18.8%
35,672

Based on the impairment review carried out at the end of 31 March 2020, the management believe that the projection
of cash flow from the CGUs exceeded the carrying value of the goodwill.

Sensitivity analysis:

Management concluded that the key factor for sensitivity analysis is the growth rate (revenue). The discount factor is
assumed to be easily determined by way of the known risk of the market and the cost of debt which is based on the
credit facility from HSBC at 2.5% plus LIBOR. If the existing annual revenue for each CGU falls by the following growth rate
shown in the table below, goodwillimpairment would be required:

Annual revenue growth/
(contract) rate

ceU %
Ameo ne)x
Bene Agere {44)%
Deeson (36.0)%
FutureGov {1.8)%
Greenshoot Lobs (39.0)%
Manifesto ) {6.1)%
Not Binary (6.0)%
Questers (104)%
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10. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are non-physical assets which have been obtained as part of an acquisition or research and

development activities, such as innovations, introduction and improvement of products and procedures to improve

existing or new products. All intangible assets have an identifiable future economic benefit to the Group at the point the

costs are incurred. Customer lists and brands are amortised over a maeximum period of six years from the date of

acquisition.

Customer
Brand Lists Data base  Software (IP) Software Total
intangible assets £°000 £°000 £°000 £000 - £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 April 2018 - - - - - -
Acquired on dcquisition 1051 4,400 50 50 2 5,563
At 31 March 2019 1,061 4400 50 50 2 5,553
Additions - - - - 196 198
Acquired on acquisition 526 4,238 - - - 4,764
At 31 March 2020 1.577 8,638 50 50 198 10,513
Accumulated amertisation
At April 2018 - - - - - -
Charge for the ysar 73 263 2 1 - 339
At 31 March 2019 73 263 2 1 - 339
Charge for the year 319 1224 10 5 25 1,583
At 31 March 2020 392 1,487 12 B 25 1,922
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 1,185 7,151 38 44 173 8,591
At 31 March 2018 978 4,137 48 49 2 5,214
11. Investment in subsidiaries
Accumulated
impairment Carrying
Cost losses amount
£000 £°000 £000
As at 1 Aprit 2018 - - -
Additions in the year 32489 - 32,459
As at 31 March 2019 32,499 - 32,459
Additions in the year 22,453 - 22,453
As at 31 March 2020 54,952 - 54,952

Investments in Group undertakings are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid pius the fair
value of contingent consideration determined at the acquisition date.
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At 31 March 2020, the Company had the following subsidiaries:

Country of
Companies incorporation Registered address Principal activity Shareholding
Bene Agere Norden AS Norway Postiyoks 573 Sentrum Strategic and management 100%
0105 Oslo consultancy with a focus on
digital transformation
Not Binary Limited England & wales  141-143 Shoreditch Digital service consultancy 100%'
High Street, London, mainly in transformation,
El 6JE software development, data
and automation
Manifesto Digital Limited England & Wales  141-143 Shoreditch Digital experience agency 0%
High Street,
London, £l 6JE )
Manifesto Digital Pty Australia Manifesto Australia Digital experience agency — 100%2
Limited 7 winton Street Ceased trading in the year
Warrawee NSW 2074
Questers Global Group England & Wales  141-143 Shoreditch Holding company 100%3
Limited High Street,
London, E1 6JE
Questers Resourcing England & Wales  141-143 Shoreditch Provides dedicated highly skilled 100%
Limited High Street, IT teams from its technology
Lendon, E1 BJE centre in Sofiq, Bulgaria, o leading
European talent pool, to businesses
located in Europe and worldwide
Questers Bulgaria ECOD  Bulgaria Sofig, 17 H. Ibsen Str, fl.5 Bulgaria, a leading European talent 100%
BG175406553 pool, to businesses located in Europe
and worldwide
Questers Techpark RS Serbia Zivka petroviéa 52 Dormant — Ceased trading in the year 100%
Limited 11080 Beograd-Zemun
Deeson Group Holdings  England & 27 Castle Street, Holding company 100%
Limited Wales Canterbury, Kent,
CTI 2PX
Deeson Group Limited England & Wales 27 Castle Street, Digital experience agency 100%*
Canterbury, Kent,
CT1 2PX
ibisrupted Limited England & Wales  Platform, New Station Publish content on websites/ 100%

Greenshoot Labs Limited

Hurman Plus Limited

FutureGov Limited

FutureGov Australia Pty
Limited

England & Wales

England & Wcles

England & Wales

Australia

! Not Binary Limited owns 100% of Human Plus Limited
2 Manifesto Digital UK owns 100% Manifesto Austratia
3 Quastars Global Group Lirnited fully own Quasters Resourcing Limited, Questers Techpark and Questers Bulgorio
4 Deeason Group Holdings Limited owns i00% of Deeson Group Limited

5 FutureGov Limited owns 100% of FuturaGov Austrofia Pty Limited aond US Creates Limited

the panoply

Street, Leeds, LS1 4JB

27 Castle Street,
Canterbury, Kent,
CT12PX

141-143 Shoreditch
High Street, London,
England, B! 6JE

Runway East
($econd Floor)

20 st. Thomas Street,
London, SE1 9RG

Levetl 4, 29 Kiora Road,
Miranda NSW 2228

magazines in the technology industry
and provide collaborative membership
in technology space

IT development mainly in 100%
conversational interfaces and Al

IT focus in Robotic Process 100%
autornation (RPA)

Digital and service design 100%®
consultancy

Dormant 100%



Country of
Companies incorporation Registered address Principal activity Shareholding
US Creates Limited England & Woles  Runway East Dormant 100%
(Second Floor)
20 St. Thornas Street,
London, SE1 9RG
Ameo Professional England & Wales  The Grange, Strategic and management 100%
Services Limited 37 Alcester Road, consultancy focusing on digital
Studley, transformation
Warwickshire BB0 7LL
12. Property, plant and equipment
Fixtures & Leasehold
iT equipment Fittings imnprovements Totol
£000 £000 £'000 €000
Cost of assets
1 April 2018 - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 67 " 43 186 285
Additions 25 8 - 33
Disposais (2 m - (3)
At 31 March 2019 90 50 185 325
Depreciation
1 April 2018 - - - -
Charge for the year 4 8 23 45
Disposal - - - -
At 31 March 2019 14 8 23 45
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 76 42 162 280
Fixtures & Leasehold
\T equipment Fittings improvements Total
£000 £7000 £'000 £000
Cost of assets
At 1 April 2019 aa 50 185 325
Acquisition of subsidiaries 30 37 - 67
Additions n4 17 - 131
Disposals (34) - - {34)
At 31 March 2020 200 104 185 489
Depreciation
Accumulated depreciation bff 14 8 23 45
Charge for the year 70 16 68 154
Disposal - - - -
At 3] March 2020 84 24 N 199
Net book value
AL 31 March 2020 16 80 94 290
At 31 March 2019 76 42 162 280
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13. Leases

The Group leases various offices and office equipment. Rental contracts vary from rolling 3 month contracts to fixed
contracts up to several year.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate
for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants cther than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Lease assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Untit 31 March 2018, leases of property, plant and equipment were classified as operating leases. From 1 April 2013, leases
are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability ot the dote at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Group.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate irmplicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

131 Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
Right-of-use assets relates to property rentals where the lease term is greater than 12 months in duration. ltems that do
not meet the criteria of a right-of-use asset has been recorded in the income statement and is summarised below.

The Statement of Financial Position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

2020 2019
Right-of-use assets £'000 £°000
Leased buildings ‘ 1,045 -
1,045 -
tease liabilities
Current 609 -
Non-current 390 -
999 -
Maturity analysis
The maturity profile of the Group's lease liabilities is as follows:
£°000 £:000
within one year 614 -
In more than one year but less than two years 345 -
In more than twe years but less than three years 73 -
1,032 -
Effect of discounting (33)
Lease ligbility 998 -

the panoply
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Right-of-use assets

Legsed
buildings Totail
£000 £000
Cost of assets
1April 2019 - -
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 16 1501 1,501
Additions 127 127
At 31 March 2020 1,628 1,628
Depreciation
1 April 2019 - - N
Charge for the year 583 583 S
At 31 March 2020 583 583 %’
Net book value ,C,
At 31 March 2020 ' 1,045 1045 =
The income statement shows the following amounts relating to leases; §
2020 2019 ;
Amounts recognised in Consolidated Income Statement £'000 £:000 ™
interest on lease liabiiities 42 - 8
Expenses relates to short term leases 377 245 CC)
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short term leases of low-value assets i - 5
360 245 —
n
) ) : 2020 2019 E
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Staterment of Cash Flows £:000 £'000 z
Total cash outflow for leases 629 - g
IAS 17 Operating leases E
The Group's minimum non-canceliable lease payrnents relate to short term properties that do not meet the criteria of a o
right-of-use asset under IFRS 16. z
Due within 1 year Total E
£'000 £'000 pr
At 31 March 2020 ' 304 304
At 31 March 2019 9 9
14. Trade and other receivables
’ 2020 2019
Group £'000 £:000
Trade receivables 7,734 3,426
Prepayments 335 176
Other receivables 521 316
Trade and other receivables 8,690 3,918

Trade receivables at the reporting date comprise amounts receivable from the provision of the Group‘s' products and
services,

The average credit period taken on the provision of these services is 87 days (2019: 56 days).
The breakdown of the trade receivables by currency is explained under financial instrument section.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have a 30 to 60 day payment term. The age of trade
receivables before impairment is as follows:
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2020 2019
£°000 £°000
Not yet due 5,694 2,310
Past due 1-30 days 1,800 78
Past due 31-60 days 174 242
Past due 61-50 days 96 10
Past due 91120 days {23} 246
Past due 121+ days 75 -
Trade receivables before impairment 7,816 3528
Provision for bad debt . (82) (100)
Trade receivables as at March 7,734 3,426

Loss rates are calculated based on actual credit losses over the past three years and adjusted to reflect differences
between the historical credit losses and the Group's view of the economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables. The Group's provision for the loss allowance is £82k {2019: £100k).

Company £°000 £°000
Cther receivables 183 21
Trade and other receivables 183 21

15. Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019
Group £°000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 4,614 5,660

Cash balances are held with a small number of counterparties, with high credit rating. Borrowings were taken out
during the year. These are discussed in note 17,

2020 2018
Company £000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 147 2762

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of these assets is a reasonable approximation of their fair value. The
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparty is a bank with a high credit rating.

16. Trade and other payables
16.1 Current

2020 2019
Group £000 £000
Trade payables 2,560 1,081
Accruals and other payables . 1,783 1149
Trade and other payables 4,343 2,210

2020 2018
Company £:000 £000
Trade payables 236 57
Accrudls and other payables 258 253
Trade and other payables 494 310

17. Borrowings

The Group entered into a three year £5m revolving credit facility {*RCF"} with HSBC UK Bank Plc ("HSBC") on 11 June 2018.
On the same day, £3.55m was drawn-down tc pay a proportion of the cash consideration payable pursuant to the
acquisition of FutureGov Group. The remaining ameunt of £1.45m was drawn-down on 10 March 2020 in relation to the
acquisition of Ameo.

Interest is poyable on a quarterly basis at a margin of 2.5% plus LIBOR.
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HSBC has taken security over The Panoply and all of the Group’s subsidiaries and their assets in connection with the RCF
Facility. The RCF Facility contains customary terms and covenants, including financial covenants.

Under the terms of the RCF facility, the Group is required to comply with the following financial covenants:

. the adjusted leverage (based on adjusted ESITDA over net debt) should be less than 2 and

. the interest cover taken as adjusted EBITDA over net finance costs must be not more than 4.

Adjusted EBITDA is taken on a proforme basis, assuming that all companies have been part of the Group for 12 months.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period. As at 31 March 2020, the adjusted
leverage was 011 and the interest cover was 31

2020 2018
Group secured £°000 £'000
Bank loans 5,000 -
Tota! secured borrowings 5,000 -
Group unsecured .
Credit cards 29 -
Total unsecured borrowings 29 -
Total borrowings 5,029 -

2020 2019
Company secured £'000 £°000
Bank loans 5,000 -
Total secured borrowings 5,000 -
Total borrowings 5,000 -

18. Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

All revenue refates to contracts with customers. The Group have a number of contracts where it receives payments
from customers based on a billing schedule. Revenue recognised in excess of invoices raised is included within contract
asset. Where amounts have been invoiced in excess of revenue recognised, the excess is included within contract
liability.

2020 2019
Group £'000 £000
Current contract asset 1,413 232
Loss allowance - -
Total contract asset 1,413 232
Contract ligbility 1,454 406
Totol contract ligbility 1,454 406

Contract assets have increased mainly due to the acquisition of two new businesses in the year (see note 8) alongside
strong trading in the last three months of the year in line with the public sector procurement timeline. Similarly, contract
liabilities have increased due to overall contract activity where customers are paying in advance for performance
obligations that have yet to be satisfied.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities and how much relates to performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

2020 2019

Group £'000 £°000

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability taken over on acquisition 78 126
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning

of the period 398 -

Revenue recognised from peiformance obligations satisfied in previous periods 16 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Unsatisfied long-term contracts

The majority customer contracts for the Group as at 31 March 2020 are 12 months or less. Long term contracts with

unsatisfied performance obligations as at 31 March 2020 is nil (2019: £486k).

19. Other taxes and social security costs
Group .

2020 2019
Current Ligbility £°000 £'000
Cerporation tax 861 609
VAT 1,47 573
Other taxes and social security costs 669 357
Total 3,001 1,539

2020 2019
Current Asset £°000 £°000
Corporation tax 197 -
VAT 9 -
Total - 206 -
Company

2020 2019
Current Liability £:000 £°000
Other taxes and social security Gosts 33 19
VAT 124 -
Total 157 19

2020 2019
Current Asset £000 £'000
VAT - 137
Total - 137

20. Gainf(loss) on the fair value movement of deferred and contingent consideration
The consideraticn payment of the acquired businesses includes deferred consideration, in the form of equity payment,

contingent upon certain results being achieved over relevant periods.

2020 2019
Group £°000 £°000
Fair value at April 2019 10,849 -
Initial fair value for deferred contingent consideration on acquisitions in the year 2,172 10,795
Settlement of deferred consideration (240) -
Movement on fair value contingent consideration 3,764 54
Fair value at 31 March 16,545 10,849
Deferred consideration measured at amortised cost 713 3
Acquired as part of business combination 513 -
Settlernent in the year (1.088) -
Amertised cost at 31 March 138 713
Total 16,683 n,562
Deferred and contingent consideration as at 31 March:
Deferred and contingent consideration due less than one year 10,685 3,270
Deferred and contingent consideration due more than one year 5,998 8,292
As at 31 March 16,683 1,562
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. 2020 2019
Company £:000 £°000
Fair value at April 2019 10,849 -
Initial fair value for deferred contingent consideration on acquisitions in the year 2172 10,785
Settlement of deferred consideration (240) -
Moverment on fair value contingent consideration 3,764 54
Fair vaiue at 3} March 16,545 10,849
Deferred consideration meoasured at amortised cost ’ n3 713
Settiement in the year (Nn3) -
Amortised cost at 31 March - - 713
Total . 16,545 1,662
Deferred and contingent consideragtion as at 31 March:
Deferred and contingent consideration due less than one year 10,547 3,270
Deferred and contingent consideration due more than one year 5,998 8,292
As at 31 March 16,545 11,562

The tair value movement resulted frorm the fair value of the actual EBITDA to what was initially forecasted as part of the
consideration. The contingent consideration mare than one year has a range of years due from 1 Aprit 2021 to 31 March
2024

As a result of the exceptional performance of Deeson for the 12 months to 30 September 2019 further consideration of
£0.96m is payable in respect of the ocquisition of Deeson Group Holdings Limited in ordinary shares in the Group. These
shares are to be issued at the higher of 82.5p and the prevailing market price at the time. This is payable in four
tranches on publication of the 30 September 2018 half year results, over a period of 18 months. The initial tranche of
£0.24m was paid in December 2018. In order to incentivise the management team of Deeson we have increased the
cap of total consideration from £3.6m to £4.1m.

21. Share capital and reserves
Share capital and reserves comprise of the following categories:
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. Share capital: The nominal value of shares in issue.
. Share premium: The excess of the value received for shares issued over their nominal value less transaction costs
and amounts used to fund bonus issues.
- Capital redemption reserve: The nominal value of shares cancelled.
. Foreign exchange reserve: Cumulative gains or losses recognised on retranslation of overseas operations.
. Share-based payment reserve: The cumulative charge recognised under international financial reporting
standards less amounts exercised.
. Retoined earnings: Cumulative gains or losses not recognised elsewhere
Shares issued and fully paid
2020 2018
£000 £'000
Beginning of year 423 -
Issued during year 128 423
Shares issued and fully paid 551 423
Share capitatl alfotted, called up and fully paid
2020 2019

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
At 31 March 55,052,267 43,296,147
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Moverment in ordinary shares Number of shares Par value prarsr:lc.:lr': Total
thousands £'000 £'000 £:000
Opening balance 1 Aprii 2018 105 - 490 490
Share issue during the year (between May 18 to November 18) 13.8 - 660 660
Bonus shares {(October 18 and November 18) 15,502 155 (155} -
Share cancellation (October 18} : (48N (5) - (5)
Shares at placing {iPQ) (December 18) 6,757 68 4,932 5,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries (between December 18 to January 2013) 20,493 205 15106 15,31
Less transaction costs arising on share issues - (254) (254)
As at 31 March 2019 42,285 423 20,779 21,202
Acquisition of subsidiaries (between Juneg 2019 and March 2020) 12,466 125 10,461 10,5886
Settlement of contingent consideration (December 2019) 291 3 237 240
As at 31 March 2020 55,052 551 31,477 32,028

The share price with reference to the acquisitions in the year ranged from 82.0p to 86.5p. The settiement of contingent
consideration in the year relates to the prior year acgquisition of Desson Group Holdings. The consideration payable is
calculated based on the performance of Deeson Group Holdings for the 12 months to 30 September 2019. These shares
will be issued in 4 tranches over an 18 month period, with the first tranche issued in December 2019

22, peferred tax
Deferred tax liability

Accelerated capital allowances and intangible assets arising from acquisition of subsidiaries: 223(1;3 E%ﬂ(}g
As at 1 April 925 -
Deferred tax ariging from acquisition of subsidiaries 203 289
Changed in deferred tax rate 77 -
- Movement in income staterment for the year (282) (64)

As at 31 March 1,623 925
Deferred tax is recognised at 18% (2019:17%).
Deferred tax asset

2020 2019
Accelerated capital allowances: £000 £000
As at 1 April 14 -
Deferred tax arising on acquisition of subsidiaries - (3)
Movement in income statement for the year (1a) 17
As at 31 March - 4

2020 2019
Tax losses £'000 £'000
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tox asset has been recognised 691 1500
Potential tax benefit available for offset against future profits in the jurisdiction in which
the loss arises. 131 533

23. Ultimate controlling party and related party transactions

In the epinion of the Directors there is no ultimate controlling party. All ather transactions and balances with related
parties, which are presented for the Group and the Company, are detailed below.

Transactions with subsidiaries

(i) Transaction Company (to and from) subsidiaries:

Transactions with subsidiaries comprise sale and purchase of services in the ordinary cotirse of business at normal
commercial terms. Total income accrued in the Company as a resuit of management fee was £1,231k (2019: £365k).
During the year the Company received £1,678k (2019: £5,438k) dividends from its subsidiaries (refer to Company
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Statement of Cash Flow). There was also purchases totalling £169k (2019: £2k). Intercompany loans to and from
subsidiaries for the year are noted in the table below.

Balances outstanding at 31 March 2020 and 2019 in respect of the transactions between Company and its subsidiaries
are shown below:

2020 2019
Outstanding balances between Company and subsidiaries £'000 £:000
Other receivables from Group undertakings 760 365
Intercompany loans to Group undeitakings* 577 263
Intercompany loans from Group undertakings (3,227) -
Total (1.850) 628

*Intercompany loans are interest free loans to subsidiaries which are repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2020, the
kalance was £1,027k (2019; £263k) with q provision of £450k (2019; £nil),

In addition, the Company owed £2k (2018: £8k) to subsidiaries which is included within the trade poyables.

The expected credit loss on intercompany receivables and loans are £450k based on actual credit losses over the past
three years and adjusted to reflect differences between the historical credit losses and the Company’s view of the
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. The Cormpany’s provision for the ioss allowance as at
31 March 2020 was £450k (2016: £nil).

(i} Transaction amongst subsidiaries:
Transactions with subsidiaries comprise sale and purchase of services in the ordinary course of business at normal
commercial terms. Total intercompany sales excluding to parent Company were £853k (2019: £58k).

Transactions with Directors

Details of Directors’ interests in the Company’s shares, service contracts and remuneration are set out in the report of
the Board to the members on Remuneration report on pages 55 and 56..

Luring the year ending 31 March 2020 there were no payments made by the Group to Growth Company FO Umited (a
company controlled by Otiver Rigby) (2019: £63k). The director's loan provided ta Neal Gandhi of £50k in the year ending
31 March 2019 from its subsidiary, Questers Resourcing Limited remains outstanding as ot 31 March 2020

in the prior year, the Group acquired Not Binary Limited. Neal Gandhi and Oliver Rigby owned shares in Not Binary
Limited totalling S per cent and | per cent respectively. The fair volue of deferred contingent consideration shares due to
the directors is valued at £383k (£325k being deferred consideration less than one year and £58k due from 31 March
2021 to 31 March 2022},

In the prior year, the Group acquired Questers Global Group Limited. Neal Gandhi owned shares in Questers Global
Group Limited totalling 46.2 per cent, The fair value of deferred contingent consideration shares due to him is valued at
£1,450k (£528k being deferred consideration less than one year and £922k due from 31 March 2021 te 31 March 2022).

24. Financial instruments

In cormmon with other businesses, the Group is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial instruments. This note
describes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks ond the methods used to measure
them. The significant accounting palicies regarding financial instruments are disciosed in Note 2.

Principal financial instruments

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, frorn which financial instrurment risk arises, are as follows:

. Trade and other receivables

. Cash and cash equivalents

. Trade ond other poyabies

. Deferred and contingent consideration
. Lease liabilities

. Borrowings

m
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Financiol assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The book values of the financial instruments (excluding equity shares) used by the Group, from which financial risk
arises, are as follows (note prepayments and other receivables are not financial assets under IFRS 9 but are disclosed
for ease of reconciliation):

Group

2020 2019
Financial gssets ot amortised cost* £'000 £°000
Trade receivables 7.734 3,426
Prepayments 3356 176
Other receivables 521 316
Cash and cash equivalents 4,614 5,650
As at 3l March 13,204 9,568
Financial assets at amortised cost include the following debt investments which is included within ‘Other receivables”:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Loans to related parties 50 20
As at 31 March 50 50

*The fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost approximates 1o the carrying amounts because of the short
maturity of these instruments.

2020 2ma
Financial liabilities at amortised cost less than one year £:000 £000
Trade payables o 2,560 1,061
Other payables 756 660
Accruals 1,027 480
Borrowings 29 -
Deferred and contingent consideration 138 3
Lease liabilities 609 -
As at 31 March 5119 2923

2020 2019
Financial liabilities at amortised cost greater than one year £Q00 £'000
Borrowings 5,000 -
Lease liabilities 390 -
As at 31 March 5,390 713

At a Company level, the principail financial instruments used from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:
. Intercompany loans and other receivables due from Group undertakings

. Cash and cash equivaients

. Trade and other payables

. Deferred and contingent consideration
- Borrowings
. Intercompany loans due te Group undertckings
Company

2020 209
Financial assets at amortised cost £'000 £'000
Other receivables 183 2]
Other receivables from Group undertakings 760 365
Intercompany loans to Group undertakings* 577 263
Cash and cash equivalents 147 2762
Ag at 31 March - 1,667 3,41
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2020 2019
Financial liabilities at amortised cost due on demand or within ane year £000 £000
Trade payables 236 57
Accruals and other payables 258 253
Deferred consideration - N3
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 3,227 -
As gt 31 March 3,721 1023

2020 209
Financial liobifities at amortised cost due greater than one year £°000 £'000
Borrowings 5,000 -
As at 31 March 5,000 -

Fair value measurement

Financial instruments in the category “fair value through profit or loss” are measured in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position at fair value. Fair values of financial instrurnents are recognised and measured of measurements are
disclosed by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Level ) - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for assets or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

. Level 3 - Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is unobservable inputs)

The following table presents the Group's and Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at
31 March 2020: ]
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2020 2019

Lovel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 level 2 Level 3

Group and Company £'000 €000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Contingent consideration (See below) - - 16,545 - - 10,849

2020 2019

Reconciliation for level 3 is shown below; £000 £'000

Cpening balance 10,849 -

Additions 2,172 10,795

Settlements (240) -
Fair value movement deferred contingent consideration {refiected in Consolidated

Incorne Statement) 3,764 54

Deferred contingent consideration (see Note 20) 16,545 10,849

25. Risk management

The Group finances its activities through equity and bank financing. No speculative treasury transactions are
undertaken, and no derivative contracts were entered inte. Financial assets and liabilities include those assets and
liabilities of a financial nature, namely cash and borrowings. The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks arising
from its operating activities, which are monitored by the Directors and are reported in the Risk and Risk Management
section on pages 40 to 43.

251 Cash and liquidity risk

The Group seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and to
invest cash assets safely ond profitably. The Group policy throughout the year has been to ensure continuity of funding
by a combination available bank facility and the issue of equity. The following table shows the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities ot 31 March 2020:

Group Company
Less than 1to 2to Effect of Less than 110 2to Effect of
lyear 2years b5years discounting Total lyear 2years byears discounting Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £°000 £'000 £000  £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other ’
payables 4,343 - - - 4,343 494 - - 494
Borrowings (Note 17) 173 144 5048 (338) 5,029 144 144 5048 (338) 5,000
Deferred consideration
{Note 20} 138 - - - 138 - - - -
Lease liahiiities
{Note 13) 614 345 73 (33) 998 - - - -
Amount owed to Group
undertakings - - - - - 3227 - - 3,227
5,268 489 5,521 (368) 10,509 3,721 144 5048 (3368) 8,771
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities at 31 March 2019:
Group company
6 months Bto12 6 months 6tol2
ar less months Tota! of less months Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Trade ond other payables 2152 58 2,210 255 55 310
Deferred consideration (Note 20) 713 ~ 3 713 - 713
2,865 58 2,923 968 55 1,023

252 Capital risk manaogement

Covid-19

The macro econornic impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is uncertain, and continues to evolve, with potential disruption
to financial markets including to currencies, interest rates, borrowing costs and the availability of debt financing.
However, the Group's financial risk management strategies seek to reduce our potential exposure in relation to these
risks.

The Group has o combined cash and cash equivalent of £4.6m, providing significant headroom over short term liquidity
requirements.

The Group's operating activities result in customer credit risk, for which provisions for expected credit losses are
recognised. This customer related credit risk is generally short term in duration and while Covid-18 impacts on our
customers had no material impact on credit loss provisioning at 3) March 2020 there remains a risk in relation to this
matter for the year ending 31 March 2021

The Group's policy on capital structure is to maintain a level of gross cash available, which the Beard considers to be
adequate to fund a range of potential EBITDA movements, taken from a series of business projections and scenarios.
Based on these business projections which tokes into account the impact of Covid-19 the Board believes it has
sufficient cash resources at its disposal to pursue its chosen strategy of maximising shareholder returns from its
customer base,

The Group manages its capital to ensure that trading entities in the Group will be able 1o continue as going concerns,
while moximising the returns to shareholders through the organisation of cash and equity balances. The capital
structure of the Group consists of cash at bank and in hand and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on poge 72.

The Directors seek to promote recurring revenues to a wide range of business customers, to reduce the risks associated
with fluctuations in the UK economy and to increase the long-term value to customers and shareholders.

The declaration and payment by the Group of any future dividends on the Ordinary Shares and the amount will depend
on the results of the Group's operations, its financial condition, cash requirements, future prospects, profits available for
distribution and other factors deemed to be relevont at the time. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of any pay-outs to the shareholders, return capital to the shareholders, issue new shares
and make borrowings or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Due to the ongoing risks with Covid-19, the Director are not proposing a dividend for financial year ended 31 March 2020.
The Board will regularly review the appropriateness of its dividend policy.

253 Credit risk

The Group's policy is to monitor trade and other receivables and avoid significant concentrations of credit risk. The
principal credit risk arises from trade receivables. Aged receivables reports are reviewed monthly as a minimum. The
credit control function follows a policy of sending reminder letters that start once an invoice is over 30 days overdue.
These culminate in a legail letter with the threot of legal action. in a limited numiber of cases, legal action has been
pursued. An aged analysis of receivables is shown in Note 14 to the financial statements.

In line with IFRS 9, the Group assesses the credit risk balances at each reporting date, to assess whether the credit risk
on a financiol instrurment has increased significantly since initial recognition. The simplified opprooch bos been opplied
1o trade debtors to medsure the loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss (ECL) at initial
recognition and throughout its life. The credit risk is assessed by reviewing the contract income amourt compared to
the amount subsequently recovered. The Group does not identify specific concentrations of credit risk with regards to
trade and other receivables, as the amounts recognised represent a large number of receivables from various
custamers, including some government authorities. Assessment of the average expected credit loss across the Group is
deemed to be nil over a period of 36 months to 31 March 2020 with the exception of Questers. The bad debt provision as
at 31 March 2020 was assessed to be £82k. Trade receivables are stated net of an impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts of £7.7m (2019; £3.4m). This impairment has been determined by reference to known issues.
write-offs are made when the irrecoverable amount becomes certain. During the year £82k of bad debt was written off
against the provision which relates to pre-acquisition of Questers. The Group's main risk relates to trade receivables
which are stated net of the provisions above, No collateral is held as security against these debtors and the carrying
vaiue represents the fair value.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31 March 2020
and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward- looking information on magroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. The group has identified that the GDP and the unemployment rate of the countries in which it

sells its goods and services are the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the histerical loss rates based on

expected changes in these factors.

254 Foreign currency risk

The Groeup's main forsign currency risk is the short-term risk associated with accounts receivable and payable
denominated in currencies that are not the subsidiaries functional currency. The risk arises on the difference in the
exchange rate between the time invoices are raised/received and the time invoices are settied/paid. For sales
denominated in foreign currencies the Group will try to ensure that the purchases associated with the sale will be in the
some currency. Most monetary assets ond liabilities of the Group were denominated in pound sterling except for the
following currency in the table below, and which are included in the financial statements at the sterling value based on
the exchange rate ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Sensitivity analysis in foreign exchange rates show an increase or decrease by 10% with oll other variables held
constant, the net assets attributable to shareholders would increase or decrease by approximately £18% (2019 £208k).

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk for the Group trade receivables at the reporting date was:

2020 2019
£'000 £000
Norwegian Krone {NOK) 248 230
European Union currency (EUR) 181 -
Unitad States of America Dellar (USD) 40 -

As at 31 March 469 230

ns
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk for Group cash and cash equivalent at the reporting date by was:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
European Union currency (EUR) 150 15
Norwegian Krone (NOK) 475 1,064
Australian Dollar {AUD) i - 56
Bulgarian Lev (BGN) - 38
Serbian Dinar (R$SD) 58 . 1
United States of America Dallar {USD) 13 21
As at 31 March 696 1185

The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk for the Group trade and other payables at the reporting date was:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
UsD 12 -
EUR 90 -
NOK 44 336
AUD - 3
RSD ' - 1
BGN 103 310
As at 31 March 646 650

255 Interest rate risk

In the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has taken out an RCF facility of £6m denominated in GBP. The facility has
been taken out on a floating rate basis (UBOR) for a period of 3 years up to June 2022 Interest rate risk arises on the
change in LIBOR which affects the interest payable the interest payable by the Group.

Sensitivity analysis in interest rates show that with an increase in 100 basis points, with all other variables held constant,
the net assets attributable to shareholders would increase or decrease by approximately £7k. Management periodically
reviews the interest rates with lenders to manage the interest rate risk associated with the loans.

26. Non-cash investing and financing activities
Naon-cash investing and financing activities disclosed in other notes are:

Partial settlement of a business combination through the issue of shares (see note B)
- Acquisition of right-of-use assets (see note 13}

Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt ond the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Group Liabilities from financing activities
. Cash/bank
Borrowings Leases Sub-total overdraft Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Net cash at 1 Apri! 2018 - - - 126 26
Cosh flows - - - 5,624 5524
Net cash as at 31 March 2016 5,650 5,650
Recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 {see note 13) - {1,501) (1.501) - (1,501}
Net (debt)/cash as at 1 April 2019 - {1,501 (1,501) 5,650 4149
New leases (127) (127) - (127}
New borrowings (5,029) - (5,029) - (3.029)
Loans acquired on acquisition - (507) - (507) - (507)
Cash flows 507 629 1136 (1038) 100
Net (debt)/cash at 31 March 2020 (5,029) {999) {(6,028) 4,614 (1,414)
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Cash has decreased in the year as a result of acquisitions completed in the year offset by an increase in trading and
Ccosh acquired on acquisition.

Company Liabilities from financing activities
intercompany Cosh{bank

Borrowings loans Sub-total overdraft Total
_ £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Net cash at 1 April 2018 - - - 126 126
Cash flows - - - 2,636 2636
Net cash as at 31 March 2019 - - - 2,762 2,762
New borrowings (5,000) (1000) (8,000} - (8,000}
New borrowings - non cash items - - (2,227) (2.227) - (2,227}
Cash flows - - - (2,815) (2,615}
Net (debt)/cash at 31 March 2020 (5,000) (3,227) (8,227) 147 (8,080)

Cash has decreased in the year as a result of acquisitions completed in the year where the Company utilised cash
reserves to pay for the consideration due.

27. Post-balance sheet events
The Panoply Holdings Plc acquired Arthurly Limited on the 10 June 2020. Further details ore disclosed in note B
The Group agreed a £1.5m overdraft facility with HSBC on 7 May 2020,
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